TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Bien Hoa, Jure 12, 2025

DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS FOLLOWING THE 2025
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Dear:
- The State Securities Commission of Viet Nam,;

- HaNoi Stock Exchange;
- Shareholders of Tin Nghia Corporation.

I. Information disclosure organization:

1. Organization name: Tin Nghia Corporation.

2. Headquarters address: No. 96, Ha Huy Giap Street, Trung Dung Ward,
Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province.

3. Telephone: 0251.3822486 Fax: 0251.3823747

II. Information disclosure content:

Tin Nghia Corporation is pleased to disclose information regarding the
documents following the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, held on
June 11, 2025.

Please see the information at the link:

https://tinnghiacorp.com.vn/en/shareholders-meeting/

We commit that the information disclosed above is true and take full
responsibility before the law for the content of the disclosed information.

Sincerely.
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TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 01/NQ-DHDCD Bien Hoa, June 11, 2025

RESOLUTION
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TIN NGHIA CORPORATION

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Business Registration Certificate No. 3600283394, issued by the
Business Registration Office - Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Nai
Province;

Pursuant to the Charter of Tin Nghia Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Tin
Nghia Corporation” or “the Corporation’);

Pursuant to the rights and obligations of the General Meeting of Shareholders of
Tin Nghia Corporation as stipulated in the Corporation's Charter;

Pursuant to the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Tin Nghia Corporation dated June 11, 2025,

RESOLVES: )
Article 1. Approving the Report of the Board of Directors of Tin Nghia

Corporation on the business results of 2024 and the plan for 2025 (A#tached Report)
with some key indicators as follows:

% Comparison of
2024
Target Unit | 2024 Plan 204 Implementation
Implementation
Plan e
period
- Billion 5 5
Total consolidated revenue VND 10,000 12,125 | 121.25% | 137.06%
. Billion . .
Of which: Parent Company VND 6,000 7,675 ( 127.92% | 181.73%
Profit after tax B\}l;]‘oD“ 250 425 | 169.82% | 163.51%




% Comparison of
07 2024
Target Unit | 2024 Plan 0z . Implementation
Implementation
Same
Plan .
period
: Billion 0
Of which: Parent Company VND 220 247 112.23% | 110.97%
Dividends (*) % 10 11| 110.00% | 110.00%

Article 2. Approving the Report of the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia
Corporation on the performance results of 2024 and the control plan for 2025
(Attached Report).

Article 3. Approving the financial statements of Tin Nghia Corporation for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (including consolidated financial statements and
separate financial statements) audited and certified by AASC Auditing Company
Limited (AASC), and inspected by the Board of Supervisors of the Corporation
(Attached Report).

Article 4. Approving the profit distribution plan of Tin Nghia Corporation for
2024 with some key indicators as follows:

Unit: VND
No. Explanation Amount
Profit after tax on the consolidated financial
; statements for 2024 2552560
’ Profit after tax on the separate financial statements 246,902,476,136
for 2024
3 | Profit distribution for 2024 238,345,123,807
Appropriation for the Investment and Development
< %) Fund (5% of PAT) 12,345,123,807
39 Approp'rlatlon for the Reward and Welfare Fund (2 6.000,000,000
months' salary)
3.3 | Dividend payout for 2024 (11% of charter capital) 220,000,000,000
4 | Remaining profit after tax for 2024 (4=2-3) 8,557,352,329

Based on the actual profit of 2024 and undistributed after-tax profit according to
the parent company's financial statements as of December 31, 2024, approving the
rate of setting up the funds as mentioned above and agreeing to pay dividends for 2024
at the rate of 11%/par value of shares in cash.




Article 5. Approving the production and business plan targets for 2025 and the
expected dividend payout ratio for 2025 with the following key indicators:

1. Total consolidated revenue: 11,700 Billion VND.
Of which, the Parent Company: 7,600 Billion VND.

2. Consolidated profit after tax: 672 Billion VND.
Of which, the Parent Company: 622 Billion VND.

3. Dividend payout ratio/charter capital (minimum) in cash: 12%.

Article 6. Finalizing remuneration, salaries, bonuses for 2024 and estimating
remuneration, salaries, bonuses for 2025 of the Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation.

1. Approval of the final settlement of remuneration expenses for the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors to be paid in 2024 is 4,466,666,673 VND, and
a bonus equivalent to 5% of profit after tax exceeding the plan is 1,345,123,807 VND.

2. Approving the estimate of remuneration, salaries, bonuses of the Board of
Directors, Board of Supervisors in 2025 as follows:

a) Remuneration for members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Board of Supervisors: The total remuneration for members of the Board of Directors
and members of the Board of Supervisors in 2025 is 864,000,000 VND (The total &necg
remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors is after FSNE

personal income tax). ONGT

b) Salaries of full-time members of the Board of Directors and full-time .NNGHi
members of the Board of Supervisors: Paid from the Corporation's Salary Fund. |

c¢) Bonuses for members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of ===
Supervisors: The bonus amount for members of the Board of Directors and members
of the Board of Supervisors in 2025 is capped at 5% based on the after-tax profit
exceeding the 2025 plan.

d) Authorize the Board of Directors of the Corporation to decide on the specific
remuneration, salaries, and bonuses for each member of the Board of Directors and
member of the Board of Supervisors, and be responsible for public disclosure and
transparency in accordance with regulations.

Article 7. On the selection of an audit firm for the 2025 Financial Statements.

1. Approve the list of independent audit firms to be selected to audit the 2025
Financial Statements of Tin Nghia Corporation as follows:

No. Auditing Company Name
1 PwC (Vietnam) Limited

2 Ernst & Young Vietnam Co., Ltd. (E&Y)

3 AASC Auditing Firm Limited (AASC)

4 A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited
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2. Authorize the Board of Directors of the Corporation to select one of the 04
(four) audit firms from the above list to audit the 2025 Financial Statements of Tin

Nghia Corporation.

3. In the event that an agreement cannot be reached with the aforementioned 04
(four) audit firms, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the
Board of Directors to select 01 (one) other audit firm from the list approved by the
State Securities Commission as eligible to audit public companies and listed
companies to audit the 2025 Financial Statements of Tin Nghia Corporation.

Article 8. Approving the dismissal of positions of members of the Board of
Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term
I1 (2021 - 2026) for the following individuals:

1. Dismissal of Mr. Tran Hoai Nam from the position of member of the Board of

Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026) from June 11, 2023,
according to the resignation letter dated May 14, 2025.

2. Dismissal of Mr. Nguyen Thanh Dat from the position of member of the Board
of Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026) from June 11, 2025,
according to the resignation letter dated May 14, 2025.

3. Dismissal of Mr. Tran Ngoc Tho from the position of independent member of
the Board of Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026) from June 11,
2025, according to the resignation letter dated May 14, 2023,

4. Dismissal of Mr. Tran Tan Nhat from the position of Head of the Board of
Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026) from June 11, 2025,
according to the resignation letter dated May 14, 2025.

5. Dismissal of Mr. Nguyen Quoc Ky from the position of member of the Board

of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026) from June 11, 2025,
according to the resignation letter dated May 14, 2025.

Article 9. Approving the number and list of candidates who won the election to
supplement members of the Board of Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II
(2021 - 2026):

1. Approving the number of members of the Board of Directors to be additionally
elected: 01 member.

2. Approving the list and results of the additional election to the Board of
Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026), including the following
individuals:

e Professional Current Form of

No. | Full name of | Gender | ID number : : e candidacy/

i qualifications position <
ALY nomination

Master of De Saigon

puty

I | oBuveh | 1969 | Male | 064069000700 |  Business Gomoy | Investment
Administration | Director of | COPStruction
and Building




Tin Nghia
Corporation

Construction
Matertal

Corporation

(Detailed curriculum vitae attached)

Article 10. Approving the number and list of candidates who won the election
to supplement members of the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term
I1 (2021 - 2026):

1. Approving the number of members of the Board of Supervisors to be
additionally elected: 02 members.

2. Approving the list and results of the additional election to the Board of
Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026), including the following

individuals:
Year Professional Current Form of
No. | Full name of | Gender | ID number | qualification i candidacy/no
: position rr
birth s mination
1 Chief
Accountant of
Dong Nai
o Bachelor of | "o EXPOT | Ty Nghia
1980 | Female | 075180001809 | Accounting - 5 Corporation
Thao —~ Agricultural :
and Auditing nominated
Products and
Foods Joint
Stock .
Company %
)
2 Saigén )5 y
Deputy C]nvest@eﬁ//
: . a onstrugilen
Mai Thi Engineer in Director of and Butin 5
1988 | Female | 034188006535 | Construction Phuoc An .
Tham Hong E Construction
Economics | BOT Company .
"l Material
Limited :
Corporation
nominated

(Detailed curriculum vitae attached)

Article 11. Terms of enforcement.
1. Assigning the Board of Directors of the Corporation to be responsible for:

a) Directing and organizing the implementation of the contents mentioned in this
Resolution in accordance with the provisions of law and the Corporation's Charter.

b) Reporting on the situation and results of the implementation of this Resolution
in the next General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Assigning the Board of Supervisors of the Corporation to be responsible for
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inspecting and supervising the implementation of this Resolution in accordance with
the provisions of law and the Corporation's Charter.

3. This Resolution was approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of Tin Nghia Corporation in 2025 in accordance with the provisions of law and the
Corporation's Charter; it is posted on the electronic information page of Tin Nghia
Corporation at: www.tinnghiacorp.com.vn within 24 hours, from the time of the end
of the Congress.

4. This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing./.

ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL MEETING
Recipien@ OF SHAREHOLDERS

- As per Article 11;
- Board of Directors;

- Archive: Meeting Documents,
BOD’s Document.

Dang Thi Thanh Ha



TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence - Freedom - Happiness

MINUTES

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

Part I. COMPANY INFORMATION.

Company name: TIN NGHIA CORPORATION
Abbreviation name: TIN NGHIA CORPORATION.

Address: No. 96, Ha Huy Giap Street, Trung Dung Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
Province.

Business Registration Number: 3600283394,

Part [I. TIME, LOCATION, AND PARTICIPANTS.

I. TIME:
The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of Tin Nghia Corporation will
commence at 08:00 on 11/06/2025.
II. LOCATION - FORMAT:
Location: At the Head Office of Tin Nghia Corporation, located at No. 96 Ha Huy
Giap Street, Trung Dung Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam.
Format: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 will be held online.
III. PARTICIPANTS:
1. Guests:
a) Representative of Dong Nai Provincial Party Committee:
Mr. Tu Thien Tu Deputy Chief of the Provincial Party Committee
Office.
Ms. Le Thuy Thuy Van Deputy Head in charge of the Party Finance
Department.

Mr. Nguyen Cao Cuong Deputy Head of the Party Finance Department

b) Representative of AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited:

¢)

Mr. Pham Van Sang Deputy General Director

Representative of Tin Nghia Corporation:
Ms. Dang Thi Thanh Ha Chairman of the Board of Directors.
Mr. Tran Trung Tuan Member of BOD, General Director.

Along with the members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisor, and

the Management Board of Tin Nghia Corporation.

-1/18 -



2.

Shareholders and authorized representatives of shareholder:

a) The total number of invited shareholders is 814 shareholders, owning 200,000,000
voting shares.

b) As of the opening of the General Meeting, the total number of shareholders
attending and authorized to attend is: 37/814 shareholders, owning and representing
ownership of 197,017,611/200,000,000 voting shares, accounting for 98.51% of the
voting shares (Appendix: List of attending and authorized shareholders attached).

Part III. MEETING AGENDA AND CONTENTS.

L.
"

5:

OPENING PROCEDURES AND MEETING PROTOCOL.

Ms. Pham Doan Bao Khuyen — The Organizing Committee of the General Meeting
stated the reason for the meeting and introduce the attendees.

Ms. Duong Thi Minh Hong — the Head of Delegate Eligibility Verification
Committee reported on the results of the verification of conditions for holding the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (Report attached).

Ms. Pham Doan Bao Khuyen - The Organizing Committee informed the attendees
of the voting method to approve the contents of the meeting.

Ms. Pham Doan Bao Khuyen - The Organizing Committee presented a proposal
for the General Meeting to approve the composition of the Presidium, the Secretary,
and the Vote Counting Committee for the purpose of presiding over and conducting
the voting and elections during the Meeting:
a) List of the Presidium to conduct the General Meeting includes:
- Ms. Dang Thi Thanh Ha Chairman of BOD - Chairperson
- Mr. Tran Trung Tuan Member of BOD, General Director
b) List of the Secretary to record the content and proceedings of the General Meeting
includes:
- Mr. Tang Tran Tan Khai Head of Assistants - Head of Committee.

- Ms. Nguyen Thi My Nga Deputy Director - Member.

c¢) List of the Vote Counting Committee for voting and elections at the General
Meeting includes:
- Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Van Chief Accountant - Head of Committee.
- Mr. Le Dinh Son Member.
- Ms. Nguyen Nhu Huynh Member.
Ms. Pham Doan Bao Khuyen - The Organizing Committee presented the Meeting

Agenda and the Meeting Regulations for the General Meeting's approval (Meeting
Agenda and Meeting Regulations attached).

-2/18 -



As of the FIRST voting time (8 hours 30 minutes), the total number of sharecholders
attending and authorized to attend is: 37/814 shareholders, owning and representing
ownership of 197,017,611/200,000,000 voting shares, accounting for 98.5088% of the
total number of attendance and voting shares.

(Appendix. List of attending and authorized shareholders attached.)

6. Ms. Pham Doan Bao Khuyen - The Organizing Committee took the FIRST vote
using electronic voting.

7.  The General Meeting proceeded with the FIRST vote.

8. Ms. Pham Doan Bao Khuyen - The Organizing Committee announced the results
of the FIRST vote.

Voting results:

8.1. List of the Presidium

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,611 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 0 votes/197,017,611 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,611 votes/197,017,611 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,611 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting
shares of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 100% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting,.

8.2. List of the Secretary

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,611 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 0 votes/197,017,611 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,611 votes/197,017,611 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,611 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting
shares of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 100% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

-3/18 -
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8.3. List of the Vote Counting Committee

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,611 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 0 votes/197,017,611 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,611 votes/197,017,611 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,611 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting
shares of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 100% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

o Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

8.4. The Meeting Agenda

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,611 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 0 votes/197,017,611 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,611 votes/197,017,611 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,611 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting
shares of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 100% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

8.5. The Meeting Regulations

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,611 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 0 votes/197,017,611 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,611 votes/197,017,611 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,611 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting
shares of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 100% of the
total voting shares of sharcholders present at the meeting.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

-4/18 -



II. MEETING CONTENTS.

1. Mr. Tran Trung Tuan presented the Report of the Board of Directors of Tin Nghia
Corporation on the business results of 2024 and the plan for 2025.

2. Mr. Tang Tran Tan Khai presented the Report of the Board of Supervisors of Tin
Nghia Corporation on the performance results of 2024 and the control plan for 2025.

3. Mr. Tran Trung Tuan presented for the General Meeting's consideration and
approval the following three proposals:

a) Proposal regarding the approval of the Audited Financial Statements for 2024.
b) Proposal regarding the profit distribution plan for the year 2024.

¢) Proposal regarding the 2025 business production and operation plan targets and
expected dividend payout ratio for 2025.

4. Ms. Dang Thi Thanh Ha presented for the General Meeting's consideration and
approval the following two proposals:

a) Proposal regarding the finalization of remuneration, salary, and bonuses for 2024
and the estimate of remuneration, salary, and bonuses for 2025 of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors.

b) Proposal regarding the selection of an auditing firm for the 2025 Financial
Statements.

5. Ms. Dang Thi Thanh Ha, on behalf of the Presidium, led the General Meeting in
discussing the Reports and Submissions that have been presented at the Meeting.

* The Presidium answers questions directly at the General Meeting:

1. Shareholder with ID TID.000803, representing 200 shares, asked: Has the
company collected all the money from the transfer of the Cu Lao Tan Van project to TTC
Land yet? If not, how much is still outstanding and when is it expected to be collected?
2, Could the company please provide an update on the progress and exploitation plan of
the following projects: Nui Dong Dai Residential Area, Phu Thanh Long Tan Residential
Area, and Riverside Urban Area? 3, Does the company intend to expand its land bank for
industrial real estate development? 4, In 2024, what was the company's revenue from
coffee sales and exports, and gasoline sales? What are the company's main coffee export
markets?

* Response from the Presidium:

- Regarding the transfer of the Cu Lao Tan Van project: all money has been
collected.

- Regarding the procedures for implementing projects: subsidiary companies are
pursuing related legal procedures, due to general difficulties related to the Land Law and
Law on Investment.

- Regarding the development of industrial real estate: the Corporation will
participate if conditions are favorable.
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- Regarding gasoline revenue in 2024: 3,253 billion VND, and coffee revenue in
2024: 6,975 billion VND. The main coffee export markets are Europe and some Asian
countries.

2. Shareholder with 1D TID.000815, representing 10 shares, asked: 1. As one of
the industrial and other real estate developers, along with the agricultural and petroleum
sectors, how will TID contribute to the private economic growth target of 10-12%/year
set by Resolution 68? 2. How does TID evaluate the current administrative reform
process and reduction of investment procedures in Dong Nai and other provinces? What
does TID expect from institutional reform policies to accelerate investment disbursement,
especially in industrial park projects, BOT, and inter-regional transport infrastructure? 3.
What financial policies does TID consider necessary to support industrial park real estate
developers during a period of rapid growth but lacking long-term capital? 4. What is the
basis for the company setting a record high after-tax profit plan of 672 billion VND for
2025? Where will this profit mainly come from, and what is the completion rate? What
is the preliminary information on Q2/2025 business results? 5. In the context of the world
strongly promoting clean energy transition and Vietnam's commitment to achieving net-
zero emissions by 2050, what are TID's plans to adapt to the trend of reducing reliance
on fossil fuels? How will the increasing popularity of electric vehicles and car
manufacturers gradually abandoning internal combustion engines affect TID's current
petroleum business operations? 6. Regarding the agricultural sector, which accounts for
over 50% of TID's revenue, how does the continuous strong fluctuation of world coffee
prices, along with unstable logistics costs and exchange rates, affect the profit margin of
TID's agricultural sector? Does the company have any risk hedging tools? What is the
outlook for coffee in the coming period?

* Response from the Presidium:

- The Board of Directors' report also stated that the Corporation focuses on
production and business activities in 04 main areas, and the Corporation's development
strategy until 2030 also sets the goal of focusing on developing the petroleum and
agricultural business sectors. Therefore, the shareholder's questions have been answered.
Within the scope of the general meeting, the following key contents of shareholder
interest will be clarified:

+ Regarding two-digit development: the Corporation's development is closely linked
to other economic sectors; if the Corporation develops, it will also contribute to the
development of other economic sectors and thus contribute to the overall two-digit
development goal of Dong Nai Province.

+ Regarding the 2024 profit plan: the Corporation will and is implementing a plan to
divest ineffective investments, recover debts to reverse provisions, carry out restructuring
to increase efficiency in financial operations, and focus investment and business activities
on the main business sectors where the Corporation has strengths.

+ Regarding issues related to Resolution 68: the Corporation's development has a
relationship and impact on economic sectors, including a close relationship between
state-owned enterprises and private enterprises. Currently, the whole country and all
economic sectors are focusing on implementing solutions to develop according to the
spirit of Resolution 68.

- 6/18 -



+ Risk hedging methods in the coffee business: focus on immediate buy and sell,
prioritize export to bonded warehouses.

+ Regarding the response plan in the petroleum business: focus on business in
appropriate customer segments, including linking with some partners to invest in
charging stations and provide clean energy to suit the current customer segment.

3. Shareholder with ID TID.000077, representing 49,767 shares, asked: 1) What
percentage of the Corporation's total revenue is estimated to come from direct and
indirect exports to the US (including subsidiaries, associates, and customers in industrial
parks)? What is the approximate localization rate in the Corporation's key export products
and enterprises in industrial parks? 3) US Reciprocal tariff scenarios do not seem to be
integrated into the 2025 financial plan. When does the Board of Management intend to
update this? And if the US imposes a 46% tax from July (afier a 90-day suspension
period), how is it estimated to affect revenue in the last 6 months of the year?

* Response from the Presidium:

- Regarding direct and indirect export revenue to the US: the Corporation only
exports directly with revenue of 46,392 billion VND, accounting for 2.29%, so it does
not significantly affect US tax policies.

- Regarding the localization rate in the Corporation's export products: it accounts for
1, of total export revenue. For the localization rate in enterprises within industrial parks,
please contact the Management Board of Provincial Industrial Parks for accurate data.

6. Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Van, The Head of the Vote Counting Committee guided and
led the SECOND vote using electronic voting.

7. The General Meeting proceeded with the SECOND vote.

As of the SECOND voting time (10 hours 00 minutes), the total number of
shareholders attending and authorized to attend is: 40/814 shareholders, owning and
representing ownership of 197,017,722/200,000,000 voting shares, accounting for
98.5089% of the total number of attendance and voting shares.

(Appendix: List of attending and authorized shareholders attached.)

8. Electing additional members to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisor
of Tin Nghia Corporation for Term II (2021-2026).

8.1. Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Van presented for the General Meeting's approval the
Regulations on nomination, candidacy and supplementary election of members of
the Board of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisor of Tin Nghia
Corporation, term II (2021 — 2026) (Regulations attached).

8.2. Mr. Tran Trung Tuan presented for the General Meeting's consideration and
approval the following two proposals:

a) Proposal regarding the dismissal of members of the Board of Directors and
members of the Board of Supervisors Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 -

2026).

-7/18 -

=\

A=




b) Proposal regarding the number and list of candidates for the election of
additional members to the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors of Tin

Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026).

8.3. Ms, Nguyen Thi Thuy Van - The Head of the Vote Counting Committee guided

and led the THIRD vote using electronic voting.

9. The General Meeting proceeded with the THIRD vote.

As of the THIRD voting time (10 hours 20 minutes), the total number of
shareholders attending and authorized to attend is: 40/814 shareholders, owning and
representing ownership of 197,017,722/200,000,000 voting shares, accounting for
08.5089% of the total number of attendance and voting shares.

(Appendix: List of attending and authorized shareholders attached.)

10. Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Van - The Head of the Vote Counting Committee announced
the results of the SECOND and THIRD votes

Voting results:

Content 1. Report of the Board of Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation on the
business results of 2024 and the plan for 2025.

Approving the Report of the Board of Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation on the
business results of 2024 and the plan for 2025 (Attached Report) with some key indicators

as follows:
% Comparison of 2024
Actual
Target Unit 2024 Plan 2925
Actual - Same
period
. Billion
Total consolidated revenue VND 10,000 12,125 | 121.25% 137.06%
e Billion
Of which: Parent Company VND 6,000 7,675 | 127.92% 181.73%
Billion 0
Profit after tax VND 250 4251 169.82% 163.51%
! Billion
Of which: Parent Company VND 220 247 | 112.23% 110.97%
Dividends (*) % 10 11| 110.00% 110.00%

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.
+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.
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e Approve: 197,017,621 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

o Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

o Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Content 2. Report of the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation on
the performance results of 2024 and the control plan for 2025.

Approving the Report of the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation on the
performance results of 2024 and the control plan for 2025 (drtached Report).

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.

s Approve: 197,017,621 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Content 3. The Audited Financial Statements for 2024,

Approving the financial statements of Tin Nghia Corporation for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024 (including consolidated financial statements and separate
financial statements) audited and certified by AASC Auditing Company Limited
(AASC), and inspected by the Board of Supervisors of the Corporation (Aftached

Report).
Voting results:
+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.
+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.
+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,621 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.
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e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Content 4. The profit distribution plan for the year 2024.

Approving the profit distribution plan of Tin Nghia Corporation for 2024 with some
key indicators as follows:

Unit: VND.
No. Explanation Amount
Profit after tax on the consolidated financial
1 statements for 2024 424,554,957,882
2 Profit after tax on the separate financial statements 246,902,476,136
for 2024
3 Profit distribution for 2024 238,345,123,807
Appropriation for the Investment and Development
3zl Fund (5% of PAT) 12,345,123,807
39 Approp'natlon for the Reward and Welfare Fund (2 6,000,000,000
months' salary)
3.3 | Dividend payout for 2024 (11% of charter capital) 220,000,000,000
4 Remaining profit after tax for 2024 (4=2-3) 8,557,352,329

Based on the actual profit of 2024 and undistributed after-tax profit according to
the parent company's financial statements as of December 31, 2024, approving the
rate of setting up the funds as mentioned above and agreeing to pay dividends for 2024
at the rate of 11%/par value of shares in cash.

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.

e Approve: 196,967,854 votes, accounting for 99,974% of the total voting
shares of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9747% of
the total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.
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o Abstain: 49,767 votes, accounting for 0.0253% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0.0253% of the total
voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Content 5. The 2025 business production and operation plan targets and
expected dividend payout ratio for 2025.

Approving the production and business plan targets for 2025 and the expected
dividend payout ratio for 2025 with the following key indicators:

1. Total consolidated revenue: 11,700 Billion VND.
Of which, the Parent Company: 7,600 Billion VND.

2. Consolidated profit after tax: 672 Billion VND.
Of which, the Parent Company: 622 Billion VND.

3. Dividend payout ratio/charter capital (minimum) in cash: 12%.

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,621 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting,.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Content 6. The finalization of remuneration, salary, and bonuses for 2024 and
the estimate of remuneration, salary, and bonuses for 2025 of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation.

1. Approval of the final settlement of remuneration expenses for the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors to be paid in 2024 is 4,466,666,673 VND, and a
bonus equivalent to 5% of profit after tax exceeding the plan is 1,345,123,807 VND.

2. Approving the estimate of remuneration, salaries, bonuses of the Board of
Directors, Board of Supervisors in 2025 as follows:

a) Remuneration for members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board
of Supervisors: The total remuneration for members of the Board of Directors and
members of the Board of Supervisors in 2025 is 864,000,000 VND (The total
remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors is after personal

income tax).
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b) Salaries of full-time members of the Board of Directors and full-time members
of the Board of Supervisors: Paid from the Corporation's Salary Fund .

c¢) Bonuses for members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of
Supervisors: The bonus amount for members of the Board of Directors and members of
the Board of Supervisors in 2025 is capped at 5% based on the after-tax profit exceeding

the 2025 plan.

d) Authorize the Board of Directors of the Corporation to decide on the specific
remuneration, salaries, and bonuses for each member of the Board of Directors and
member of the Board of Supervisors, and be responsible for public disclosure and
transparency in accordance with regulations.

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.
+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,621 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Content 7. The selection of an auditing firm for the 2025 Financial Statements.

1. Approve the list of independent audit firms to be selected to audit the 2025
Financial Statements of Tin Nghia Corporation as follows:

No. Auditing Company Name
1 PwC (Vietnam) Limited
2 Emst & Young Vietnam Co., Ltd. (E&Y)
3 AASC Auditing Firm Limited (AASC)
4 A&C Auditing and Consuiting Company Limited

2. Authorize the Board of Directors of the Corporation to select one of the 04 (four)
audit firms from the above list to audit the 2025 Financial Statements of Tin Nghia

Corporation.

3. In the event that an agreement cannot be reached with the aforementioned 04
(four) audit firms, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the
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Board of Directors to select 01 (one) other audit firm from the list approved by the State
Securities Commission as eligible to audit public companies and listed companies to
audit the 2025 Financial Statements of Tin Nghia Corporation.

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.

+ Total valid b voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,621 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Content 8. Approving the Regulations on nomination, candidacy and
supplementary election of members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board
of Supervisor of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 — 2026) (Regulations attached).

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,621 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of sharcholders present at the meeting.

Content 9. The dismissal of members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Board of Supervisors Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026).

Approving the dismissal of positions of members of the Board of Directors and
members of the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026)
for the following individuals:

1. Mr. Tran Hoai Nam — Member of the Board of Directors.
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2. Mr. Nguyen Thanh Dat — Member of the Board of Directors.

3. Mr. Tran Ngoc Tho — Independent Member of the Board of Directors.

4. Mr. Tran Tan Nhat — Head of the Board of Supervisors.
5. Mr. Nguyen Quoc Ky - Member of the Board of Supervisors.

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,621 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

¢ Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Content 10. Approving the number and list of candidates for the election of
additional members to the Board of Directors and members to the Board of Supervisor
of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026):

1. Electing additional members to the Board of Directors:

1. Approving the number of members of the Board of Directors to be additionally
elected: 01 member.

2. Approving the list and results of the additional election to the Board of
Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026), including the following

individuals:
No. ! Full name | Year | Gender ID number Professional Current Form of
of qualifications position candidacy/
birth nomination
Saigon
Investment
M £ Wepuy Construction
Nguyen Cao R pneral and Building
1 & 1969 Male 064069000700 Business Director of -
Nhon iy d x y Construction
Administration | Tin Nghia :
Corporation Materlzfl
Corporation
nominated

(Detailed curriculum vitae attached)
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I Electing additional members to the Board of Supervisors:

1. Approving the number of members of the Board of Supervisors to be
additionally elected: 02 members.

2. Approving the list and results of the additional election to the Board of
Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026), including the following

individuals:
ety Professional Current BOMEN
No. { Full name of Gender ID number - . s candidacy/
birth qualifications | position — - .o
Chief
Accountant
of Dong
Nai Import
Le Kim Bachelor of Export Tin Nghia
I Thao 1980 | Female | 075180001809 Accounting Processing | Corporation
and Auditing | Agricultural | nominated
Products
and Foods
Joint Stock
Company
Saigon
Deputy Investment
o Bhgieerdin Director of Constrgct!on
2 | a1 ] 1988 | Female | 034188006535 | Construction Bhugsidn | apiibuliding
am Hong Economics BOT Construction
Company Material
Limited Corporation
nominated

(S

(Detailed curriculum vitae attached)

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,017,722 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,017,722 votes.
+ Total valid voting shares: 197,017,621 votes/197,017,722 votes.

e Approve: 197,017,621 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the
total voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Van - The Head of the Vote Counting Committee guided
the online election process.
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12. The General Meeting proceeded with the election.

As THE ELECTION time (10 hours 37 minutes), the total number of shareholders
attending and authorized to attend is: 42/814 shareholders, owning and representing
ownership of 197,019,079/200,000,000 voting shares, accounting for 98.5095% of the
total number of attendance and voting shares.

(Appendix: List of attending and authorized shareholders attached.)

13. Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Van - The Head of the Vote Counting Committee
announced the results of the vote for additional members to the Board of Directors

and the Board of Supervisor of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 - 2026) as
follows:

13.1. Results of the election for additional members to the Board of Directors of Tin
Nghia Corporation, term II (2021-2026):

No. Full name Ye-a ok Number of votes Rate %
birth
| Nguyen Cao Nhon 1969 197,000,957 100

Thus, Mr. Nguyen Cao Nhon has been elected as a member of the Board of
Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021-2026).

13.2. Results of the election for additional members to the Board of Supervisor of Tin
Nghia Corporation, term II (2021-2026):

No. Full name Ye.a Ik Number of votes Rate %
birth

1 Le Kim Thao 1980 197,002,104 100.0006

2 | Mai Thi Tham Hong 1988 196,999,810 99,9994

Thus, Ms. Le Kim Thao and Ms. Mai Thi Tham Hong has been elected as a
member of the Board of Supervisor of Tin Nghia Corporation, term 1I (2021-2026).

Part IV. CONCLUSION OF THE GENERAL MEETING.
1. Mr. Tang Tran Tan Khai presented the Draft Meeting Minutes.
2. Ms. Nguyen Thi My Nga presented the Draft Meeting Resolution.

3. Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Van - The Head of the Vote Counting Committee guided and
led the FOURTH vote using electronic voting.
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4. The General Meeting proceeded with the FOURTH vote.

5. Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Van - The Head of the Vote Counting Committee announced
the results of the FOURTH votes.

As of the FOURTH voting time (11 hours 37 minutes), the total number of
shareholders attending and authorized to attend is: 42/814 shareholders, owning and
representing ownership of 197,019,079/200,000,000 voting shares, accounting for
98.5095% of the total number of attendance and voting shares.

(Appendix: List of attending and authorized shareholders attached.)
5.1. Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,019,079 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,019,079 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,018,978 votes/197,019,079 votes.

e Approve: 197,018,978 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the total
voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

« Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of shareholders
attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders present at the meeting.

5.2. Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Voting results:

+ Total voting shares issued: 197,019,079 votes.

+ Total invalid voting shares: 101 votes/197,019,079 votes.

+ Total valid voting shares: 197,018,978 votes/197,019,079 votes.

» Approve: 197,018,978 votes, accounting for 100% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending and voting, and representing 99.9999% of the total
voting shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

 Disapprove: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of
shareholders attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting
shares of shareholders present at the meeting.

e Abstain: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of shareholders
attending and voting, and representing 0% of the total voting shares of
sharcholders present at the meeting.
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6. Ms. Dang Thi Thanh Ha, The Presidum delivered the closing remarks for the
General Meeting.

7. The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Tin Nghia Corporation
concluded at 11 hours and 45 minutes on the same day.

8. The Meeting Minutes were prepared on-site and read aloud to the entire General
Meeting. Five (05) copies were made and are kept at the headquarters of Tin Nghia
Corporation.

9. The list of registered shareholders attending, and authorized representatives of
attending shareholders, with their corresponding shareholdings and voting rights, 8
attached as an Appendix to the Meeting Minutes.

10. The Minutes and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Tin Nghia Corporation will be posted on the company's website, at
www tinnehiacorp.com.vn, within 24 hours from the date the General Meeting
concludes. '

ON BEHALF OF THE SECRETARY ONBEHALF OF THE PRESIDIUM
HEAD OF COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON

Tang Tran Tan Khai Dang Thi Thanh Ha
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TIN NGHIA CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
The Committee for Checking the Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Eligibility for Convening —-000---

G; )JRT ON VOTER ELIGIBILITY
| mhAnnuh}/ﬁEneral Meeting of Shareholders 2025

'\ O\ | LIV 1YLl
WN NGHIA CORPORATION

As at 08:00, June 11th, 2025, at Headquarters of Tin Nghia Corporation - Address: No. 96, Ha Huy Giap,
Trung Dung Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai province, The Committee for Checking the Eligibility for
Convening the Congress, which comprises:

Ms. Duong Thi Minh Hong  Position: Head of The Committee for Checking the Eligibility for Convening
Ms. Phung Phuong Tam Position: Member of The Committee for Checking the Eligibility for Convening

Legally, The Committee for Checking the Eligibility for Convening the Congress checking the
cligibility of shareholders to attend the the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders 2025, with the
results as follows:

Voters attending: 12
Voters authorized: 25
Represent: 197,017,611 shares - account for: 98.5088% voting shares

Pursuant to the current law and the Articles of Association of the Company, Annual General Meeting
of Sharcholders 2025 of TIN NGHIA CORPORATION with the above voter turnout is eligible for
opening.

The Report on Voter Eligibility was determined at 08:00, June 11th, 2025 and reported publicly prior

to the opening of the Meeting.
June 11th, 2025

ON BEHALF OF THE COMMITTEE FOR
CHECKING THE ELIGIBILITY FOR
CONVENING
MEMBER HEAD

s [

Phung Phuong Tam Dueng Thi Minh Hong



CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Pioc lip - Tr do - Hanh phic

CONG TY CO PHAN TONG CONG TY TiN NGHiA
Ban kiém tra dleu kién tién hanh Pai hi

/ ,.ﬂ ON \ ---000—-
Sy

o/ TONG

[ cd IQG‘T‘? Al BIEU THAM DU DAL HOI BONG CO BONG THUGNG NIEN NAM 2025
o 10 Gidrin bao cdo: 08 gid 00 phiit, ngay 11 thiang 6 nim 2025

x\o\TfN NGHIA,

Ban kiém tra diéu kién tién hanh Pai hdi kinh giri Quy Cong ty Danh sach Pai biéu tham dy Pai hai ddng cd déng thudmg nién nam 2025:

Kinh giri: Cong ty C& phdn Tng Céng ty Tin Nghia

STT | Ma Dai biéu Hg v tén Tinh trang S6 lwgng $6 lugng CP Téng sb hrong Ti 18 Thoi gian
) Dai biéu tham dur CP si hiru nhin iy quyén CP dai dién

I | TID.000DE2 | HUYNH BICH NGOQC| True tuyén 59.332 0 59.332 0,0297% 10:56 09/06/2025

2 | TID.000772 [ PANG THANH Tryc tuyén 18.021 0 18.021 0,0090% 14:29 09/06/2025
THUY

3| TID.000200 | NGUYEN CONG Trire tuyén 18.509 0 18.509 0,0093% 17:09 09/06/2025

4 | TID.000077 | HUYNH QUOC VIET | Tryrc tuyén 49.767 0 49.767 0,0249% 17:25 09/06/2025

5 | TID.000817 | Luong Anh Ta True tuyén 0 9.900.000 9.900.000 4.9500% 13:49 10/06/2025

6 | TID.000820 | NGUYEN CAO Truc tuyén 0 90.804.305 90.804.305 45,4022% 15:30 10/06/2025
NHON

7 | TID.000819 | TRAN TRUNG TUAN] Trirc tuyén 0 2.100 2,100 0,0011% 16:15 10/06/2025

8 | TID.000818 [ BPANG THI THANH | Truc tuyén 0 96.152.195 96.152.195 48,0761% 16:19 10/06/2025
HA

9 | TID.000687 | VO NHU THANH Trye tuyén 500 0 500 0,0003% 07:30 11/06/2025
BINH

10 [ TID.000433 | NGUYEN THI THUY | Tryc tuyén 12.781 0 12.781 0,0064% |  07:34 11/06/2025
VAN
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STT | Ma Pai biéu Hg v tén Tinh trang S4 lugng §6 lugmg CP Tbng s6 lwrgng Tilg Thai gian
) Dai bieu tham dy CP s& hiru nhén Gy quyén CP dai dién
11 | TID.000225 | NGUYEN KHAC Trrc tuyén 91 0 91 0,0000% 07:36 11/06/2025
THANH
12 | TID.000815 [ CONG TY CO PHAN | Tryc tuyén 10 0 10 0,0000% |  07:38 11/06/2025
TAI VIET
TONG 159.011 196.858.600 197.017.611 98,5088%

272

g Ngay 1] thang 6 nam 2025
BAN KIEM TRA PIEU KIEN TIEN HANH DAl HO1

/ /
. "
// / —

v/, L’—f‘"
DUONG THI MINH HONG




Danh séch Dai bidu ity quyén dyr Dai hai dbng cd dbng thudng nién nam 2025,

CONG TY CO PHAN TONG CONG TY TiN NGHIA

Ban kiém tra diéu kién tién hanh Pai hdi

BAO CAO

Pée ldp - Tu do - Hanh phiie
---0{o—-

CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

DANH SACH PAI BIEU UY QUYEN THAM DY PAI HOI BONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025
Gitr in bdo cdo: 08 gitr 00 phat, ngay 11 thang 6 nim 2025

172

STT |Ngay shif{ Ma Dai biéu Ho tén Dai biéu M3 Dai bién [Ho tén Dai bitu nhin| SL Phié‘u hié:l Tinh trang
iy quyén| ity quydn iiy quyén nhin UQ iy quyén quyét ay quyen | phé duygt UQ
1| G6/06/2025 | TID.000813 CONG TY CO PHAN TID.000817 Luong Anh Ta 9.900.000 Da phé duyét
SONADEZI GIANG
DPIEN
2 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000079 HUYNH VAN TO TID.000818 BANG TH| THANH 24679 | D phé duyét
HA
3 | 16/06/2025 | TID.000019 BUI THI HOA VIEN TID.000818 DANG TH| THANH 16 b phé duyét
HA
4 110/06/2025 | TID.000&1G TINI UY BONG Nal | TID.000818 DANG TH] THANH 96.125.000 | Daphé duyét il
HA /;‘:\.O‘Nc
. Sy o
5 | 10/06/2025 | TID.00D0522 PHAN TH] LOI TID.000818 DANG THI THANH 500 | Paphé duyégﬁ } TO?
HA s
. = CONC
6 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000478 NGO TH] HONG TID.000818 DANG TH] THANH 2000 | Daphé duyéts
CHAU HA W TINN
7 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000140 LE GIANG NAM TID.000819 TRAN TRUNG TUAN 2.100 | Daphe duyet\‘\ & »
8 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000810 CONG TY TNHH XAY| TID.000820 NGUYEN CAQ 420.000 | D4 phé duyét
DUNG DAT LONG NHON
PHU
9 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000808 CONG TY TNHH T™M | TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 400.500 | D4 phé duyét
DV TAILOC VN NHON
10 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000804 CONG TY CO PHAN | TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 531.600 | Daphe duyst
DAU TU PHAT TRIEN NHON
NAM BONG SAI GON
11 | 10/06/2025 | TID.O00812 CONG TY COPHAN | TID.CD0820 NGUYEN CAQ 49.913.939 | Daphe duyét
DAU TU XAY DUNG NHON
VA VAT LIEU XAY
DUNG SAI GON
12 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000S17 PHAM VAN KHANH | TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 2.862.191 ba phé duyét
NHON
13 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000807 CONG TY TNHH AN | TID.000820 NGUYEN CAQ 209.749 | B3 phé duyét
BINH THINH PHAT NHON



STT |Ngay nhay| Ma Pai biéu Ho tén Dai biéu Ma Dai biéu |Ho tén Dai biu nhin| SL Phiéu bié:i Tinh trang
iy quyén iiy quyén iy quyén nhin UQ iy quyén quyet dy quyén | phé duyét UQ
14 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000811 CONG TY TNHH BAU| TID.000820 NGUYEN CAD 240400 | Daphé duyét
TU XAY DUNG NHON
THUONG MAI VA
DICH VU HA VUONG
PHAT
15 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000108 LE PHUGNG LINH TID.000820 NGUYEN CAOQ 1.872.600 | Da phé duyét
NHON
16 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000805 CONG TY CO PHAN | TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 400.000 [ Dapheé duyét
PAU TU PHAT TRIEN NHON
NAM DONG SAI GON
17 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000809 CONG TY TNHHTM | TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 980.000 ba phé duyét
DV DAl LOC PHAT 68 NHON
18 | 10/06/2025 | TID.00080Z2 CONG TY CO PHAN | TID.000820 NGUYEN CAQ 2955500 | Da phé duyét
HANG HOA KY LAN NHON
19 | 10/06/2025 | TID.0C0626 TRAN BA TAI TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 4.973.316 bi phé duyét
NHON
20 | 10/06/2025 1 TID.000B14 CONG TY TNHH DjCHj TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 1.697.600 P phé duyét
VU XAY DUNG BIA NHON
OC PHUC LOC THINH ' Co‘%
IG N\
- z.\
21 | 10/06/2025 | TID.0008DG CONG TY TNHH AN | TID.000820 NGUYEN CAQ 1.603.100 | PAPKE dﬁgé’)
i A NHON e o)
BINH THINH PHAT _:HIA/-E‘-I
22 |10/062025 | TID.000630 TRAN NHAN TAM TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 8254400 | Paphe gngj;’:
23 | 10/06/2025 | TID.000131 LE BINH NGHIEM TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 7.020.410 | Da phé duyét
NHON
24 | 10/06/2025 | TID.OO0A3] TRAN PHI HUNG TID.000820 NGUYEN CAO 5.374.700 Pa phé duyét
NHON
25 | 10/062025 | TID.000067 HOANG THANH TID.000820 NGUYEN CAQ 1.094.300 | Paphé duyét
HUNG NHON
TONG 196.858.600

. Ngay 11 thang 6 nam 2025
TM. BAN KIEM TRA PIEU K1EN TIEN HANH DAI HOI

/7/

M —

DUONG THI MINH HONG
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TIN NGHTA CORPORATION

No: 8% /TTr - HDQT

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Bien Hoa, May 93, 2025

PROPOSAL

Regarding the approval of the Presiding Board, the Secretary Board,

Ballot Counting Committee for voting and election

To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter of Tin Nghia Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Tin

Nghia Corporation”),

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the composition of the Presiding Board, the Secretary
Board, and the Ballot Counting Committee for voting and election as follows:

No. Full name

Title

Note

I. PRESIDING BOARD

1 | Ms. Dang Thi Thanh Ha

Chairman of the Board of

Chairman of

the Corporation

Directors the Board
> |V Tran Trong Tuan | PR S0 | Menmber
II. SECRETARY BOARD
1 | Mr. Tang Tran Tan Khai I[_)IZZi rtmeorft e . oEgsiancs Di:fnclfnt
2 | Ms. Nguyen Thi My Nga Deputy Director of the Office of Mermber

III. BALLOT COUNTING COMMITTEE FOR VOTING AND ELECTION

1 | Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Van

Chief Accountant

Head of the
committee




No. Full name Title Note

2 | Mr. Le Dinh Son General Corporation Office Member

Accountin and Finance
& Member

3 | Mrs. Nguyen Nhu Huynh Department

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting for consideration and approval as
a basis for implementation./.

Recipiediny 2 ON BEHALF OF
- As above; THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Archive: Meeting Documents, BOD’s

Document.

Dang Thi Thanh Ha



TIN NGHIA CORPORATION

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

AGENDA
THE 29253%=P(§NUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
B~
[/ &/ TONG \
8’ CANGTY ) Agenda Presenter
28 ey
N B@/I TRATION FOR ATTENDING THE
\%MNERAL ASSEMBLY
Og 8330A31M_ Shareholders log in to participate online
Verify the procedures for shareholders attending the Organizing
General Assembly. Committee
II. RITUAL OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY
08:00 AM — State the reasons and introduce the delegates.
Lo Report the results of verifying the number and percentage 82%2?;12&2 E
of shareholders present and the conditions for conducting
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025.
[II. CONTENT AND AGENDA OF THE MEETING
Introduce and approve of the Presiding Board, the Ormanizin
Secretary Board, Ballot Counting Committee for voting Co%nmitteg
and election.
Approve of the Presiding Board, the Secretary Board, | Organizing
8:10 AM — | Ballot Counting Committee for voting and election. Committee
§:25 AM
Approve the Agenda of the Meeting gf)gmaﬁftltlgi
Approve the Working regulations of the Meeting 8;%;1mm 1Zt]tI;§
The meeting votes to approve of the Presiding Board,
825 AM — | the Secretary Board, Ballot Counting Committee for | The Presiding
8:30 AM voting and election, Agenda of the Meeting and Board
Working regulations of the Meeting.
_ Report of the Board of Directors regarding Business b
8;_)85%_ performance results for 2024 and plan for 2025 of Tin Theé’;&:;:idmg

Nghia Corporation.




Time

Agenda

Presenter

9:05 AM —
9:20 AM

Report of the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia
Corporation regarding performance results for the year
2024 supervision plan for the year 2023

Ban kiem
soat

9:20 AM —
9:55 AM

Approve the proposals:

1. Proposal regarding the approval of the Audited Financial
Statements for 2024.

2. Proposal regarding the profit distribution plan for the
year 2024.

3.Proposal regarding the 2025 business production and
operation plan targets and expected dividend payout ratio
for 2025.

4. Proposal regarding the finalization of remuneration,
salary, and bonuses for 2024 and the estimate of
remuneration, salary, and bonuses for 2025 of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors.

5. Proposal regarding the selection of an auditing firm for
the 2025 Financial Statements.

The Presiding
Board

9:55 AM —
10:15 AM

The meeting discusses and votes to approve 2 reports
and 5 proposals.

10:15 AM -
10:30 AM

Approve the contents for the election of additional
members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Board of Supervisors:

1. Regulations on the Nomination, Candidacy, and
Election of additional members of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors at the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders in 2023.

2. Proposal regarding the dismissal of members of the
Board of Directors and members of the Board of
Supervisors Tin Nghia Corporation, term II (2021 — 2026).

3. Notice regarding the nomination and candidacy of
additional members expected to be elected Board of
Directors and Board of Supervisors, term II (2021 - 2026).

The Presiding
Board

10:30 AM —
10:40 AM

The meeting discusses and votes to approve the
Regulations on the Nomination, Candidacy, and
Election of additional members of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors, along with 2
proposals.




Time Agenda Presenter
Ballot
Proceed with the election of additional members of the Counting
10:40 AM — . :
e Board of Directors and members of the Board of | Committee
10:50 AM : :
Supervisors. for voting and
election
10:50 AM - . :
11:05 AM Break — Counting the election votes.
Announce the results of the additional election of members
of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of Baltot
11:05 AM — | Supervisors, term IT (2021-2026). Counting
11:15 AM _ Committee
- The elected members of the _Board of Directors and | g5, voting and
members of the Board of Supervisors are introduced to the Slectian
meeting.
[V. CLOSING OF THE MEETING
11:15 AM -
Ll Approve the Minutes of the Meeting. Tize Seeretary
Board
11:25 AM - : : The Secretary
11:35 AM Approve the Resolution of the meeting. Board
11:35 AM — | Vote to approve the minutes and the resolution of the The Presiding
11:40 AM | Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025, Board
11:40 AM — . : The Presiding
11:50 AM Closing of the Meeting Board




TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Bien Hoa, May- 34, 2025

WORKING REGULATIONS

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
TIN NGHIA CORPORATION

Chapter I
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1. Scope and subjects of application

1. This regulation applies to the organization of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2025 (hereinafter referred to as the "Meeting") of Tin Nghia
Corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Tin Nghia Corporation" or "the Corporation”).

2. This regulation specifies the rights and obligations of the parties participating
in the Meeting, conditions, and procedures for conducting the Meeting.

3. Shareholders and parties participating in the Meeting are responsible for
implementing the regulations in this Regulation.

Chapter I

CONDITIONS FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING, RIGHTS AND
OBLIGATIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS, PARTICIPANTS IN THE MEETING

Article 2. Conditions for attending the Meeting

1. All shareholders whose names are on the list of shareholders finalized on
12/5/2025, have the right to attend the online Meeting through the Electronic Voting
System or authorize their autherized representatives to attend. In case more than one
authorized representative is appointed according to the law to attend, the number of
shares of each representative must be specifically determined.

2. When attending online, shareholders and authorized representatives attending
the Meeting should note:

a) Technical requirements: It is necessary to have an electronic device connected
to the internet (e.g., computer, tablet, mobile phone, other electronic devices with
internet connection).

b) Implementation method: Access the link, log in according to the information
provided to attend the online Meeting and perform electronic voting.

1




¢) Method of recording Delegates attending the online General Meeting of
Shareholders: Delegates are recorded by the electronic voting system as attending the
online General Meeting of Shareholders when Delegates access the system using the
access information provided in the meeting invitation and have performed
"Confirmation of attendance at the online General Meeting of Shareholders" on the
electronic voting system.

Article 3. Rights of shareholders when attending the Meeting

1. Being publicly informed by the Meeting Organizing Committee of the contents
of the Meeting agenda.

2. Being able to participate in discussions and vote on issues under the authority of the
Meeting in accordance with the Law on Enterprises.

3. The voting value of the Electronic Ballot corresponds to the number of voting
shares that the person owns or represents under authorization.

Article 4. Obligations of shareholders who meet the conditions to attend the
Meeting

1. Shareholders and authorized representatives attending the Meeting need to
have an electronic device connected to the Internet, access the link, and log in
according to the information provided by the Corporation to attend the online Meeting
and perform electronic voting.

2. Keep confidential the access names, passwords, and other identifiers provided
by the Corporation to ensure that only shareholders have the right to vote on the
system. All voting results of shareholders through the access name and password
provided by the Corporation will be officially considered as the will of the shareholder.
The Corporation is not responsible for any disputes (if any) between shareholders
related to the re-authentication of electronic voting through the shareholder's access
account. Shareholders are fully responsible before the law and before the Corporation
for the electronic voting results performed through the shareholder's access account on
the system.

3. Comply with the regulations in this Charter, the control of the Presiding Board,
and respect the working results at the Meeting.

Article 5. The Committee for Verification of Eligibility to Convene the
Meeting

1. The Committee for Verification of Eligibility to Convene the Meeting is
established by the Organizing Committee of the Meeting.

2. The Committee for Verification of Eligibility to Convene the Meeting is
responsible for:

a) Checking the eligibility of shareholders to attend the Meeting, determining the
validity in accordance with the law and comparing it with the list of shareholders
entitled to attend the meeting, which was finalized on 12/5/2025.

b) Reporting to the Meeting and being responsible for the results of checking the
2




eligibility for convening the General Meeting of Shareholders before the Meeting is
officially conducted.

¢) The Committee for Verification of Eligibility to Convene the Meeting has the
right to establish a support division to complete the tasks of the Committee.

Article 6. The Vote Counting and Election Committee

1. The Vote Counting and Election Committee (hereinafter referred to as "the Vote
Counting Committee™) consists of 03 people nominated by the Organizing Committee
and approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

2. The Vote Counting Committee has the following duties:

a) Preparing the vote counting record and being responsible to the Presiding
Board and the General Meeting of Shareholders when performing its duties.

b) Accurately determining the voting results of shareholders on issues that need to be
consulted for approval at the Meeting.

c) Organizing the vote counting for the election, preparing a record to determine the
results of the election of additional members to the Board of Supervisors.

d) Reporting the vote counting results to the Meeting.

Article 7. Rights and obligations of the Presiding Board

1. The Presiding Board consists of a Chairman and a number of members
approved by the Meeting through voting, and has the function of controlling the
Meeting.

2. Rights and obligations of the Presiding Board:

a) Managing the activities of the Meeting according to the program approved by
the Meeting. Carrying out the tasks deemed necessary to conduct the Meeting in an
orderly manner, in accordance with the approved program and reflecting the wishes of
the majority of attending shareholders.

b) Submitting drafts on the necessary contents for the Meeting to vote on.
¢) Guiding delegates and the Meeting in discussions.
d) Answering questions raised by the Meeting or assigning people to answer.

e) The Presiding Board's decision on issues of order, procedures or events arising
outside the program of the Meeting will be the highest judgment.

f) The Presiding Board may postpone the Meeting meeting to another time in
accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law and the Charter of the
Corporation if it finds that:

- Attendees obstruct, cause disorder, or risk making the meeting not conducted
fairly and legally; or

- The means of communication at the meeting location do not ensure that
shareholders attending the meeting can participate, discuss and vote.

e
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Article 8. The Secretariat

1. The Secretariat consists of a Head and a number of members nominated by the
Board of Directors and approved by the Meeting through voting.

2. The Secretariat performs assistance tasks as assigned by the Presiding Board:
a) Fully and truthfully recording all contents at the Meeting.

b) Assisting the Presiding Board in announcing the Minutes and Draft
Resolutions of the Meeting, and notifications from the Presiding Board to shareholders

when requested.

¢) Receive and review the registration forms for delegates' speeches, and forward
them to the Presiding Committee for decision.

Chapter I11
ORDER OF CONGRESS

Article 9. Conditions for conducting the Meeting

1. The General Meeting of Sharcholders shall be conducted when the number of
attending shareholders and authorized representatives represents over 50% of the total
number of voting shares according to the shareholder list finalized on 12/5/2025.

2. In the event that the first meeting does not meet the conditions for conducting
the meeting as stipulated in Clause 1 of this Article, the notice of the second meeting
shall be sent within 30 days from the date of the intended first meeting. The second
General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted when the number of attending
shareholders represents 33% or more of the total voting shares.

3.In the event that the second meeting does not meet the conditions for
conducting the meeting as stipulated in Clause 2 of this Article, the notice of the third
meeting must be sent within 20 days from the date of the intended second meeting.
The third General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted regardless of the total
number of voting shares of the attending shareholders.

4. The proportion of shareholders attending the General Meeting of Shareholders
in online form is determined when the delegate has performed "Confirmation of
attendance at the online General Meeting of Shareholders" on the electronic voting
system as prescribed in point c, clause 2, Article 2 of this Regulation.

Article 10. Discussions at the Meeting

1. Principles:

a) Discussions shall only be conducted within the prescribed time and within the
scope of the issues presented in the Meeting's agenda.

b) Only shareholders and authorized representatives attending the Meeting are
allowed to participate in discussions.



c) Shareholders and authorized representatives attending the Meeting who wish
to register discussion content shall do so in the following prescribed forms:

- Ask questions in the Discussion section of the online congress attendance
interface at the link: https://ezgsm.fpts.com.vn or send an email (Questions are valid
when sent from the email registered in the shareholder list provided by the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation or the email registered by the
Shareholder in the Registration Form for attending the meeting or the authorization
that has been sent in hard copy to the Corporation) to: anh.dtl@tinnghiacorp.com.vn
(before the discussion).

_ The Secretariat will arrange the content of the Delegates’ questions and forward
them to the Chairperson.

2. Answering opinions of shareholders and authorized representatives:

a) Based on the questions forwarded by the Secretariat, the Chairperson or a
member designated by the Chairperson will answer the opinions of shareholders or
authorized representatives.

b) In case of time constraints, questions not answered directly at the Meeting will
be answered later by the Corporation via email or in writing.

Article 11. Electronic voting and election at the Meeting
1. Principles:

All issues in the program and content of the Meeting meeting must be discussed
and voted on publicly by the Meeting. Shareholders and authorized representatives
shall vote by electronic voting at the link: https://ezgsm.fpts.com.vn.

2. Electronic voting;:

a) Shareholders and authorized representatives select one of three voting options:
"Agree", "Disagree", or "Abstain" for each issue put to a vote at the Meeting that
has been set up in the electronic voting system.

b) Proceed to confirm the voting so that the electronic voting system records the
results.

3. Some other regulations when conducting electronic voting:

a) In the event that shareholders or authorized representatives do not complete
all voting matters according to the agenda of the General Meeting, the issues that have
not been voted on are considered as shareholders or authorized representatives who
did not vote on that issue.

b) In the event that issues arise outside of the agenda of the sent General Meeting,
shareholders or authorized representatives may cast additional votes. If shareholders
or authorized representatives do not vote on the arising issues, it is considered that the
shareholders or authorized representatives did not vote on that arising issue.

¢) Shareholders and authorized representatives may change their voting results
(but cannot cancel the voting results), including the additional voting results on issues
arising outside the agenda of the General Meeting. The online system only records the
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vote counting for the final voting results at the end of the electronic voting period of
each vote counting session as stipulated in Clause 4 of this Article.

d) Shareholders and authorized representatives can access the electronic voting
system (as instructed in the Invitation to Meeting) and vote 24 hours a day, except in
cases of system maintenance or other reasons beyond the control of the Corporation.
After the voting period ends, the system will not record any additional electronic
voting results from Delegates.

4. Electronic voting time:

a) The first voting contents (including the Agenda of the General Meeting; the
Working Regulations at the General Meeting; approving the composition of the
Presidium, the Secretariat, the Vote Counting and Election Committee): Shareholders
and authorized representatives shall vote from 10:00 A.M. on 09/6/2025 until before
the General Meeting approves the first voting contents.

b) The second voting contents (including the Reports of the Board of Directors,
the Supervisory Board and the Submissions): Shareholders and authorized
representatives shall vote from 10:00 A.M. on 09/6/2025 until before the General

Meeting approves the second voting contents.

c) The third voting contents (including the Regulations on Nomination,
Candidacy and Election of additional Members of the Board of Directors, Members
of the Supervisory Board and 03 Submissions): Shareholders and authorized
representatives shall vote from 10:00 A.M. on 09/6/2025 until before the General
Meeting approves the third voting contents.

d) Election content: Delegates shall elect additional members to the Board of
Directors and members to the Supervisory Board of Tin Nghia Corporation for term
IT from 10:00 A.M. on 09/6/2025 until before the General Meeting approves the
election content.

e) The fourth voting contents (Approving the Minutes and Resolutions of the
General Meeting): Shareholders and authorized representatives shall vote from 10:00
AM. on 09/6/2025 until before the General Meeting approves the fourth voting
contents.

5. Methods of election voting (as expressly stipulated in the election rules).

6. Cases of invalid ballot papers:
a) Ballot papers left blank;

b) Ballots with marks on 02 or more opinions on the issue for which opinions are
to be collected;

7. Recording of voting results:

The vote counting committee will check, summarize and report to the
Chairperson the vote counting results of each issue according to the agenda of the
General Meeting. The vote counting results will be announced by the Chairperson
immediately before the meeting adjourns.



Article 12. Approval of Minutes and Resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

1. Issues approved at the General Meeting must be approved by the number of
shareholders representing over 50% of the total voting shares of all attending

shareholders and authorized representatives, except for the contents specified In
Clause 2 of this Article.

2. For decisions on issues specified in Clause 1, Article 148 of the current
Enterprise Law and Clause 1, Article 20 of the Charter of the Corporation, it is required
to reach at least 65% or more of the total voting shares of all attending shareholders
and authorized representatives.

Article 13. Minutes and Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. All contents of the General Meeting must be recorded in the meeting minutes
by the Poan Secretary.

2. The meeting minutes and resolutions must be completed and approved before
the General Meeting adjourns and kept at Tin Nghia Corporation.

Chapter IV
IMPLEMENTATION PROVISIONS

Article 14, Implementation Provisions

1. This Regulation consists of 04 Chapters and 14 Articles, officially takes effect
and is immediately applied at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Tin Nghia Corporation after being approved by the number of shareholders
representing over 50% of the total voting shares of the attending shareholders and
authorized representatives.

2. The shareholders, authorized representatives, and members of the Organizing
Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Tin Nghia
Corporation are responsible for implementing this Regulation.

ON BEHALF OF
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Recipien@ CHAIRMAN
- As above; —
- Archive: Meeting Documents, BOD’s
Document.

Dang Thi Thanh Ha




TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No: 88 /BC-HDPQT
Bien Hoa, Mayad., 2025

REPORT
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS FOR 2024
AND PLAN FOR 2025

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

1. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS FOR 2024.

In 2024, the global commodity market was affected by the complex
developments of the world's political, economic, and social situation. Strategic
competition among major countries continued to be fierce and military conflicts
escalated in some countries, affecting peace and stability in the world, and weakening
the trade, investment, production, and consumption systems. However, after many
fluctuations, the world economy is gradually stabilizing as global commodity trade
improves again, inflationary pressures gradually decrease, financial conditions
continue to ease, and the labor supply increases.

Domestically, the production and business activities of enterprises still face
many difficulties, orders are not numerous or stable, product consumption is not
favorable, etc. Business is growing, but the increase 1s not high; the real estate market
shows signs of recovery but remains sluggish.

The Corporation's production and business activities in 2024 also faced many
difficulties: The coffee export sector has many potential risks due to reduced supply
(prolonged hot and dry weather) which has pushed coffee prices up and made them
very volatile; domestic coffee prices are always higher than export prices, making
balancing buying and selling very difficult; In the petroleum business sector,
consumption output decreased due to reduced fuel use by many factories, and the
volume of goods transported by transport units was also not high; The industrial park
and real estate sector was affected by the global economic recession, making it
difficult to exploit land, factories for lease, and real estate business... From the above
practical situation, the Corporation is implementing a strategy to restructure its
business operations, focusing on key and focused investment in 04 main business lines
(industrial park infrastructure, petroleum, logistics, agricultural products) and
divestment/transfer of assets in inefficient or low-efficiency subsidiaries/projects; at
the same time, streamlining personnel, etc. to the maximum to ensure business

efficiency in 2024 and the following years.

1. Business performance results for 2024.

1.1. Business results of the Corporation according to the Separate Financial

Statements.
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% Comparison to 2024
. 2024 2024 Performance
Target Unit
Plan Performance 2023
2024 Plan
Performance
Billion
Total revenue VND 6,000 7,675 127.92% 181.73%
Billion
Profit after tax VND 220 247 112.23% 110.97%
Main products
- Coffee tons 100,000 65,684 65.68% 98.89%
- Industrial park .
ke Tessine ha 23 22.5 97.62% 618.56%

The business performance of the Corporation in 2024 was positive and exceeded
the plan, as detailed below:

- Coffee business: The volume of coffee consumed in the year is 65,684 tons
(of which 18,669 tons are exported and 47,015 tons are sold domestically), reaching
only 65.68% of the plan and nearly equivalent to the same period. Revenue from
coffee business is 6,975 Billion VND, accounting for 91% of total revenue. Coffee
business operations are more efficient than in recent years.

- Industrial Park infrastructure leasing: In 2024, approximately 43 delegations
visited and worked at the industrial parks, and land sublease contracts were signed
with 10 investors for 22.45 hectares of land (at An Phuoc Industrial Park and Nhon
Trach 3 Industrial Park), reaching 98% of the plan. Revenue from industrial park
operations reached 370 Billion VND.

The profit after tax of the Parent Company in 2024 reached 247 billion VND, an
increase of 12% compared to the plan and 11% higher than the same period last year.
The profit achieved during the year includes dividends received from financial
investments in subsidiaries and associates in 2023 and advance dividends in 2024

totaling 109 billion VND, as well as a reversal of provision for receivables amounting
to 20.5 billion VND.

1.2. Consolidated business results of the entire Corporation according to
the financial statements for the year 2024,

% Comparison to
) 2024 2024 Performance
Target Unit 2024 Plan
Performance Same
Plan :
period
: Billion
Consolidated total revenue VND 10,000 12,125 | 121.25% | 137.06%
. Billion 5
Of which: Parent Company VND 6,000 7,675 | 127.92% | 181.73%
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% Comparison to
2024 2024 Performance
Target Unit 2024 Plan
Performance )
Plan e
period
Billion
Profit after tax VND 250 4251 169.82% | 163.51%
) Billion
Of which: Parent Company VND 220 247 | 112.23% | 110.97%
Dividend (*) % 10 11| 110.00% | 110.00%

(*} Dividends for the year 2024 are projected.

The consolidated business results for the year 2024 of the Corporation all
exceeded the plan, specifically as follows:

_ Consolidated revenue reached 12,125 Billion VND, an increase of 21%
compared to the plan and 37% compared to the same period, mainly due to the coftee
business having high revenue, accounting for 58% of total revenue (in 2024, coffee
prices remained high, averaging 120,000 VND/kg).

- Consolidated profit after tax reached 425 Billion VND, an increase of 69%
compared to the plan and 63% compared to the same period.

The production and business results of subsidiaries and affiliated companies are
summarized as follows:

* Industrial Zone sector:

- Tin Nghia Industrial Zone Development JSC: Total revenue of 277.1 Billion
VND, up 4% compared to the plan, profit after tax of 168.8 Billion VND, increased
by 2% compared to the plan. Total revenue and profit reached and exceeded the plan
based on the following main factors: The business operations of enterprises have
begun to recover, so revenue from services increased; and the reversal of provision
for investment at Olympic Coffee Joint Stock Company.

- Tin Nghia - Phuong Dong Industrial Park JSC: The land area leased during the
year was 42 hectares, reaching 93% of the plan. Total revenue was 230.8 billion VND,
equivalent to 51% of the target, as only & hectares qualified for one-time revenue
recognition according to regulations. Profit after tax was 113.3 billion VND, reaching
61.6% of the plan.

- Thong Nhat JSC: Total revenue reached 85.7 billion VND, equivalent to 87%
of the plan; profit after tax was 26.6 billion VND, increasing by 28% compared to the
plan. Revenue did not meet the target due to the impact of the economic downturn—
many businesses lacked orders and had to scale down production, leading to a
decrease in revenue from clean water supply and wastewater treatment. The real estate
market remained subdued, so there were no sales or leases of the service center area

products during the year.

* Production and processing sector:
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- Dong Nai Import Export Processing Agricultural Products and Foods JSC
(Donafoods): During the year, the Company exported 102.6 tons of cashew kernels,
sold 2.9 tons of cashew kernels domestically, and processed 665 tons of macadamia.
Export turnover was 1,684,230 USD. Total revenue reached 60.2 Billion VND,
equaling 92.6% of the plan and profit after tax reached 4.5 Billion VND, exceeding
125% compared to the plan. The company's business operations in 2024 were highly
effective compared to previous years and mainly based on the following factors:
Cashew kernel trading is entirely commercial goods, only carried out when the input
and output prices are fixed and efficiency is guaranteed; Macadamia processing
implemented 100 tons of commercial goods, purchased as directed by partner MWT;
Utilizing the entire vacant area for lease exploitation; Minimizing operating costs.

- Tin Nghia JSC (Laos): Continuing the contract for garden assignment of coffee
gardens with the assignee. The assignment has reduced losses compared to the
previous period and aims to maintain and develop existing gardens while finding
partners/customers to divest capital.

- Hiep Phu JSC: In 2024, the business situation in the seafood sector gradually
recovered, therefore, the processing output for partners also improved, revenue
compensated for costs and was effective, although not significant and better than the
same period. The company's business results in 2024, although still very low, were no
longer at a loss. Specifically as follows: processing 5,893 tons of aquatic feed,
reaching 98% of the plan and increasing 23% compared to the same period; revenue
reached 16.3 Billion VND, equal to 52% of the plan and an increase of 20% over the
same period; Insignificant profit after tax.

* Petroleum sector:

- Tin Nghia Petroleum JSC: In 2024, the petroleum business performed better
than in 2023, although the output sold did not meet the plan due to the impact of the
economic recession, with many businesses, factories, and transportation units scaling
down production or temporarily suspending operations. However, good remuneration
resulted in after-tax profit reaching the assigned plan. Specifically: Petroleum
consumption volume during the year was 171 Million liters, reaching 87% of the plan
and equaling 99% of the same period; total revenue was 3,253 Billion VND, equaling
90% of the plan, and after-tax profit was 42.2 Billion VND, increased by 5%

compared to the plan.

- Phu Huu Petroleum General Warehouse JSC: The main task during the year
was to focus on the legal aspects of the project. Cong ty déd goi vén ban dén UBND
Tinh bdo céo khé khin vuong mac khi trién khai dy 4n Tong kho Xing diu Phu Hitu
va hd so dang duge Phong Kinh té nganh — S& K& hoach Pau tu xir 1y. Hoan tht cdc
hd so vé& didu chinh quy hoach ty 18 1/500, thiét k& hé thong kho xdng dau, cdu cang
40.000 DWT va danh gia tac dong moi truong (PTM) che b sung hé so gia han tién
d6 chu trirong dau tir du 4n va diéu chinh quy hoach ty 1& 1/500 duge phé duyét.

* Real Estate Sector: Focus on completing the legal procedures of the project
and seeking capital funding sources.

- Nhon Trach Investment JSC: In 2024, the business performance met the set plan
because customers were found and a successful capital recovery plan was
4



implemented at the Dong Sai Gon University project through a wide auction. The
company's business results in 2024 were as follows: Total revenue of 98.6 Billion
VND; after-tax profit was 2 Billion VND. The low profit was due to the company
having to set aside a provision for inventory price reduction of 8.18 Billion VND and
capital construction in progress costs due to project suspension of 21.87 Billion VND
and setting aside a provision for investment in contributed capital in an affiliated
company (Nhon Trach New Industrial City Co., Ltd.) with an amount of 10 Billion
VND.

- Tin Nghia - Asia Investment JSC: In 2024, the Company continued to face some
difficulties such as: lack of capital to continue investing in the project, failure to fulfill
financial obligations for 20% of the social housing land fund according to Document
No. 63/TTg-CN dated January 20, 2021 of the Prime Minister. In addition to the above
difficulties, the Department of Planning and Investment is currently reviewing and
unifying the plan to supplement the "Minimum rate of contribution to the state budget
(value m)" for commercial housing projects approved for investment policies in the
province after July 01, 2014 according to the conclusion of the State Audit. According
to Report No. 12/BC-SKHPT dated January 06, 2025 on the results of the review
meeting, unifying the plan to calculate the value of m to handle difficulties and
problems for commercial housing projects, the Company must have a written
commitment to implement the state budget payment according to the minimum rate
m and send it to the Department of Planning and Investment before January 15, 2025,
allowing investors to continue implementing the project and handling legal
procedures related to the project according to regulations.

- Phuoc Tan Trading and Construction JSC: In 2024, the Company's business
operations and project implementation faced many difficulties due to common
problems related to the Investment Law and Land Law. Therefore, business results in
2024 were low, total revenue was 35.2 Billion VND, reaching 24% of the plan, mainly
from financial activities. After-tax profit was 16.8 Billion VND, reaching 35% of the
plan.

* Service sector:

- ICD Bien Hoa - Tin Nghia Logistics JSC: In 2024, the Company
comprehensively completed its business targets. Total revenue: 114.2 Billion VND,
an increase of 14% compared to the plan; after-tax profit: 36.2 Billion VND,
exceeding 57% compared to the plan. Business results exceeded the plan partly due
to financial investment, maximizing the area of warehouses for rent and minimizing
operating costs.

- Japanese Smes Development JS Company (JSC): The Company's business
operations in 2024 were positive, specifically: Total revenue: 189.3 Billion VND, an
increase of 8.6% compared to the plan; profit after tax of 42.4 Billion VND, an
increase of 67.5% compared to the plan. The company maintained business efficiency
thanks to revenue from factory rentals in Nhon Trach and increased ancillary service
fees (ATM booth rentals and electric vehicle charging fees).

- Tin Nghia Project Management Joint Stock Company: In 2024, in the context
of many difficulties in the construction and real estate market, many projects were
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temporarily suspended or had no plans to resume construction, which affected the
company's operating results. The company has tried and made efforts to find more
customers, the realized revenue was 10.1 Billion VND, an increase of 45% compared
to the plan; profit after tax was 440 Million VND, equal to 88% of the plan.

- Tin Nghia Professional Security Services Corporation: The Company's business
situation in 2024 faced many fluctuations and disadvantages due to the impact of the
economic recession, many customers liquidated contracts, reduced security personnel
at sites to cut costs, etc., therefore, the company's business results in 2024 were lower
than planned. Specifically, the total revenue was 43 Billion VND, reaching 96% of
the plan; profit after tax was 601 Million VND, equal to 30% of the plan.

2. Development investment activities,

Project legal procedures have not been resolved, project investment and
construction implementation face many difficulties. Specific implementation results
in the year:

a) Petroleum sector:

* Phu Huu Petroleum Depot Project: In 2024, continue to monitor the
application for extension and adjustment of the project's investment policy progress.
However, so far the application has not been resolved, leading to related legal
procedures such as adjustment of the 1/500 detailed plan, Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) report, basic design appraisal, etc., which have not been
implemented.

* Development of a network of Petrol stations: Continue to carry out legal
procedures for land locations to establish petrol and oil business points. For Phuoc
Binh Petrol Station (Phuoc Binh commune, Long Thanh district), the Provincial
People's Committee has approved the receipt of agricultural land transfer for project
implementation; The Corporation has completed submitting the application for land
use purpose conversion. For Phu Tan Petrol Station (Phu Tan commune, Dinh Quan
district), the application for approval of receiving the transfer of the remaining
agricultural land area for the non-agricultural project has been completed, and the
application is currently awaiting processing by the Department of Natural Resources
and Environment.

b) Logistics and service sector:

* Phu Huu General Port Project: Continuing to monitor the procedures for
approving the Group IV seaport plan by the Ministry of Transport and the procedures
for appraising the project's investment policy decision file according to the request of
the Ministry of Planning and Investment.

¢) Industrial park infrastructure and real estate investment sector:
* Infrastructure investment in Ong Keo Industrial Park:

- Land acquisition compensation work: Coordinate with departments and
districts to focus on compensating for the remaining area of Ong Keo Industrial Park,
approximately 184.3 ha.



_ Technical infrastructure work: Completed the appraisal of the design dossier
for planned road No. 11 and approved the estimate & design for road No. 4 - Section
2 (Km2+600 to Km3+500). Completed the selection of a contractor and commenced
construction of the EPC package to upgrade the Ong Keo Industrial Park wastewater
treatment station from column B to A, with a capacity of 3,000 m>/day-night.

* Tin Nghia Plaza Commercial and Service Center Project: Completed the
acceptance and handover for operation, completed the acceptance with functional
authorities to meet operational and activity conditions. Completed the ownership of
the project and put the project into operation. Currently, the Corporation has véi mot
sb dbi tac (NCB Bank, Tai Tien Company, etc.).

* Long Thanh Commercial Center Project: Land prices were approved by the
Provincial People's Committee in Decision No. 593/QD-UBND dated March 14,
2024. Completed the signing of a land lease contract to a joint stock company under
Contract No. 13/HDTD dated May 30, 2024,

* 51 ha Commercial and Service Center Area Project: The Department of
Planning and Investment has commented on the deposit for project implementation
guarantee in Official Letter No. 939/SKHDT-QLN dated March 05, 2024. The
Corporation has submitted a 06-month supervision report on the project to the
Department of Planning and Investment as per regulations.

* Other projects: Implemented renovation and repair works for warehouse
facilities at the Granite Stone Factory and upgraded the fire protection system for the
warehouse at the Agricultural Products Factory. Completed the acceptance, handover,
and put into use the renovated wastewater treatment station at Tan Bien Market.

3. Financial Activities.
In 2024, the financial department accomplished the following main tasks:

- Total outstanding bank loans as of December 31, 2024, are 3,120 Billion VND.
In particular:

+ OQutstanding short-term loans: 2,986 Billion VND, increased 2.8 times
compared to the beginning of the year (increased from 1,053 Billion VND to 2,986
Billion VND), mainly due to the increased demand for coffee business capital in the
2024 — 2025 crop season.

+ Qutstanding long-term loans: 134 billion VND, a decrease of 45.6% compared
to the beginning of the year, as the company has repaid loans related to the Tinnghia
Plaza Commercial Service Center project and the An Phuoc Industrial Park project
during the year.

- Completed the payment of 2023 dividends to shareholders, amounting to 200
Billion VND.

- Regarding investment capital for the Ong Keo Industrial Park project: working
with banks regarding the granting of a credit line of 200-300 billion VND for
investment in the construction of infrastructure (roads and wastewater treatment
stations) for the project.




- As of December 31, 2024, the debt recovery rate from customers in the
Industrial Park reached over 95%. However, there are still some cases of late payment
that have not been fully recovered to date. The reason for the slow recovery is that the
business operations of the customers are facing many difficulties.

4. Governance work.

- Along with the financial restructuring of the enterprise, in 2024, the Corporation
continued to implement restructuring, consolidate the organizational structure, and
enhance the initiative and effective coordination between units in the Corporation
system. The organizational structure is completed in the direction of focusing on
streamlining the apparatus, improving labor productivity to create flexibility and new
impetus.

- Maintain and continue to improve the strategic management, objective
management, and personnel management system through expanding the
implementation of Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and evaluating work
performance according to the Balanced Scorecard (BSC) at member companies
throughout the Corporation system; thereby, anticipating the necessary resources to
implement appropriate policies, solutions, and action plans and achieve the set goals.

- Step by step deployment of the digitalization project to improve efficiency and
quality in governance, contributing to promoting the common goal of simplifying and
streamlining the organizational structure. In 2024, short-term training courses were
organized on smart electronic document management; application of artificial
intelligence Al - Chat GPT and Canva to improve the efficiency of office work.

II. ACTIVITIES OF THE GENERAL CORPORATION’S BOARD OF
DIRECTORS.

In 2024, the General Corporation’s Board of Directors focused on performing the
tasks under its responsibilities, powers and the contents approved by the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders. Specifically, as follows:

1. Implement the contents according to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

In addition to implementing the targets and plans for production and business in
2024 and the development orientation for the period of 2021 — 2026, over the past
year, the Board of Directors has organized the implementation of tasks under
Resolution No. 01/NQ-DHDPCD dated May 22, 2024 of the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders, specifically:

- Develop and direct the implementation of targets and plans for production and
business in 2024 and continue to orient the development for the period of 2021 - 2026.
Through the appointed Representatives at the units with contributed capital of the
General Corporation, strengthen the supervision of the unit's operations; evaluate the
investment capital efficiency and implement solutions to improve capital use

efficiency.

- Selecting, negotiating and signing an audit service contract for the 2024
Financial Statements with AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited (AASC).



- Carrying out procedures for personnel dismissal to complete the structure of the
Supervisory Board of Tin Nghia Corporation, term I (2021 - 2026).

- Deploying the payment of dividends for 2023 according to the profit
distribution plan approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Deploying the development of the General Corporation's strategy for the period
of 2024 — 2030, with a vision to 2035.

2. Evaluating the performance of the Board of Directors.

In 2024, the Board of Directors maintained the organization of quarterly and
extraordinary meetings to meet the requirements of the General Corporation's
administration in accordance with the Jaw and the General Corporation's Charter. The
Board of Directors meetings were held in accordance with the procedures and
regulations in the Corporation's Charter. The Board of Directors held 04 (four) regular
meetings and 44 (forty-four) times of collecting opinions from members in writing,.

All members of the Board of Directors fully attended the meetings of the Board
of Directors. The members all showed high responsibility, focused on discussing,
evaluating, and finding specific solutions to solve key issues related to orientation,
development strategy and closely directing the implementation of the production,
business and investment plan for 2024. Issues arising outside of regular and
extraordinary meetings were sent by the members of the Board of Directors for
comments in writing.

During the year, the Board of Directors issued 104 resolutions and decisions on
issues related to personnel administration and organizational structure, investment,
finance, tasks related to the organization of the General Meeting of Shareholders and
other tasks. The issued documents were implemented in accordance with their
authority, ensuring principles, procedures, and compliance with the provisions of law
and the General Corporation's Charter.

The Board of Directors has supervised, directed, and ensured that information is
fully, transparently, and promptly disclosed in accordance with the regulations of the
State Securities Commission and the Stock Exchange. The Board of Directors
regularly inspects the situation, urges the Executive Board to implement the
resolutions of the Board of Directors, and promptly takes appropriate measures to
adjust business operations, rectify, supplement, and improve corporate governance,
ensuring that the Corporation develops in the right direction and completes the targets
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

At the same time, the Board of Directors regularly supervises the executive
operations of the General Director, the assisting apparatus for the General Director,
and the designated representatives of the Corporation at member companies in
implementing the resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the
Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors, specifically in the following
areas:

- Supervising the development of the business plan and the implementation of
the 2024 business plan of the Corporation and its subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.

)




- Supervising the activities of the General Director and management personnel
as follows:

+ The Board of Directors reviews, evaluates, and approves the General Director's
reports on the progress and results of production and business tasks on a quarterly,
semi-annual, and annual basis, identifies difficulties and obstacles, analyzes the
causes, and proposes solutions.

+ The Board of Directors always closely monitors and directs the operations of
the Executive Board, promptly handles and resolves issues within the Board of
Directors' authority, and supports and facilitates the operations of the Executive
Board.

+ Regularly monitors the implementation and compliance of the Management
and Executive apparatus with laws and internal regulations and rules for managing
the Corporation, managing risks, intemmal control, and business ethics issues;
relationships with related parties, including shareholders, employees, suppliers, and
customers of the Corporation.

- Organize regular and unscheduled inspections of financial accounting work,
and inspect the compliance of the Executive Board and the operation of the internal
control system at the Corporation and its units in the system.

- Supervising the additional capital contribution at subsidiaries and affiliated
companies, and the implementation of issuing loan guarantees for member companies
at banks.

- Monitoring and urging the management of debt collection.
3. Remuneration, operating expenses, and other benefits of the Board of

Directors as stipulated in Clause 3, Article 163 of the Enterprise Law and the
Company's Charter.

No. Content Amount (VND) Note

Remuneration of the Board of

| Directors 3.600.000.004

2 Other benefits 18.000.000

Total 3.618.000.004

Detailed information is presented in the 2024 financial statements posted on the
Corporation's electronic information portal at the website link https://tinnghiacorp.com.vr/.

4.Report on transactions between subsidiaries, companies in which the
Corporation holds control of 50% or more of the charter capital with members
of the Board of Directors and related parties of those members; transactions
between the Corporation and companies in which members of the Board of
Directors are founding members or business managers in the 03 years prior to
the transaction.
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a) Report on transactions between the company, subsidiaries, companies in
which the public company holds control of 50% or more of the charter capital with
members of the Board of Directors and related parties of those members: This content
is presented in attached Appendix 1.

b) Report on transactions between the Corporation and companies in which
members of the Board of Directors are founding members or business managers in the
03 years prior to the transaction: This content is presented in attached Appendix 2.

II1. 2025 OPERATING PLAN.

1. Situation assessment:

The global economy is forecast to still face many significant challenges and risks.
Financial and monetary policies in general remain tight in many countries, putting
pressure on borrowing costs and increasing the risk of economic recession.
Geopolitical conflicts, especially the tense situation in the Middle East, threaten to
disrupt supply chains and the global energy market. At the same time, the trend of
market fragmentation and global technology is increasingly evident, reflected in the
expansion of the BRICS bloc and US sanctions, which weaken international
cooperation as well as the efficiency of global supply chains. These factors create a
challenging picture of the world economy, requiring countries to have flexible and
adaptive strategies to maintain sustainable growth in the new context.

Domestically, difficulties and challenges outweigh opportunities and advantages,
especially in the face of major external impacts, changes in global supply chains, and
fluctuations from the international market, which are creating a lot of pressure.
Therefore, a comprehensive approach and long-term solutions are needed to ensure
stability and sustainable development.

The general objective set by the Government in 2025 is to continue to prioritize
promoting growth, maintaining macroeconomic stability, controlling inflation,
ensuring major balances of the economy, and perfecting institutions and laws; develop
infrastructure; improve the quality of human resources; develop science and
technology, innovation; digital transformation, green transformation, and circular
economy; develop culture, ensure social security, improve life; fight against
corruption, negativity, and waste; consolidate and strengthen national defense and
security, firmly protect independence and sovereignty; maintain political security,
order, and social safety; promote foreign affairs and international integration; enhance
the prestige and position of our country in the international arena.

* At the Corporation:

The real estate business as well as land leasing in industrial parks will face many
difficulties due to cautious investors in the context of slow global economic recovery
and little remaining land for lease, in which, the procedure for compensation and land
acquisition at Ong Keo Industrial Park still faces many difficulties.

Prolonged political conflicts in Middle Eastern countries and the prolonged
conflict between Russia and Ukraine will impact the supply and price of crude oil,
which will affect the petroleum business operations of the Corporation.

11
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World and domestic coffee prices are still highly volatile, complex and difficult
to predict, which is unfavorable for coffee export business.

2. Orientation of activities in 2025:

- Regarding production and business: Continue to maintain and promote 4 main
business areas including coffee exports, petroleum business, logistics and industrial
park infrastructure leasing, and real estate in order to maintain the scale, position, and
brand value of the Corporation.

- Regarding investment: The top priority is compensation work at Ong Kéo
Industrial Park. Continue to pursue the goal of expanding the area of the Industrial
Park and real estate according to the province and region's planning. Focus on
completing the legal procedures for key projects and investing in projects that have
been approved in principle to put them into operation soon.

- Regarding finance: Promptly meet the capital needs for business operations
and capital for compensation and land acquisition for the Ong Kéo Industrial Park
project. Continue to implement many measures to recover overdue and prolonged
debts, and cost-saving measures.

- Regarding corporate governance: Deploy the organizational structure towards
streamlining, efficiency, reducing the size of departments, and increasing authority
and tasks. Continue to restructure the enterprise, improve corporate governance, and
innovate the personnel team at subsidiaries and affiliated companies according to the
General Corporation's regulations for employees to create flexibility and new impetus.
Maintain and continue to improve the application of BSC and KPI tools, and gradually
implement digitalization projects in corporate governance and business operations.

3. Key business targets:

Based on the business results of 2024, available resources, along with the
assessment of objective factors affecting the General Corporation's operations and the
requirements for stability and development with the above orientations, the General
Corporation's production and business plan for 2025 is determined with the following
general targets:

y 2024 % 2025 Plan/
Target Unit Performance 2025 Plan 2024 Performance
1, Tofl Tevemnne B\‘};}%ﬂ 12.125 11.700 96,49%
. Billion
Of which: Parent Company VND 7.675 7.600 99,02%
Billion
2. Profit after tax VND 425 672 158,12%
. Biliion
Of which: Parent Company VND 247 622 251,82%
3. Main products
- Coffee tons 65.684 70.000 106,57%
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. 2024 % 2025 Plan/
Target Uit Performance ANZeN s 2024 Performance
- Industrial park land for ha 64,5 66,5 103,10%
lease
_ Gasoline e 171 186 108,77%
liters J

The 2025 plan is built on the following bases:

_ Coffee business: Export and domestic sales of coffee reach 70,000 tons.
Revenue approximates 6,300 Billion VND. The forecast for coftee prices in 2025 will
decrease to an average of 90,000 VND/kg (compared to 120,000 VND/kg in 2024).

- Industrial park sector: The leased area in industrial parks is 66.5 ha (of which
the Parent Company: 18.5 ha)

- The parent company records dividends in 2025 from its subsidiaries.

- Recover and reverse provisions for overdue receivables from customers that
have been provisioned in previous years, focusing on definitively recovering the
remaining debt of Olympic Coffee Company.

- The above business results include income from the implementation of the
restructuring plan of Tin Nghia Corporation (carrying out the Tin Nghia — A Chau
project and recognizing dividends from ICD Bien Hoa - Tin Nghia Logistics Joint -
Stock Company), which has been approved by the Board of Directors.

4. Key solutions:

a) Regarding coffee export business: Implement safe business methods,
promote domestic and export business, of which export volume is 30,000 tons.
Implement a plan to purchase raw coffee and promote the production and processing
of high-quality goods (Clean, Wet Polish) for FOB export. Implement a sustainable
coffee development program, combining EUDR anti-deforestation, meeting the
requirements of the European Commission.

b) Regarding industrial park infrastructure business:

+ Strengthen investment promotion at home and abroad, maintain contact with
customers who have inquired about information, focus on contacting and
strengthening marketing efforts with new customers, cooperate closely with land lease
brokerage companies in inviting and attracting investment, and actively contact the
above units and other service units to work.

+ Continue to provide investor support services: legal procedures (supporting the
application for investment certificates, land use right certificates, etc.), consulting and
implementing environmental services, using a part of the office building to supply
investors during the basic construction period at preferential prices. Regularly interact
and meet with customers to listen to feedback and resolve customer complaints.
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+ Continue to survey and learn about information on a number of land funds to
prepare for the deployment of new industrial park investment in accordance with the
planning orientation of the Province and the Government.

+ Regularly update the website and brochures with virtual reality tour images for
industrial parks and offices.

¢) Regarding investment activities:

Actively coordinate with competent authorities to remove procedures related to
the legality of projects, as a basis for investment deployment. Specifically:

+ Oil and gas sector:

* Regarding the development of petrol station networks: complete the land
procedures related to the Phuoc Binh Petrol Station and Phu Tan Petrol Station
projects. Implement construction investment and put Phuoc Binh Petrol Station into
business operation.

+ Industrial park infrastructure and real estate investment sector:

* Ong Keo Industrial Park:

- Land compensation and acquisition: Continue to coordinate with departments,
branches, and districts to focus on compensating for the remaining area of Ong Keo
Industrial Park, approximately 184.3 ha.

- Technical infrastructure work: Complete the construction of upgrading the Ong
Keo Industrial Park wastewater treatment station from column B to A, with a capacity
of 3,000 m3/day-night; Renovate/upgrade damaged and degraded infrastructure
items; Complete the construction of route 4 phase 2 and route 11; Adjust the design
and inspect routes 9, 1, 1A, 13.

* Nhon Trach, An Phuoc, Tan Phu Industrial Parks: Complete legal
procedures for land, renovate/upgrade infrastructure.

* S5lha Commercial and Service Center Area Project: Monitor the
Department/branch's implementation of procedures to adjust the planning of
competent authorities to have appropriate advice and handling in accordance with

actual conditions.
* Other projects:

- Q@ranite Factory Stone Factory Renovation Project: Complete the
environmental permit procedure and the construction deployment procedure for
renovating the Granite Stone Factory warehouse.

- Repairing the Agricultural Products Factory warehouse: Complete the
construction of renovating the fire protection system of the agricultural product

warehouse.
+ Logistics service sector:

* Phu Huu General Port Project: Continue to monitor the procedure for
approving the Group IV seaport plan by the Ministry of Transport and the procedure
for appraising the investment policy decision dossier of the project according to the

14



written request of the Ministry of Planning and Investment.
d) Regarding financial activities:

- Continue working with credit institutions on funding for business activities,
ensuring sufficient limits to serve coffee business activities in the 2024/2025 crop and
payment of compensation, as well as investment in technical infrastructure for the
roads of the Ong Keo Industrial Park project.

- Continue financial restructuring and divestment from long-standing inefficient
projects.

- Carry out procedures (valuation, auction, etc.) to transfer the contributed capital
of the Corporation at subsidiaries and transfer assets of projects that have been
approved by the Management Council.

- Focus on debt collection efforts, especially for overdue and difficult-to-recover
debts.

e¢) Regarding governance activities:

- Continue to build and develop the Tin Nghia brand to become a strong brand.
Regularly inspect and control the application of the Corporation's brand identity
system and the regulations on trademark and brand management of Tin Nghia applied
throughout the Corporation's system.

- Participate in prestigious and high-quality national and international awards
to enhance the brand reputation of the Corporation at home and abroad.

- Continue to review, arrange, and restructure the personnel apparatus at the
Corporation and its subsidiaries.

- Continue to update and improve the employee benefit policy to create a fair
and transparent working environment, creating motivation to promote staff to
contribute to the overall development of the Corporation.

- Implement the Corporation's development strategy for the period 2025-2030
and vision to 2035.

- Upgrade the information technology system and apply digitalization in
governance activities at the Corporation.

5. Activities of the Board of Directors.

In 2025, the Board of Directors will continue to maintain the quarterly periodic
meeting regime as prescribed and organize extraordinary meetings and/or collect
opinions from members of the Board of Directors in writing to promptly implement
directing and managing the Company. Continue to implement the assignment and
authorization in accordance with functions and tasks to promote the capacity of the
Executive Board at all levels to help the management and administration work
smoothly and transparently. Promote inspection and supervision through internal
audit activities, risk management, and ensure compliance to improve business
performance and preserve capital.

Within the framework of implementing the 05-year development strategy
(2021-2026) with the message "The 2021 - 2026 period must prioritize rapid,
15




sustainable and effective development in the main areas of operation at the Parent
Company and member companies. Prioritize investment in projects associated with
the main flelds and occupations of the Corporation. Always put the interests of
shareholders in conjunction with the investment process to expand the development
scale of the Corporation. Ensure the lives of employees, pay more attention to
training and improve the quality of human resources", the Board of Directors directs
the key tasks to be implemented in 2025, specifically as follows:

First, implement the Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, in which, focus on completing the 2025 business plan and adhere to
the 2021-2026 development strategy through the implementation of key solution
groups throughout the system.

Second, strongly promote the role of the Parent Company throughout the system
through: (1) Centrally manage and coordinate resources throughout the system in
terms of finance, human resources - training, information technology, brand, and
basic construction investment; (2) Maximize the existing resources of the
Corporation to promote overall strength; (3) Increase the financial capacity of the
Parent Company to perform well the function of investing capital in member
companies in the main fields and occupations of the Corporation.

Third, focus on building a professional corporate governance system in a
modern direction and a public company model with the application of advanced
management methods and information technology solutions in governance, ensuring
the exploitation of resources effectively, creating sustainable values in the long term
and attracting investment capital into the business.

Fourth, continue to focus on implementing social security programs, supporting
the community, pioneering in environmental protection, towards the implementation
of a sustainable development strategy.

The above is the report of the Board of Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation on
the results of operations in 2024 and the plan for 2025.

Submit to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for discussion, feedback,
and approval.

ON BEHALF OF
Recipients:\Z,- THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Shareholders;

- Archive: BOD’s Document,
Meeting Documents

Dang Thi Thanh Ha
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APPENDIX 1

transactions between the company, subsidiaries, companies in which the public
company holds control of 50% or more of the charter capital with members of
the Board of Directors and related parties of those members

(Attached is Report No. ..

58.../BC-HPQT dated <3-./.5../2025

of the Board of Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation)

Supplier/Seller of Buyer of goods/User of Ti
. = ime of
goods/Service services/Borrower/ : .
No - . : transaction | Content, quantity, and
provider/Lender/ Participant in other "
; - between total transaction value
Provider of other transactions :
- companies
transactions
Supply of petroleum fuel.
| | Tin Nghia Petrol Joint - | Thong Nhat Joint - Stock | From 01/2024 | ~ P2 P* “%
© to 12/2024 '
Stock Company ompany ) 0 243,422,540 VND.
i - Ti Supply of petrol fuel.
TinNohinPetal Yoifte | ~raoBialHOse T | i o g | HIPR L GLRATSEFILINE
£ Stock Company Nghia Logistics Joint - | * * 5 5054 | Total transaction value:
Stock Company 184,472,979 VND.
Supplying gasoline anq;f?
5 | TinNghia Petrol Joint- | Congty CP Phit trién | From 01/2024 diesel fuel. / c?/ T
Stock Company KCN Tin Nghia to 12/2024 Total transaction \fgfpep(’)p
284,657,402 "
Providing env1r0nmemal
4 Cong ty CP Phat trién Tin Nghia Petrol Joint - | From 01/2024 consulting services. \@;
KCN Tin Nghia Stock Company to 12/2024 Total transaction value:
312,500,000 VND
i S .
5 | Tin Nghia Petrol Joing - | * ¢ 727 1ading And | gy 172024 ?Egi‘/ tf:nzztrt‘?leum lf”el ‘
- ction value:
Stock Company SToekiEBTHFANS to 12/2024 132,700,737 .
g , ! Supply of petrol fuel.
6 Tin Nghia Petrol Joint - | Nhon Trach Investment | From 01/2024 ;p f lytO D= rto euml 5
Stock Com Joint - Stock C to 12/2024 ekt e
P RIS RS R | 182,982,291 VND.
i ia - Supply of petrol fuel.
. | TinNghia Petrol Joint - Inf;gtgfgt‘ioi‘; C}SI?(l)le From 01/2024 ,‘r‘gf’alytfanps‘;:g;uzlu;
Stock C - to 12/2024 -
sh S Company - 158,772,944 VND.
Petro Vietnam Phuoc An
. . . Supply of petrol fuel.
Tin Nghia Petrol Joint - Port Investment & From 01/2024 e e r(? BEILES
8 Total transaction value:

Stock Company

Operation Joint Stock

Company

to 12/2024

1,832,175,419 VND.




Supplier/Seller of

Buyer of goods/User of

: B Time of
goods/Service services/Borrower/ . .
No : _p . transaction | Content, quantity, and
provider/Lender/ Participant in other b
: v between total transaction value
Provider of other transactions .
- companies
transactions
Nhon Trach 6a
Supply of petrol fuel.
9 Tin Nghia Petrol Joint - | Investment Construction | From 01/2024 i ly orpe rc.) i e.
Stock Company Industrial Zone to 12/2024 | To@ 5‘23“5““0“ value:
Company Limited 505,413,052 VND.
i ia - ly of uel.
Tin Nghia Petrol Joing - | L Nghia-Phuonig | g )04 | Supply of petroloum fuel
10 Stock Company Dong Industrial Park to 12/2024 Total transaction value:
P Joint Stock Company 237,448,848 VND.
Dong Nai Import Export
i i S f petrol 1.
Tin Nghia Petrol Joint - RbGEES il AEHanl il From 01/2024 upply of pe r(? FUniEs
11 Stock Compan Products And Foods to 12/2024 Total transaction value:
pany Joint Stock Company 123,210,052 VND.
{Donafoods)
. . Leasing of petrol station
ICD Bien Hoa - Tin | 4o n\(ohia Petrol Joint - | From 01/2024 | business premises.
12 | Nghia Logistics Joint - )
Stock Company Stock Company to 12/2024 | Total transaction value:
270,600,000 VND.
Supplying electricity for
i -Tj dail tiviti t th
ICD BienHoa-Tin | 1y nronia Petrol Joint - | From 01/2024 | o oo 20
13 | Nghia Logistics Joint - petrol station.
Stock Company to 12/2024 )
Stock Company Total transaction value:
94,083,500 VND.
[CD Bien H Ti I;ong Na,li In‘;pot.':: Ef:poxit Provision of logistics
ien Hoa - Tin rocessing Agricultura .
14 | Nghia Logistics Joint - Products And Foods Fizr?go/lz/ozgofi Total serv1c?s. e
Stock Company Joint Stock Company 07'[39%32%32(360%3[)”6'
{Donafoods) el .
_ _ Dong Nai Import Export Providing working capital
ICD Bien Hoa - Tin Processing Agricultural
. s i From 01/2024 loans.
15 | Nghia Logistics Joint - Products And Foods 0 12/2024 Total ) .
Stock Company Joint Stock Company lcgzotéaélggc(t)lon VautIE:
(Donafoods) 000,000,000 VND.
Providi orki ital
ICD Bien Hoa - Tin Tin Nghia - A Chau ROMIBIRE R e
: s . : From 01/2024 loans.
16 | Nghia Logistics Joint- | Investment Joint - Stock t0 12/2024 T ———
Stock Company Company 114.736.301 VND.
Providi ki ital
ICD Bien Hoa - Tin Tin Nghia - Phuong | 00000, ma i Vi
17 | Nghia Logistics Joint - Dong Industrial Park 10 12/2024 Total ) -
Stock Company Joint Stock Company Sl OVLEE

25,000,000,000 VND.




Supplier/Seller of

Buyer of goods/User of

ds/Servi ices/B / Time of
No g00as ﬂeJrvn;e y Is)erV} g (tn-'rov:lt:r transaction | Content, quantity, and
prov!der ke Sy L e i uLer between total transaction value
Provider of other transactions :
. companies
transactions
Dong Nai Import Export _
Processing Agricultural ICD Bien Hoa - Tin Selling cashew nuts.
. " . From (1/2024 )
18 Products And Foods Nghia Logistics Joint - 1o 12/2024 Total transaction value:
Joint Stock Company Stock Company 11,435,926 VND.
(Donafoods)
Dong Nai Import Export evait .
i : elling cashew nuts.
Processing Agricultural |y \ohia petrol Joint - | From 01/2024 . |
19 Products And Foods ol Corisan t0 12/2024 Total transaction value:
Joint Stock Company Bany 13,888,890 VND
(Donafoods)
Dong Nai Import Export T "
i i elling cashew nuts.
Processing Agricultural |y, 10 Nhat Joint - Stock | From 01/2024 = ,
20 Products And Foods pe—— 0 12/2024 Total transaction value:
Joint Stock Company pany 774,074 VND
(Donafoods)
Dong Nai Import Export _
Processing Agricultural TinNghia-AChau | o 00 o0os Selling cashew nuts.
21 Products And Foods Investment Joint - Stock Total transaction value:
- to 12/2024
Joint Stock Company Company 1,886,805 vﬁg\
(Donafoods) {Nfg\
Dong Nai Import Export I'Y -f\
Processing Agricultural | Phuoc Tan Trading And Selling cashewmut/ &
: £ From 01/2024 1A /8
22 Products And Foods Construction Joint - t0 12/2004 Total transaction \aaL
Joint Stock Company Stock Company 1.209.491 @
{Donafoods)
Dong Nai Import Export
Processing Agricultural | Tin Nghia Industrial Park Selling cashew nuts.
From 01/2024 ¢
23 Products And Foods Development t0 12/2024 Total transaction value:
Joint Stock Company Joint_Stock Company 3,373,334 VND
(Donafoods)
L ks Supplying water and
in Nghia Incdustrial - -y Notia Petrol Joint- | From 01/2024 | Wastewater treatment.
24 Park Development .
Voirt: Srack Chraa Stock Company to 12/2024 Total transaction value:
- pany 11,721,655 VND.
Providi ki ital
Tin Nghia Industrial Tin Nghia - A Chau s CRP
: From 01/2024 loans.
25 Park Development Investment Joint - Stock to 12/2024 L PR W
Joint_Stock C ey :
oint_Stock Company Company 30,000,000,000 .
Providing car rental
Tin Nghia Industrial :
26 |  Park Development | Lpion TrachlInvestment 4 o\ 55024 i

Joint_Stock Company

Joint - Stock Company

Total transaction value:
27,777,778 VND




Supplier/Seller of

Buyer of goods/User of

: : Time of
goods/Service services/Borrower/ 3 :
No : - - transaction | Content, quantity, and
provider/Lender/ Participant in other A
: : between total transaction value
Provider of other transactions ;
3 companies
transactions
. : : . : Providing car rental
Tin Nghia Industrial Tin Nghia - Phuong .
4 From 01/2024 services.
2 Park Development Dong Industrial Park t0 12/2024 Total t o ualhs
Joint_Stock C Joint Stock C Consg :
oint_Stock Company oint Stock Company 52.500.000 VND
h : . . Providing working capital
Tin Nghia Industrial Phuoc Tan Trading And From 01/2024 LAARS
28 Park Development Construction Joint - t0 12/2024 Téng gi .'ao k.
int_Stock C Stock C o o
YOI BeCOmEH SRRSOl 16,200,000,000 VND.
Providi ki ital
Tin Nghia - Phuong Tin Nghia - A Chau 202 e o
29 Dong Industrial Park Investment Joint - Stock From BLI20A4 i
to 06/2024 Total transaction value:

Joint Stock Company

Company

496,908,924 VND




APPENDIX 2

Transactions between the Corporation and companies in which members of the
Board of Directors are founding members or business managers in the 03 years
prior to the transaction

(Attached is Report No. .R&../BC-HDOT dated 9./.5../2025
of the Board of Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation)

Relation Certificate
Name of ship with No., Date H Resolution/ | Content and
Oroization) th I d eadquarter | Transact Decisi Vit
ganization e ssued, i ion Time ecision alue o
Individual Corpora Issuing No. (if any) | Transaction
tion Authority
?s?s?;i:gslfyzgfé 3rd Floor, No. & -
as station for
Tin Nghia PRe]'ated ¢ | Department of 36 Lk From Resolution rent
Elginte artiesot | o, - d iap, Trung '
Petrol Joint h anning an Ward 01/2024 | No. 09/NQ i
Stock the Investment of EULER D to HDQT dated e ivalic:
Corporati ' Bien Hoa 2454 457
Company Dong Nai ! 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 454,545,45
on Provi City, Dong VND
TOVINCE ON | Nai Province
08/12/2008
?Si?]ig?’:yz?ﬁ; 3rd Floor, No. — "
_ _ urchase o
Tin Nghia PI;:tiizt:g ¢ | Department of (??a Hzir?fny From Resolution fuel 4
, | Petrol Joint - i Planning and Dunp’ et dg 01/2024 | No.09NQ- | . ’l S
Stock P — Investment of Biegn thsa : to HDQT dated SIE M ue;_ &
Company p Dong Nai . 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 | 1,227.848,67F
on Provi City, Dong VND | =
TovInee O 1 Nai Province NS
08/12/2008 \\
?601038204’ 3rd Floor, No.
. : Related ey e 96 Ha Huy
TinNghia | p o 0 o | Department of | Giap. Trun From Resolution | Office for rent,
Petrol Joint - Py Planning and p. \IUNE | 0112024 | No.09/NQ- | Total value:
¢ Dung Ward,
Stock Corgunati Investment of Bien Hoa to HDQT dated | 860,999,997
Company Dong Nai - 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 VND
on Provi City, Dong
TOVIRCC O | \jai Province
08/12/2008
36010382
Related issucd3by ?}:If; 3r9d 6FIEIC;OII-{’ No: ell:t‘tiifi(f:‘?t;,
Tin Nghia o Department of Gia Truuny From Resolution water, and
Petrol Joint - iy Planning and £ £ 1 012024 | No. 09/NQ- wastewater
e Dung Ward,
Stock Ganperh Investment of Bien Hoa to HPQT dated treatment,
Company Dong Nai 3 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 Total value:
on . City, Dong
Province on Nai Provi 362,906,106
08/12/2008 AIONIES VND
3rd Floor, No. Providing
Ti . Related _360103 8204, 96 Ha Huy . advertising
in Nghia Parties of | 1Ssued bythe | oo 1 From Resolution ] v
Petrol Joint - Departmentof | — 2P U8 | 512004 | No. 09/NQ-
5 the epartment ot | 1yng Ward : LED screens
v g Ward, ;
Stock Corporati Planning and Bier Hoa to HBQT dated ekl valng
Compan I . 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 =
P on “Besrm;}“.c’f City, Dong 12,729,600
ellgpel Nai Province VYND
1




Relation Certificate
Name of ship with No., Date Hendauanfcr | Tianiace Resolution/ | Content and
No | Organization/ the Issued, . Ac:ldress ion Time Decision Value of
Individual Corpora Issuing No. (ifany) | Transaction
tion Authority
Province on
08/12/2008
3600964611, | Street 6, Tam
A : issued by the Phuoc Hire waste
Ingirtits]tll‘iﬁhl:rk plzft'iff c;f Department of | Industrial From | Resolution collection
3 | Demicnet the Planning and Park, Tam 01/2024 | No. 09/NQ- services,
Joint-Stock: | Corporati Investment_of Phuloc Ward, to HDPQT dated | Total value:
Coripany b Dong Nai Bien Hoa 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 6,295,650
Province on City, Dong VND
08/11/2008 Nai Province
3601047417, Km 1+900
. - issued by the National : i s
I?%E';’;lfilga Ejjgll;gr]; Depart'ment of Route f?'l, From Resolution Hl;: rlvoiisst’lcs
7 | Logistics Joint | quan cia Planning and Long Binh 01/2024 | No. 09/NQ- ot [rdhres
STk T 6ng Investment.of Ta.n Ward, 10 HDQT dated 671.137 67-4.1
Company Cong ty Dong Nai Bien Hoa 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 {/ND’
Province on City, Dong
07/10/2009 Nai Province
3601047417, Km [+900 Management
ICD Bien Hoa | Nguoi issued by the National ' fees and
- Tin Nghia <6 lien Department of | Route 31, From Resolution | infrastructure
g | Logistics Joint | quan cta Planning and Long Binh 01/2024 | No. 09/NQ- usage fees,
 Stock Téng Investment_of Ta‘n Ward, to HDQT dated Toralvalus:
O — Cone t Dong Nai Bien Hoa 12/2024 | 12/01/2024
pany gy Province on City, Dong 3,885,467,964
07/10/2009 Nai Province VND
3601047417, Km 1+900 Providing
ICD Bien Hoa | Ngudi 1s5ucH [ Le INaOE advertising
3 : i Department of Route 51, From Resolution .
- Tin Nghia o lién . - services on
9 | Logistics Joint | quan cua Planning and Long Binh 01/2024 | No.09NQ- | [ gp screens,
_ Stock Téng Investment_of Ta.n Ward, to HBQT dated "
CorigarY Cong ty Dong Nai Bien Hoa 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 f?aSZ"’?)(;Jg.
Province on City, Dong 2
07/10/2009 | Nai Province VND
Dong Nai 3600268170, No. 647,
Import Export issued by the Hanoi
Processing Pl::tliit:i ¢ Department of Highway, From Resolution Buynfi:? ™
10 Agricultural T Planning and Long Binh 01/2024 | No. 09/NQ- Totilrels:
Products And | o | Investment of | Ward, Bien to HDPQT dated Sraya e
Foods Joint | — ' PF Dong Nai Hoa City, | 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 | 93.976.391
Stock ex Province on Dong Nai VND
Company 01/07/2010 Province
Dong Nai Related | 3600268170, No. 647, : Warehouse
Import Ey'cport Parties of | issued by the Hanoi 0?;20{;; A ﬁ;ﬁgg};‘g‘_ rental services,
11 Processing the Department of |  Highway, io HDQT dated | 10tal value:
Agricultural Corporati Planning and Long Bl.l'lh 12/2024 12/01/2024 360,000,000
Products And on Investment of Ward, Bien VND

2



Relation Certificate
Name of ship with No., Date H Resolution/ | Content and
b eadquarter | Transact s
No | Organization/ the Issued, AddF ion Tim Decision Value of
Individual Corpora Issuing i . IOIT MRS | No (if any) | Transaction
tion Authority
Foods Joint Dong Nai Hoa City,
Stock Province on Dong Nai
Company 01/07/2010 Province
Dong Nai 3600268170, No. 647,
Import Export | o 1. 4 issued by the Hanoi Hire forklifts
Processing Parties af Department of | Highway, From Resolution | and conveyor
1o | Aericultural e Planningand | Long Binh 01/2024 | No. 09/NQ- belts
Products And . | Investment of | Ward, Bien to HDQT dated | Total value:
: Corporati ’ :
Foods Joint Dong Nai Hoa City, 12/2024 12/01/2024 £2.000.000
on o L)
Stock Province on [Dong Nai VND
Company 01/07/2010 Province
Logistics
Service Area
: Ngudi co t Phuoc A .
Petro Vietnam | .3 g p Container
Phuoc An Port llel::l,?:an 835(['){]]3 lv%3%§r Port, Ba From Resolution | transportation
|3 | Ivestment& | om | s Truong 01/2024 | No. 09/NQ- fees,
- gudi | tinh Dong Nai Hamlet
Operatlon n6i bb cip ngdy Ph A’ to HDQT dated | Total value:
Joint Stock i LaE AN 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 4.500.000
Tong 14/5/2008 Commune 53U
Company : - ; VND
Cong ty Nhon Trach > o
District, Dong ohe
Nai Province. rON
3602181239, No. 2/11. Bui Providin’éNﬁ
TinNghia- A | Related | issuedbythe 2u Nehi advertising N(:
. Cﬁa:ja Pa:tiaese of | Department of H,}f:nN\%::]a’ From Resolution servf:icézldﬁ NC
14 Investment the Planning and Ward, Bien Guenp; | NA IRAND | L SCreems,yeT
Joint - Stock | Corporati | Imvestmentof |y g LB dated —
e Dong Nai oaCity, | 192024 | 12/01/2024 | Total value:
pany on et 6 o Dong Nai 21,384,000
08/12/2008 Province VND
3602181239, 5
Tin Nghia- A | Related | issuedbythe Nl"ljuff:é}’i?l : Working
Chau Parties of | Departmentof /. 7 l\l}(esglgtj;l]on capital lending,
15 Investment the Planning and Ward. Bien 02/2024 = - Total value:
Joint - Stock | Corporati | [Pvestment of | Hoa Ci HBOI dated 0.00 .
Company o DOl‘lg i DOEI ]:\It)/3 06/02/2024 70,000,000,000
Province on Pong_ 2 ar
08/12/2008 rovinee
3602181239, 2
Tin Nghia- A | Related | issued by the Np?{,f /;J]g},i?l . Working
Chau Parties of | Department of Tan Van Resolution capital lending,
16 | Investment the Planning and |y, 1 5 In LR 5 Tdellwdlue:
Joint - Stock | Corporati Investment of Har Ci | 03/2023 | HDQT dated Sad VeSS
Company A Dong 4 Doa 1I\Ity., 29/3/2023 11 ,280,273,973
Province on Pong. al M
08/12/2008 B




Relation Certificate
Name of ship with No., Date Resolution/ | Content and
No | Organization/ the Issued, Head gumres Tran§act Decision Value of
Individual Corpora Issuing 8 Adelress o dime No. (if any) | Transaction
tion Authority
SOUB1EI=305, + 1o T 1, Bui Extension of
Tin Nghia- A | Related Sis:ﬁnl‘;’z;:‘sf Faudlehia, Resolution | the working
Chau Parties of < Tan Van No. capital loan
Planning and . In 3 i
17 JIn-\.'estrsne:ntk . the i el Ward, Blen 07/2024 Hg)SOqf}ijt ; period.
oint - Stoc orporati Dong Nei Hoa (j;ty3 QT date Total vl
Company on | - Dong. Nai 12/7/2024 81 ,391,780,822
08/12/2008 | ‘Trovince VND
3602181239, . Extension of
Tin Nghia- A | Related | issued by the P L Resolution thegethinz
C%lau Parties of | Department of H’?:nNgg:la, No cpitaklodn
18 | Investment the Planning and ' i 23]/1\iQ- petig T
. . | Investment of Nt S Ch 11/2024 capital lending,
J(ént adioske. | Oprpatih Dong Nai ka1 iy, I;?/? };gg;id Total value:
ompany on = Dong Nai )
Province on BrsviEe 146,591,483,51
08/12/2008 3 VND
3600667859, Providi
issued by the | Street 2A, . d‘f"'r‘ti he
Thonge Nhat Related | peparment of | Bau Xeo From Resolution serveices oﬁ
9| Joint Stok | ey ©F | Planning and meustrial | 0172024 | No.09NQ- | prl
é o~ the | [hyestment of Park, Trang to HBQT dated 3
ompany Corporat: Dong Nai Bom DIStrl.Ct, 12/2024 12/01/2024 Total value:
on Province on Dong Nai 34,918,560
24/02/2004 Province VND,
edbythe | DA DO Fropie
TinNghia- | Related | Departmentof | Industre! s
Phlr:) ng B Plsr?nir: an((; Park, Phuoc From Resolution Serviecyan
LEE, IR ) Sl g Long Tho | 01/2024 | No.09/NQ- | LED screens,
20 | Industrial Park the Investment of _
Toint Staek A Ba Ria - Commune, to HBQT dated | Total value:
g‘“ © P Voo Tay | DatDo Town, | 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 | 80,784,000
RN = P, oo | BaRia- Vung VND
53/11/2009 Tau Province.
3501499635, Dat Do 1
i | Related | ed Y€ | Industrial Phi kiém dinh
th nga . p S et ¢ P?p -l 3 Park, Phuoc From Resolution va phi cau
uong Dong | Parties o anning an LengTEs 01/2024 | No. 09/NQ- duomg,
21 | Industrial Park the Investment of
Yoot Stosk C i Ba Ria - Commune, to HDBQT dated | Total value:
s BRI - Dat Do Town, | 12/2024 | 12/01/2024 | 13 .888.890
Company on Vungm Tau LV D P
Province on Ba Ria.- Vung VND
Tau Province.
23/11/2009
Tin Nghia - Related _3501499635’ Dat D‘? 1 B Extension of
Phuong Dong | Parties of issued by the Industiial REsu ot the working
22 | Industrial Park the Depart.ment of |  Park, Phuoc n Ng; HNQ- capital loan
Joint Stock Corporati Planning and Long Tho GINEBA | LAV ated periodWorking
Company on lnvg:ti;iean:t of Dgtolr)ncl)n'llfgf\:n 1201202 capital lending,

4



Relation Certificate
Nan.le o.f ship with No., Date Headquarter | Transact Resol.u?ion/ Content and
No | Organization/ the Issued, 3 Address ion Time Decision Value of
Individual Corpora Issuing No. (ifany) | Transaction
tion Authority
Vungm Tau | BaRia - Vung Total value:
Province on | Tau Province. 131,500,000,00
23/11/2009 0 VND,VND,
_3501499635, Dat Do I
ISR LT Industrial :
Tin Nghia - Related | Department of Park. Phuoc RidsalitiEm Worklng_
Phuong Dong | Parties of | Planning and ’ capital lending,
23 | Industrial Park the Investment of EoREfIG I No. J3INQ: Total value:
Joint Stock Corporati Ba Ria - Cmmine; 02/2024 | HPQT dated 53 80% 000 860
Company on Vungm Tau Dat Do Town, 23/02/2024 \,/'ND, VN’D
: Ba Ria - Vung t f
ficpdeclon Tau Province
23/11/2009 l
?)501499635, Dat Do |
ISSHEL/DFACTe Industrial :
Tin Nghia - Related | Department of Park. Phuoc Resalsticn Workmg_
Phuong Dong | Parties of | Planning and ; capital lending,
24 | Industrial Park the Investment of e In BB Total value:
Joint Stock | Corporati Ba Ria - ComHHIC SHZ0e LD, dated 130.000.000 60
Company o Vharg T Dat Do Town, 04/4/2024 (,) Vl’\JD ’
z Ba Ria - Vung 3
S Ealitelan Tau Province '
23/11/2009 ' O\
3600694267, SE‘;if;; Extersion df
issued by the : the workang
Nhon Trach Pla{:tlizt:g £ Department of Sii‘;n E;Ean Resolution C?Pit%‘l/ /I_“
25 Investment b Planning and T,an & In No. 16/NQ- | periog: rking
Joint - Stock . | Investment of 01/2024 | HDPQT dated | capital lending,
Company Copman Dong Nai LTS, 16/01/2024 Total value:
W Province on Hhon Trazh 159,980,867&65
14/09/2004 District, Dong 7 VD A

Nai Province.




TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Bien Hoa, April 02, 2025

REPORT
PERFORMANCE RESULTS FOR THE YEAR 2024
SUPERVISION PLAN FOR THE YEAR 2025

Pursuant to the functions, duties, and powers of the Board of Supervisors as
stipulated in the Charter of Tin Nghia Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the
Corporation);

Pursuant to the Operating Regulations of the Board of Supervisors for the term
of 2021-2026, approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on June 29,
20213

Pursuant to the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in
2024;

Putsuant to the performance results of production and business operations of
the Corporation in 2024;

The Board of Supervisors reports to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders on the results of inspection and supervision of the Corporation's
operations in 2024 and the plan for 2025 as follows:

A. RESULTS OF SUPERVISORY ACTIVITIES IN 2024

I. OPERATING SITUATION

1. Information on members of the Board of Supervisors in 2024

The Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation for term Il (2021-2026)
includes the following 03 members:

v" My, Tran Tan Nhat — Head of the Board of Supervisors.
v Mr. Tang Tran Tan IChai — Member of the Board of Supervisors.

v Ms. Le Ngoe Dung — Member of the Board of Supervisors (Relieved from
duty on May 22, 2024).

v Mr. Nguyen Quoc Ky — Member of the Board of Supervisors (Appointed
on May 22, 2024).

2. Activities of the Board of Supervisors

Pursuant to the Corporation's Charter and the Working Regulations of the ‘
Board of Supervisors, in 2024, the Board of Supervisors performed the following .
tasks:
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v" Promulgated the control plan for 2024, assigned tasks to each member, and
organized the implementation of the plan as prescribed.

v' Attended meetings of the Board of Directors and other meetings of the
Corporation.

v Inspected the 6-month and annual financial statements for 2024.

v' Inspecting and supervising the management and administration of business
operations; compliance with laws and regulations of the Corporation; menitoring the
implementation of Resolutions and Decisions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors; promptly detecting and recommending to
the Board of Directors activities that do not comply with regulations on corporate
governance.

v Supervised the activities of the Board of Directors and the Board of General
Directors.

II. RESULTS OF SUPERVISORY ACTIVITIES IN 2024

1. Report on monitoring production and business activities in 2024

2024 2023 % Comparison
. 2024
Target Unit Perfor | Perfor
Plan Plan Same

mance | mance period
1. Total consolidated Billion g .
TN VND 10,000 | 12,125 8,846 | 121.25% | 137.06%
Of which, Parent Biflion 6,000 7 675 0224 | 127929 | 181.73%
Company VND
2. Consolidated profit | Billion . .
ol o YND 250 425 260 | 169.82% | 163.51%
Of which, Parent Billion 220 247 229 | 112.23% 110.97%
Company VND
3. ll)ivideud pnyo&nt % 10%
ratio/charter capital

(%) Total revenue includes revenue from financial activities and other income

2. Evaluation of the business performance of the parent company
(Separate financial statements)

2.1 Business results

Total Revenue in 2024 reached 7,675 Billion VND, reaching 127.92%
compared to the plan and 181.73% compared to the same period. Profit after tax was
247 Billion VND, reaching 112.23% compared to the plan and 110.97% compared
to the same period. The structure of revenue and gross profit is as follows:
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2024

2023

%
Implementation

acfivities

wargel UniE Performance | Performance i !
Implementation
2023

Revenue 7,675 4,224 181.73%

Revenue from sales and | Billion

service provision VND Tes Bkl HE 8%

Revenue from sales of

goods and finished 6,975 3,598 193.87%

products

Industrial park

infrasiructure revente el gt et

Real estate revenue 41 11 371.05%

Rtevefn‘re fironi service 4] 42 08.05%

provision

Revenue from financial | Billion

activities VND 263 242 108.87%

Billi
Other revenue \:'I\;OD“ 14 4 339.43%
Billi

Gross profit ey 308 258 119.24%

Activities of selling goods o

and finished products - 3 20t

Industrial park

infrastructure leasing 208 198 105.13%

activities

Reqi :e.?faz‘e business 5 3 64.95%

activities

Service provision P 2% 20.02%

v Revenue from sales of goods and finished products accounted for 94.28% of

the revenue structure.

v The industrial park infrastructure sector accounted for 67.66% of the

Corporation's gross profit structure.

2.2 Implementation of expenses
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Unit: Billion VND

o
Indicator Ac;[l;;l - Aczt{l;;; i 20@4%-1
2023
Revenue from sales and service provision 7,398 3,978 185.99%
Cost of goods sold 7,091 3,720 190.61%
Graoss profit 308 258 119.27%
Financial income 263 242 109.02%
Financial expenses 103 136 75.98%
- Including loan interesi expenses 7, * 144.44%
Selling expenses 34 30 110.82%
Enterprise managenient expenses 79 91 86.82%
Net profit from business activities 355 242 146.56%
Other income 14 4 337.33%
Other expenses 73 3| 2,271.50%
Other profit -59.3 0.8 -
Total profit before tax 296 243 121.67%
Total profit after tax 247 222 110.97%

v Total expenses in 2024 were 7,379 Billion VND, equal to 185.40%
compared to the same period in 2024. The increase in expenses was mainly due to
the increase in the cost of goods sold due to the increase in sales revenue in the coffee
" business (up 90.61% compared to the same period). The rate of increase in total
expenses is lower than the rate of increase in total revenue.

v’ Financial expenses decreased due to a reduction in provisions for impairment
of investments during the year, and an increase in interest expenses due to increased
borrowing.

v’ Enterprise management expenses decreased (by 86.82%) compared to tne
same period in 2023 due to reduced employee costs.

2.3 Increase/Decrease in Assets/Capital and Finanecial Situation

2.3.1 Increase/Decrease in Assets/Capital
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Unit: Billion VND

Change
Indicator 31/12/2024 31/12/2023
Amount Yo
ASSETS 10,272 8,153 2,119 125.99%
Short-term assets 4,442 2,334 2,108 190.32%
Long-term assets 5,830 5,819 18| ° 100.19%
RESOURCES 10,272 8,153 2,119 125.99%
Liabilities 7,340 5,261 2,079 139.53%
Ownet's equity 2,923 2,892 40 101.37%

v' The total assets and capital of the Corporation as of 31/12/2024 increased
by 2,119 Billion VND compared to 31/12/2023, mainly due to an increase in short-
term assets (shart-term receivables from customers) and liabilities (short-term loans

and financial lease liabilities).

2.3.2 Financial Situation of the Corporation through Financial Ratios

COEFFICIENT Thaks | RE

Group of payment ratios (calculated as of December

A 131)
Short-term debt payment ratio 1.35 1.78
Quick payment ratio 1.31 1.68
Cash payment ratio 0.04 - 0.30
Group of capital structure ratios (calculated as of

B | December 31)
Debt ralio 0.71 0.65
Debt ratio 0.30 0.15
Debt/Equity ratio 2.50 1.82

C Pe1‘l‘6ru1nnce ratio (calculated for the year)
Accounts receivable turnover 4.60 6.25
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COEFFICIENT B | e
Average collection period (days) i s 58.41
Invenlory turnover 57.32 46.93
D | Profitability ratio (calculated for the year)
Return on Assets (ROA) 0.02 0.03
Return on Equity (ROI) 0.12 g.11

v" Based on the above financial ratios, the financial situation of the Corporation
is relatively stable. The debt-to-equity ratio increased compared to 2023, mainly due
to an increase in short-term loans used for coffee business operations.

3. Appraisal of Financial Statements

The 2024 financial statements ending on December 31, 2024 (Including
separate financial statements and consolidated financial statements) have been
audited by AASC Auditing Company Limited, including:

v" Balance sheet

v Income statement

v" Cash flow statement

v’ Notes to financial statements

The Board of Supervisors has appraised the audited financial statements and
agreed with the audit opinion that "The financial statements fairly and reasonably
reflect, in all material respects, the financial situation of the Corporation as of
December 31, 2024, as well as the business results and cash flow situation for the
financial year ended on the same date, in accordance with the accounting standards
and regulations for enterprises.”

4. Salary and remuneration payment sitnation of the Board of Supervisors

Based on the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
and the audited business results of 2024, the Board of Supervisors reports the salary
and remuneration payment situation of each member of the Board of Supervisors as
follows:

Unit: VND
Full name Position Remuneration Salary, bonus
Tran Tan Nhat Head of Board 360,000,000 588,615,133
Tang Tran Tan Khai Member 240,000,000 665,93 1,500
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| Full name Position Remuneration Salary, bonus
Le Ngoc Dung Member 60,000,000 -
Nguyen Quoc Ky Member 120,000,000 243,466,300
Total 780,000,000 1,438,012,933

5. Report on the evaluation of transactions between Tin Nghia
Covporation and its subsidiaries in which the public company holds controlling
rights of 50% or more:

The main transactions in 2024 between the Corporation and its subsidiaries,
affiliates, and related parties are mainly the activities of buying and selling goods
and services; lending, repaying loans, and recovering loans. The Corporation
implements contracts and transactions between Tin Nghia Corporation and related
parties in accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise I.aw and the Corporation's
Charter; and discloses information in accordance with regulations.

(Detailed list of internal transactions attached in Appendix /)
I1L. SUPERVISION RESULTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
GENERAL MANAGEMENT
1. Results of supervision of the Board of Directors' activities

The current Board of Directors consists of 05 members, including 01
independent Board of Directors member, including:

v Ms. Dang Thi Thanh Ha Chairman

v Mr. Tran Trung Tuan Member

v/ Mr. Tran Ngoc Tho Independent BOD Member
v" Mr. Tran Hoai Nam Member

v" Mr. Nguyen Thanh Dat Member

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 04 (Four) quartexly regular meetings in
accordance with the law and the Corporation's Charter, 01 (One) extraordinary
meeting, and 44 (Forty-four) times of collecting opinions from members in writing.
The meetings were chaired by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, and
discussions ensured seriousness and responsibility. The members of the Board of
Directors fully participated in the meetings and had a high sense of responsibility for
participating in giving opinions on the meeting contents. The meetings were
recorded in the Minutes and Resolutions were issued for implementation. The
documents and Resolutions were issued and managed for storage in accordance with
regulations,

(Detailed list of Board of Directors’ Resolutions attached in Appendix 2)
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2. Results of Supervision of the General Director Board's activities

The General Director Board has assigned tasks to each individual within the
General Director Board.

The General Director Board has developed a business plan and implemented it
to member companies, departments/sections, and directly affiliated units.

Promptly develop internal management regulations and submit them to the
Board of Directors for approval and implementation.

Proactively assess business performance, forecast the market, control costs, and
implement solutions to improve business efficiency, ensuring capital for business
operations.

Fully implement the Resolutions of the Board of Directors,

Report and disclose information in a timely manner as prescribed for large-
scale public companies that have registered to trade shares on the Upcom market.

IV. ASSESSMENT OF COORDINATION BETWEEN THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE
GENERAL DIRECTOR BOARD

The Board of Supervisors, the Board of Directors, and the General Director
Board of the Corporation regularly maintain working relationships, closely
coordinating on the principle of the Corporation's and shareholders' interests.

The Board of Supervisors fully participates in meetings of the Board of
Directors and contributes opinions in the management and administration of the
Corporation.

The Board of Supervisors receives full information on the decisions of the
Board of Directors.

The reports of the General Director Board of the Corporation reflect data and
operating information of the Corporation publicly and transparently and are posted
on the Corporation's website. Information disclosure activities comply with
regulations and are timely.

In 2024, the activities of the Board of Directors, the General Director Board,
and the Board of Supervisors complied with legal regulations, the Corporation's
Charter, and the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

B. COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In 2024, the Board of Directors and the Executive Board of the company
closely coordinated in their work, performed their management and administration
roles well, and drastically implemented the tasks approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders. The activities of the Board of Directors and the Executive Board
have demonstrated efforts and flexibility in directing production and business, and
promoted the existing resources of the Corporation.
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From the results of production and business in 2024 and the operating plan for
2025, the Board of Supervisors recommends several contents as follows:

v For the Industrial Park sector: Focus on completing legal procedures,
compensation, and infrastructure investment for the Ong Keo Industrial Park.

v For the coffee business sector: continue with a cautious business plan,
ensuring profitability and debt recovery.

v Regarding financial investment in subsidiaries and affiliated companies:
have solutions to remove difficulties for companies that are still facing difficulties,
are inefficient, or have low efficiency.

v Have solutions to recover long-term outstanding debts.

v’ Focus on resolving and overcoming difficulties for projects and land.

C. SUPERVISION PLAN FOR 2025

v’ Supervise the implementation of the Resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2025 and the Resolutions and Decisions in the management and

administration of the Corporation for the Board of Directors and the Executive
Board.

v Conduct a review of the 6-month financial statements and an appraisal of the
Corporation's annual financial statements.

v Inspect and supervise the compliance of the Board of Directors and the
Management Board in implementing the regulations of the Corporation and the law.

v Attend meetings of the Board of Directors and other meetings of the
Corporation.

v’ Supervise. the implementation of periodic/irregular reports and information
disclosure to the State Securities Commission and the Stock Exchange in accordance
with the provisions of law on information disclosure in the Securities market.

v Exercise other powers and responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors as
prescribed by law, the'Corporation’s Charter and the Board of Supervisors' Operating
Regulations.

The above is the 2024 activity report and 2025 activity plan of the Board of
Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation, respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

On behalf of the Board of Supervisors

Head of the Board
Recipients:
- Shareholders;
- Board of Directors;
- Archive,

Tran Tan Nhat
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APPENDIX 1

Transactions between the Corporation and related parties of the Corporation, or
between the Corporation and major shareholders, internal persons, and related
parties of internal persons

(Attached is the Report from the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation dated April

9. 42025)
REIIHoNS tr:[":\[:sea::)tfi Resolution/
Name of hip with Registration p s Content and
Ay Head Office | on with Decision
No. | Organization the Number, Date : value of the
- - Address the Number (if ;
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing transaction
‘G Corporat any)
ion
A | The Corporation transaction is the Supplier of goods/services
3601038204
issued by the | 3rd Floor,
Busi.ness. No. 96_Hé ) Gas station for
Tin Nghia Rela}ted Registration Huy Giap B Resolution | rent.
1 parties of | Office - | Street, 09/NQ-
Petrol Joint - = 01/2024 Total value of the
1 the Department  of | Trung Ding HBQT a3
Stock ; p oa to transaction:
N Corporati | Planning and | Ward, Bién 12/2024 dated 2 454 545 457
BRn on Investment  of | Hoa City, 200, [
Dong Nai | Dong Nai VND.
Province on | Province
08/12/2008
3601038204
issued by the | 3rd Floor,
Business No. 96 Ha
Tin  Nehia Related Registration Huy Giap From Resolution | Office for rent.
8 parties of | Office ~ | Street, 09/NQ- Total value of the
Petrol Jomnt - " 01/2024 i
2 Stock the Department  of | Trung Diing e HPQT transaction:
Cam Corporati | Planning and | Ward, Bién 12/2024 dated 860,999,997
paty on Investment  of | Hoa City, 12/01/2024 | VND.
Dong Nai | Dong Nai
Province on | Province
08/12/2008
3601038204
1ssut_ed by the | 3rd Floor: Electricity, water,
Business No. 96 Ha _ and wastewater
Tin Nghia Relz?ted Registration Huy Giap From Resolution | toqiment  us age
f parties of | Office - | Street, 09/NQ- P
Petrol Joint - - 01/2024 ees.
3 Stock the Department  of | Trung Ding e HDQT i e ey
c Corporati | Planning and | Ward, Bién 12/2024 dated @ial ya ue. oL
CITRED on Investment  of | Hoa City, 12/01/2024 “225;3201‘56
Dong Nai | Dong Nai %NI,D :
Province on | Province '
08/12/2008




Time of

Relations . :
transacti | Resolution/
Name of hip with Registration . b Content and
No. | Organization the Number, Date HEad GITicest (qxhwatli DCC]S]OI]. value of the
e : Address the Number (if ;
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing transaction
; Corporat any)
1ol ion
3601038204 3rd Floor,
issued by the | No.96 Ha _
Business Huy Giap Providing
Ti e Related Registration Street, From Resolution | advertising
P"t] |3 'gt 12 | parties of | Office - | Trung Diing | 5004 09/NQ- | services on LED
g | JHEE ke Department  of | Ward, Bién HDQT | screens.
Stock . ’ AL LA to
Compan Corporati | Planning  and | Hoa City, 122024 dated Total value of the
pany on Investment  of | Dong Nai 12/01/2024 | transaction:
Dong Nai | Province 12,729,600 VND.
Province on
08/12/2008
3602738833 3rd Floor,
. . issued by the | No. 96 Ha
Tin Nghia . =
Transport Rela}ted Buspess. Huy Giap . Providing office
. parties of | Registration Street, Resolution .
Joint  Stock A From rental services.
CompanvTin the Office - | Trung Diing 01/2024 09/NQ- o] e
5 |y hiI; Y Corporati | Department  of | Ward, Bién % HBQT L
] on’s Planning  and | Hoa City, T diffieq; | T2msacton:
FatspR internal | Investment  of | Dong Nai 12/01/2024 | 350:909,092
Joie ISk ersons Don Nai | Province VND.
Company P g
Province on
29/02/2012
3602738833 3rd Floor,
issued by the | No. 96 Ha
Related Business Huy Giap Providing
Ti Nehia parties of | Registration Street, From Resolution | advertising
— ng the Office - | Trung Déing | (50, | O09NQ- | services on LED
6 o Corporati | Department  of | Ward, Bién HPQT | screens.
Joint  Stock : : - to
AR on's Planning and | Hoa City, 12/2004 dated Total value of the
pany internal Investment  of | Dong Nai 12/01/2024 | transaction:
persons Dong Nai | Province 39,758,688 VND.
Province on
29/02/2012
)
Business sireet L Providing
A : e Tam Phudc . advertising
Tin .Nghla Rela}ted Registration Residential From Resolution | (o \sos on LED
Professional | parties of | Office Al 09/NQ-
: ca & | 01/2024 screens.
) Security the Department  of R, HDPQT
: : . esettlement to Total value of the
Services Corporati | Planning and Arca.  Tam | 122024 dated -
Corporation | on Investment  of i [0l | Eensaetien:
Bt Naj | Phude, 18,273,600
g A Don Nai VND
Province on|p Vg. - :
25/03/2015 rovi




Time of

Relabions transacti | Resolution/
Name of hip with Registration i o Content and
ot Head Office | on with Decision
No. | Organization the Number, Date . value of the
.. ; Address the Number (if :
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing trapsaction
o Corporat any)
ion
:’)603272464 No. 60,
issued by the Srect X
Business T £ Phu('ﬂ; Providing
Tin  Nghia | Related | Registration Rzl;l dential o, Resolution | unloading  and
Professional | parties of | Office - ! 09/NQ- loading services.
‘ Area & | 01/2024
8 | Security the Department  of HPQT Total value of the
: : 3 Resettlement to :
Services Corporati | Planning  and Area.  Tam | 12/2024 dated transaction:
Corporation on Investment  of Phur (';c 12/01/2024 | 1,888,888,884
Dong Nai Dong Nai VND.
Province on | p e
25/03/2015
3603272464
e by fhe ne O
. Street 1,
DuSness Tam Phudc .
Tin Nghia | Related Registration ; 4 Resolution | Rental  parking
. : Residential From
Professional | parties of | Office - 09/NQ- | space.
. Area &} 01/2024
9 | Security the Department  of HDPQT Total value of the
: : : Resettlement to 2
Services Corporati | Planning and Bre Tam | 12/2024 dated transaction:
Corporation on [nvestment  of Phui’r’c 12/01/2024 | 89,181,813 VND.
Dong Nai D 4 .
: ong  Nal
Province on | b vince
25/03/2015
,3603372464 h No. 60, Compensation
ESU? essby the | Street 1, management for
usin
5 th 560KVA
Tin Nghia | Related Registration Tan} Ph'ucc Resolution ©
Professional es of | OFF Residential From 0O/N transformer
rofessiona parties © Ice " | Area & | 012024 Q- | station asset of the
10 | Security the Department  of HDPQT
. ; . Resettlement to rental factory.
Services Corporati | Planning and Area. Tam | 12/2024 dated Total h
Corporation on Investment  of K 12/01/2024 | 0% va'lue of the
Dong Nai | FRuse, . transaction:
Province T ];roor:’gin eNal 189,885,509
25/03/2015 ¢ RIS
3601047417
issued by the
Bistiess g ﬁm 1+900 Management fee,
ICD Bien Hoa | yo oo o Registration H?n}f‘zzl = From Resolution | infrastructure
- Tin Nghia | 25 o | Office | Loe b | o1202e | OONQ juseeles
11 | Logistics Joint | . 47 Department  of | 1., & HDPQT Total value of the
cia Tong . Tin Ward, to ol
- Stock Co Planning  and Bien  Hoa | 12/2024 dated transaction:
Company Onet | nvestment  of | o 12/01/2024 | 3,885,467,964
Dong Nai Ciy. Dong VND
= Naj Province ]
Province on
07/10/2009




Relations

Time of

pomvy ! . transacti | Resolution/
Nan!e of hip with Registration Head Office | on with Decision Content and
No. | Organization the Number, Date . value of the
e : Address the Number (if .
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing C transaction
: orporat any)
ton ion
3601047417
issued by the
Business Ilfln: . li|-900 Providing
ICD Bien Hoa Registration H':i lﬁma 51 F Resolution | advertising
- Tin Nghia | Ngudi c6 | Office = ng wa)]g‘ nl; 01;;6; A 09/NQ- | services on LED
12 | Logistics Joint | lién quan Department  of Tglr_llg Walr 4 % HPQT SCreens.
5 Stock | cia Tdng | Planning  and Bin Hba: 12/2024 dated Total value of the
Com one Investment of | . 12/01/2024 jon:
pany Cong ty | City, Dong transaction:
Dong Dal Nai Province 4,752,000 VND.
Province on
07/10/2009
3603655273 I1st  Floor,
Tua Loc issued by the | Nhon Trach
Clc;n:]mo ditie Related Business 6 Industrial
Compas; S | parties of | Registration Park - Resolution | Selling coffee.
T AR the Office - | Building, 01/2024 09/NQ- Total value of the
13 fied Corporati | Department of | Long  Tho @ HBQT transaction:
- on’s Planning  and | Commune, dated 42,068,292,931
ggn”f"ﬂ‘:ldmes intermal | [vestment  of | Nhon Trach | 2202 | [a/61/2024 | yND:
Limi?e B Y persons Dong Nai | District,
Province on | Dong Nai
11/7/2019 Province
3603655273 Ist  Floor,
1ssu|ed by the | Nhon Tra_ch Bravitlig
Related Business 6 Industrial warchouse  @nd
Tuan Loc parties of | Registration Par_k . From Resolution | 0.4 city rental
. the Office - | Building, 09/NQ- .
Commodities : 01/2024 services.
14 Compan Corporati | Department of | Long  Tho T HBQT e
Limife dy on’s Planning  and | Commune, 12/2024 dated Total va s the
internal | Investment  of | Nhon Trach 12/01/2094 | Tansactiom:
persons Dong Naj | District, 3,177,665,645
Province on | Dong  Nai VND.
11/7/2019 Province
31603655273 Ist  Floor,
issued by the | Nhon Trach
Related Business 6 Industrial
Tuan Pod parties of | Registration Park From Resolution | Sewage treatment
C % | the Office - | Building, X 09/NQ- fee.
ommodities ; 01/2024
15 Company Corporati | Department of | Long Tho 25 HPQT Total value of the
Limited on’s Planning and | Commune, 12/2024 dated transaction:
internal Investment  of | Nhon Trach 12/01/2024 | 4,026,263 VND.
persons Dong Nai | District,
Province on | Dong Nai
11/7/2019 Province




Time of

g5 afions transacti | Resolution/
Name of hip with Registration - - Content and
— Head Office | on with Decision
No. | Organization the Number, Date y value of the
s g Address the Number (if .
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing transaction
o Corporat any)
ion
?6032944“ Nhon Trach
issued by the 3 Tediisaal
Business Park - Lgha:e Providing
N Related Registration 5 . Hi F Resolution | advertising
pane parties of | Office = | o ! i) 09/NQ- services on LED
Smes Phuoc 01/2024
16 the Department  of HPQT screens.
Development g p Town, Nhon to
JS Compan Corporati | Planning  and Trach 12/2024 dated Total value of the
Pany | on Investment  of | =t 12/01/2024 | transaction:
Dong Nai Dons  Nai 43,765,530 VND.
Province on | oo vince
30/06/2015
.3603294‘:)“ i Nhon Trach Providing
gf:;?ness Y €13 Industrial transportation
. i t
Related Registration R th'lse Resolution BIUSESy S
Japanese , 2 Hiep From supply, waste
parties of | Office - 09/NQ- lecti q
17 SIS the Department  of Bi0G Ollicled HDQT e o
Development . : Town, Nhon to waste treatment.
e - Corporati | Planning and Trach 12/2024 dated
Pay i on Investment of | .. . 12/01/2024 | Total value of the
. | District, transaction:
Dong Nai Don Nai
Bt on | 5 ngi i, 5,653,191,422
30/06/2015 R VND.
3602181239
issued by the
Business 2411 Bui Providing
Tin Nghia - A | Related Registration Huu Nghia From Resolution | advertising
Chau parties of | Office - | Street, Tan | 41 mo94 09/NQ- | services on LED
18 | Investment the Department of | Van Ward, s HBQT Screers.
Joint - Stock | Corporati | Planning  and | Bien  Hoa 12/2024 dated Total value of the
Company on Investment of | City, Dong 12/01/2024 | transaction:
Dong Nai | Nai Province 21,384,000 VND.
Province on
08/12/2008
3600667859
issued by the
Business | 50" e Frenifing
Related Registration In -y Beomi Resolution | advertising
Thong Nhat | parties of | Office - | park. Tran 01/2024 09/NQ- services on LED
19 | Joint - Stock | the Department  of B i 8 HDPQT screens.
. : om to
Company Corporati | Planning  and | . . dated Total value of the
District, 12/2024 ;
on Investment of Dong N 12/01/2024 | transaction:
Dong Nai | b~ ce 34,918,560 VND.
Province on
24/02/2004




Relations

Time of

o : : transacti | Resolution/
Nan}e of hip with Registration Head Office | on with Decision Content and
No. | Organization the Number, Date . value of the
= ; Address the Number (if :
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing C transaction
: orporat any)
ton ion
;50149963 Dat Do I
issued by the Indusirial o
Business Dl IRENes Prov:d.lr}g
Tin Nghia - A | Related Registration h : Tho | From Resolution | advertising
50 | Chau parties of | Office oo Ol olmmos | 99NQ- | services on LED
Investment the Department of s HBbQT screens.
) : - Dat Do to
Joint - Stock | Corporati | Planning and | J. . dated Total value of the
District, Ba | 12/2024 "
Compa.ny on Investment of Ba . 12/01/2024 | transaction:
: Ria - Vung
Ria - Vung Tau | o 80,784,000 VND.
Province O | bovince
23/11/2009
ihongy TN Related Business N5l SEEn Providing
Real  Estate : e Group 14, ’ oy
: parties of | Registration Resolution | advertising
Joint  Stock Lap Thanh From — LED
Gompagglho | o . | Shtee - | Quarter, Dau | 012024 | 9ONQ- | Services on
2] ng Nhat Real Corporati | Department  of Giay T’own to HDQT screens.
Estate  Joint | 0 ° Planning, —and |.py0 o Niae | 1262078 dated | Total value of the
Stock internal Investment  of it 12/01/2024 | transaction:
S persons | Dong Nai Dong: Nk 42,768,000 VND.
Province O | province
17/8/2009
B. | Transactions where the Corperation is the buyer of goods/services
3601038204
issued by the
Business No. 96 Ha ) Purchasing  fuel
Tin Nighia Relgted Registration Huy  Giéap From Resolution (gasoline and oil).
! parties of | Office - | Street, Trung 09/NQ-
Petrol Joint - = 01/2024 Total value of the

1 Stock the Department  of | Ding Ward, - HDPQT pei e g
COC Corporati | Planning  and | Bién  Hoa 12/2024 dated )

Ry on [nvestment  of | City, Dong 12/01/2024 | 1,227,848,677

Dong Nai | Nai Province dong
Province on

08/12/2008

.360036461311 o el &

- : issue y the :
Tin ~ Nghia | po1ted | Business A, {BUGE Resolution | Waste collection
Industrial . : : Industrial From .

parties of Reglgtratlon OQ/NQ- SErvice.

9 Park the Off Park, Tam | 01/2024 HPQT e -_—
el Corporati | De I::?tment o% e, 2 dated tro - V? e
Joint-Stock = Bien  Hoa | 12/2024 AnSacLon.
o on Planning ancé & Do 12/01/2024 | 6,295,650 VND.

[hyEStRENS 0 . | Nai Province
Dong Nai




Time of

Relations g .
R . . transacti | Resolution/
Nan3e of hip with Registration Head Office | on with Decision CO:ltt‘,[Itff:][]Id
No. | Organization the Number, Da.te - the NumberlGr value of the
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing Corporat any) transaction
ion ion
Province on
08/11/2008
?50149963 Dat Do I
issued by the | 1 cirial
Business T c f
' ! Park. Ph . spection ees
Tin Nghia - A Relgted Registration L?)lg, £ ,}fﬁg From Resolution | 454 road tolls.
Cliau parties of | Office | Commune, 01/2024 G/NQ- Total value of the
3 Investment the Department  of Dat Do i HBQT P———
Joint - Stock | Corporati | Planning and District, Ba| 12/2024 dated 13,888,890 VND.
Company on [nvestment of Ba Ri 12/01/2024
; a - Vung
Ria - Vung Tau T
; au
Province Ol | povince
23/11/2009
3601381549 Consulting
i services for
E’z‘fdﬁ by the | \y5 01, Lot prgject
Tin  Nghia ELe5S C, Phan Chu pere e s
: Related Registration inh F esolution Pt ;
Industnal X Trinh Street, rom 09/N desien
parties of | Office - b | 01/2024 Q-
4 Ras the Department  of Quarie) Vi 2 HDQT consultancy, and
Development : : Ward, Bien o o
P Corporati | Planning  and dated cost estimation.
Joint-Stock e Hoa City, | 12/2024
on Investment  of z 12/01/2024 | Total value of the
Company Dong Nai Dong Nai e
3 Province ‘
Province on 2,937,750,801
10/12/2008 VND.
3601381549
gf:;ieifessby e Ma. O, ot Design
Tin. Nghia Rela}ted Registration %iii}:agtrizz From Re;c;ll&ltion Z::i(;?iion
Project parties of | Office “| Quang Vinh | 0172024 ?{D Qr- o g
5 M@agement the _ Depar.tment of Wara, Bien = Q :
Joint-Stock Corporati | Planning and Hoa City, | 12/2024 dated Total value of the
Company on Investment  of e Na; 12/01/2024 | transaction:
Dong Nai P iee 4,000,000 VND.
Province on
10/12/2008
3603272464 No 60
issued by the ) :
Tin  Nghia | Related ;3]_15?11353 k Street 1, Resolution | Security services.
. gl . £ ; 0 Tam Phuoc From 0‘9/NQ" Total 1 fth
Profes:smna p;rtles of | Registration Residential 01/2024 0 trc:a a v? ue' of the
e R 1 O el I o i v
Services Corporati | Department  of Urban 12/2024 e s
Corporation on Planning and Sl 12/01/2024 | VND.
Investment  of ; pTam

Dong Nai




Relations

Time of

i . . transacti | Resolution/
Narrfe 0!‘ hip with Registration Head Office | on with Decision Content and

No. | Organization the Number, Date ) value of the

= 3 . Address the Number (if .
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing transaction
i Corporat any)
5 ion
Province on | Phuoc, Dong
25/03/2015 Nai Province
?603372‘;164 L[ Noo 60, Loading  and
Efll;?ness Y € Street 1, unloading
. ‘ ; ices, | rt
Tin Nghia | Related Registration Tan? Ph.uoc Resolution | ooy o MHPO
g y Residential From and export of
Professional | parties of | Office - 09/NQ-
: Area & | 01/2024 goods, labor, and
7 | Security the Department  of R HPQT . :
y : g esettlement to cleaning services.
Services Corporati | Planning and e Tam | 122024 dated
Corporation | on Investment  of | 5o 12jaan | ToE vaue G the
. | Phuoe, transaction:
Dong Nai .
Protiiee on | Dong  Nai 259,668,380
Province VND
25/03/2015 ?
3603272464 N 60 Maintenance,
issued by the = : repair, and
. Street 1,
Business Tam Phude replacement fees
Tin  Nghia | Related Registration ResiiEatal E Resolution | for damaged
Professional | parties of | Office = e & 01;200[2 4 09/NQ- | equipment in the
8 | Security the Department  of HBQT fire  protection
; . - Resettlement to
Services Corporati | Planning and dated systern.
: Area, Tam | 12/2024
Corporation | on Investment  of Phudc 12/01/2024 | Total value of the
Province on| 07 Nai e
25/03/2015 Progince VND.
3601047417
oed B o0
= Lot .
ICD) Bien Hoa .. . | Registration Ngtmnal Resolution s e
) .| Ngudi c6 Highway 51, | From rental.
= B iNehia | g "o o | [Othee | Tong, Bawhy| OTpm2e | 2B
9 | Logistics Joint | "o %M | Department  of | Zor® HpQT | Total value of the
cua Tong . Tan Ward, to transaction:
: Stock | cangry | Flamning - and | pe Cpn | o004 | | dated
Company gy Investment of | . 12/01/2024 | 671,137,674
. | City, Dong VND.
Dong Nai 3 :
; Nai Province
Province on
07/10/2009
Dong Nai
;mgcc;gtsjExport Related 3600268170 do S6 647, Xa From Resolution | Purchase cashew
Ar 'cul‘i‘ILllrgal parties of | S K& hoach va | 15 Ha Néi, P. 01/2024 09/NQ- nuts.

10 Pf:iucts g | the Pdututinh Déng | Long Binh, - HBQT | Total value of the
Fr a fa Corporati | Nai cdp ngay B[én Hoa, 12/2024 dated transaction:
ng’ck on 01/07/2010 Péng Nai. 12/01/2024 | 93,976,391 VND.
Company




Relati Time of
g LI ; . transacti | Resolution/
Name of hip with Registration 2 " Content and
= E Head Office | on with Decision
No. | Organization the Number, Date ; value of the
= ; Address the Number (if -
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing transaction
o Corporat any)
ion
3600268170
Dong  Nai E‘S“?d by e tg 647,
Import Export o Hanoi . Warehouse rental
: Related Registration . Resolution .
Processing arics of | Office _ | Highway, From 09/NQ- service,
Agricultural | Long Binh | 01/2024 Total value of the
11 the Department  of ; HDPQT ,
Products And . : Ward, Bien o transaction:
Foods  Joint | CorPorati | Planning —and { pr " o | 1272024 Ll 00
5 on Investment  of ) 12/01/2024 | 360:000,0
tock Don Nai Dong Nai VND.
Company & Province
Province on
01/07/2010
3600268170
Dong  Nai gsu‘ﬁ’d by ™elyg 84
Import Expor‘t us1‘ness. Hanoi ' Rental of forklifts
: Related Registration . Resolution
Processing arties of | Office _ | Highway, From 09/NQ and conveyor
Agricultural | F ¢ Long Binh | 01/2024 T | belts.
12 the Department  of f HPQT
Products And et | Pl i Ward, Bien to e Total value of the
Foods Joint| 0P : tmg . | Hoa  City, | 1212024 | )01 p0s, | transaction:
Stock e [‘; vestmen NO. Dong Nai 82.000 000 VND.
Company ong & province
Province on
01/07/2010
3603438670 Street No. 7
issued by the Don 'Sa;
Related Business Gong iR
parties of | Registration Aren. ‘Lon From Resolution | Plant care
Nhon Trach | the Office - | Tan ? g 01/2024 09/NQ- services.
13 | Green Trees | Corporati | Department of o — % HBQT Total value of the
Corporation on’s Planning  and ’ dated transaction:
3 Nhon Trach | 12/2024
internal Investment  of District 12/01/2024 | 50,000,000 VND.
persons Dong Nai Do ’ Nai
Province on Provgince
10/01/2017
3603438670 Street No. 7
1ssu¢.3d byl SHIE Dong  Sai Tree planting
R.elgted Bus%ness . Gon ihan ‘ canbrach
parties of | Registration Aven b From Resolution | .. ccution
Nhon Trach | the Office - i g 09/NQ- .
: Tan 01/2024 services.
14 | Green Trees | Corporati | Department of HPQT
. p o Commune, to Total value of the
Corporation on’s Planning and dated -
) Nhon Trach | 12/2024 transaction:
internal Investment  of District 12/01/2024 184.442 400
persons Dong Nai Don ¥ Nai VN]’:) Z
Province on Provgince ’
10/01/2017




Time of

Relations transacti | Resolution/
Nan3e of hip with Registration Head Office | on with Pecisivi Content and
No. | Organization the Number, Date : value of the
o : Address the Number (if :
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing C transaction
: orporat any)
R ion
3602738833
gftl;?rfessby s =i _ElGon, .
Nearir c0 Registratio e o Ld Resolution i i and
Tin  Nghia | lien quan | J2°T°" | Huy Gidp | From Sl e
Transport clia Ngudi Street, Trung | 01/2024 services.
5 Joint  Stock | ndi bo Deparmient gt Diing Ward to SO, Total value of th
s * | Planning and | o8 i dated oial, valucyariing
Company TOﬂg Bién Hoa 12/2024 transaction:
¥ Investment of | .. 12/01/2024
Congty | . | City, Dong 88,140,000 VND.
ong Nai ; » CRRa
5 Nai Province
Province on
27/02/2012
3600248086
issued by the | No. 221B,
Related Business Pham Van
- parties of | Registration Thuan From Resolution | Purchase of
P;;ri‘a;euﬁc the Office - | Street, Tan | 55, | 09/NQ- | medical supplies.
16 LI SPeck Corporati | Department  of | Tien Ward, 5 HbQT Total value of the
C 4 on’s Planning and | Bien Hoa 12/2004 dated transaction:
e internal | Investment  of | City, Dong 12/01/2024 | 3,977,209 VND.
persons Dong Nai | Nai
Province on | Province
23/12/2005
:’:602041707 L4.09-10,
issued by the
d X NS5 Street,
Relate Business Group 14, ) Inspection  fees
Thetg NNRat parties of | Registration ey lenk| Team Resolution | 4nd road tolls.
the Office - 09/NQ-
Real Estate : Quarter, Dau | 01/2024 Total value of the
17 : Corporati | Department of | <. HBbQT i
Joint  Stock i Plannine P Giay Town, to Dated transaction:
sipany internal | Investment  of S:Sot’rllgc : Bhas | TH208 | 90 by || T2 B VANDL
persons Dong Nai g
2 Dong  Nai
Province on B inhE
17/8/2009
3601010336 Phuoc  An
issued by the | Port
Petro Vietnam Relaied ¢ gus%ness. Logistics el Container
BhfiesAnE it parties o egistration Service o esolution transportation
the Office - | Area, Ba 09/NQ- f
Investment & g 01/2024 ces.
18 . Corporati | Department  of | Truong HPQT
Operation , Elanii d to Jated Total value of the
Joint  Stock | °%® anning - anc | Hamlet, 12/2024 Hee E ko
P internal Investment  of | Phuoc An 12/01/2024 :
ompany persons Dong Nai | Commune, 4,500,000 VND.
Province on | Nhon Trach
14/5/2008 District,

10




Time of

Relations ; :
Name of hip with Registration H transz.nctl Resol‘u!'lonf Content and
Ne. | Organizati the Number, Date G Oifficet Towwiith e value of the
pare h ; Address the Number (if =
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing Corporat ) transaction
lon ion
Dong  Nai
Province
C. | Transactions of borrowing and lending
3555;?1113993?/5 the e I?O I
Tin Nehi Business Edimll)il Btenst £
i Ngnia - . : ark, uoc g X1ension 0
Phuong Dong R:l};:j of ge;fglf;ranon _| Long Tho RTZ%S?“ working‘ capital
{ | Industrial '?he Denartment  of | COMMUne; In HDQT loan period.
Park Joint . P ; Dat Do | 01/2024 Total value:
Stock Corporati | Planning and District. Ba dated 131.500.000.000
Comprng on Investment of Ba Ria - ’Vung 15/01/2024 VN_’D 3545
Ria - Vung Tau Tau :
Province on | b vince
23/11/2009 ’
_3600694267 Street No. 7,
gil;?sessby s Dong  Sai Extension of
Nhon Trach | Related | Registaton i?:a, [fgf:; Reséolution Ez;k;réiodcapxtal
, | Investment parties ot | Office " | Tan In LG, '
Joint - Stock IhE : Department  of Commune 01/2024 HBQT Total yalue:
Corporati | Plannin and ‘ dated 159,980,867,657
Company P anning Nhon Trach el
on Investment of District, 16/01/2024 | VND.
I?Oﬂf-:»’ Nai Dong  Nai
rovince on .
14/9/2004 ST
3602181239
issued by the
Business 2/11 Bui
Tin Nghia - A | Related | Registration Huu Nghia Resolution | Working capital
Chau parties of | Office - | Street, Tan T 29/NQ- | lending
3 Investment the Department of | Van Ward, 02/2024 HPQT Total value:
Joint - Stock | Corporati | Planning and | Bien Hoa dated 70,000,000,000
Company on Investment  of | City, Dong 06/02/2024 | VND.
Dong Nai | Nai Province
Province on
08/12/2008

11




Time of

Reelations transacti | Resolution/
Name of hip with Registration : — Content and
Tl Head Office | on with Decision
No. | Organization the Number, Date . value of the
= . Address the Number (if :
/ Individual | Cerporat | of Issue, Issuing transaction
: Corporat any)
ion ion
330149]3963515321 Dat Do I
eBusinessy | Industrial
i, [lghia, - Registration hars, Phuse Resolution | Working  capital
Phuong Dong | Related Office | Long  Tho 33/NQ- lending

4 |Industial | parties of | pepartmene  of | COMTUNS, i HPQT |Total  value:
Park Joint | the . Dat Do | 02/2024
Stock . | Planning and District. Ba dated 53,000,000,000

- Corporall | 1yestment of Ba | oo % 23/02/2024 { VND.

Company on y Ria - Vung

Ria - Vung Tau

A Tau

Province on | bovince

23/11/2009 i

3602181239

issued by the

Business 2L Bui _ _
Tin Nghia - A | Related | Registration Huu Nghia Resolution | Working  capital
Chau parties of | Office - | Street, Tan 77/NQ- | lending

5 | Investment the Department of | Van Ward, | In 3/2024 HbQT Total value:

Joint - Stock | Corporati | Planning  and | Bien  Hoa dated 11,280,273,973
Company on Investment of | City, Dong 29/3/2024 | yND.

Dong Nai | Nai Province

Province on

08/12/2008

350149963 5issu Dat Do I

ed by the ’

Sushiess Industrial
1D hgara - Registration Bark, Do Resolution | Working capital
Phuong Dong | Related | e Long  Tho OUN el
Industrial arties of e ~. | Commune Q- &

6 Park i ph Department  of Dat ]50 In 4/2024 HbQT Total value:
S, Ee " Planning  and District, Ba dated 130,000,000,000
2 OTPOL | Investment of Ba | p.™ 30 04/4/2024 | VND.

SRRy 25 Ria - Vung Tau Tau &

Province Gl [ fromtirms

23/11/2009 ?

3602181239

issued by the
_ ' Busn‘ness‘ 2/11 Byl _ Bensien o
Tin Nghia - A | Related Registration Huu Nghia Resolution | o tking capital
Chau parties of | Office - | Street, Tan 150/NQ- loan period

7 Investment the Department of | Van Ward, | In 7/2024 HDOQT ) )
Joint - Stock | Corporati | Planning and | Bien Hoa dated Tog ValliTe;
Company on Investment  of | City, Dong 12/7/2024 81,391,780,822

Dong Nai | Nai Province VND.
Province on
08/12/2008

12




Time of

Relations transacti | Resolution/
Name of hip with Registration e . Content and
e Head Office | on with Decision
No. | Organization the Number, Date . value of the
o s : Address the Number (if .
/ Individual | Corporat | of Issue, Issuing transaction
fon Corporat any)
ion
3602181239
issued by the
Business 2/11 Bui -
: Exte of
Tin Nghia - A | Related Registration Huu Nghia Resolution w);rk?fll;m capital
Chau parties of | Office - | Street, Tan In 23MNQ- I yean period
8 | Investment the Department of | Van Ward, 11/2024 HDBQT i ’ !
Joint - Stock | Corporati | Planning  and | Bien  Hoa dated ’f:éasgl V; lu;
Company on Investment  of | City, Dong 21/11/2024 391,483,
Dong Nai | Nai Province VND.
Province on
08/12/2008

13




APPENDIX 2
Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors issued in 2024

(Attached is the Report from the Board of Supervisors of Tin Nghia Corporation

dated April 2, 2025)

No.

Resolution/
Decision No.

Date

Content

Approv
al rate

09/NQ-IDQT

12/01/2024

Approval of the policy for signing and
executing contracts and transactions with
parties related to the internal persons,
within the authority of the Board of
Directors, as expected to arise in 2024.

100%

10/NQ-HPQT

15/01/2024

Approval of the policy for extending and
adjusting the interest rate on loans for Tin
Nghia - Phuong Dong Industrial Park Joint
Stock Company.

100%

11/NQ-HPQT

15/01/2024

Approval of the policy for reimbursing
previously paid fees and supporting costs
for customers due to land recovery from
leases in the An Phuoc Industrial Park.

100%

12/NQ-HPQT

16/01/2024

Approval of the policy for granting a short-
term credit limit for coffee business in 2024
for Tin Nghia Corporation

100%

Ln

13/NQ-HPQT

16/01/2024

Approval of the rental price for
infrastructure in the Industrial Park, as well
as the prices for goods and services in 2024.

100%

14/NQ-IIPQT

16/01/2024

Approval of the policy for receiving back
the land from the Hiep Hoa Residential and
Resettlement Project.

100%

15/NQ-HPQT

16/01/2024

Approval of the policy for adjusting and re-
issuing the Investment Registration
Certificate for Tin Nghia Corporation.

100%

16/NQ-HPQT

16/01/2024

Approval of the policy for extending the
loan repayment period for Tin Nghia — A
Chau Investment Joint - Stock Company.

100%

17/NQ-HPQT

16/01/2024

Approval of the policy for financial
treatment of debt cancellation for Art Dat
Vang Limited Liability Company.

100%

10

18/NQ-HDQT

16/01/2024

Approval of the policy for borrowings from
BIDV - Dong Dong Nai Branch.

100%

11

19/NQ-HPQT

16/01/2024

Approval of the report on the 2023 business
performance and the operation plan for
2024 of Tin Nghia Corporation.

100%

12

26/NQ-HPQT

31/01/2024

Approval of the policy appoint a
representative to participate in voting at the
Board of Directors' meeting of Phuoc Tan
Trading and Construction Joint - Stock
Company.

100%

1




Resolution/

Approv

He: Decision No. e Content al rate
Approval of the policy for providing a loan
13 29/NQ-HDQT 06/02/2024 | to Tin Nghia — A Chau Investment Joint | 100%
Stock Company.
Approval of the policy for providing a loan
14 33/NQ-HDQT 23/02/2024 | to Tin Nghia - Phuong Dong Industrial Park | 100%
Joint Stock Company.
Approval of the policy for allowing Tin
Nghia Petrol Joint - Stock Company to .
e SQR-HBOT 26/021200% | | ove, the Mol Staclony of ‘BN Nghia $00%s
Corporation.
Approval of the policy for finalizing the list
of shareholders entitled to attend the 2024 .
L SACREDOL RHIPAENER Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of 1007
Tin Nghia Corporation.
Issuing the organizational and operational 5
17 SRITR-REIR A, regulations of Tin Nghia Corporation. Lo
Amending the Investment Registration
18 42/Qb-HBQT 18/03/2024 | Certificate for Nhon Trach 3 Industrial Park | 100%
- Phase 2.
20, 45, 46,47, 49,
Sl 92 ek 155 G
67, 68,70, 71, 72,
84, 85, 95, 100, 124,

19 162, 165, 184, 188, Appointing or removing staff that work at 100%
191, 193, 195, 200, subsidiaries. .
201,217, 218, 219,

220, 237, 238, 241,

242, 245, 246, 255,

267,275,276
Approval of the policy for adjusting the
20 TINQ-HDPQT 29/03/2024 | interest rate on the loan for Tin Nghia - A | 100%
Chau Investment Joint Stock Company.
Approval of the policy to terminate the
shareholder list announcement and change
21 80/NQ-HDQT 01/04/2024 | the date of the 2024 Annual General 100%
Meeting of Shareholders of Tin Nghia
Corporation.
Approval of the policy to provide a loan to

5.9 91/NQ-HDQT 04/04/2024 | Tin Nghia - Phuong Dong Industrial Park | 100%
Joint Stock Company.
Approval of the matters to be presented at

23 102/NQ-HDQT 19/04/2024 | the 2024 Annual General Meeting of | 100%
Shareholders of Tin Nghia Corporation.
Approval of the policy for the appointed

24 120/NQ-HDPQT 22/5/2024 | representative to participate in voting at the 80%

126/ NQ-HDQT 29/5/2024 | Board of Directors' meeting of Tin Nghia — °

A Chau Investment Joint Stock Company.

2




Resolution/
Decision No.

Date

Content

Approv
al rate

25

122/NQ-HbQT

22/05/2024

Approval of various matters to be presented
at the periodical Board of Directors'
meeting in Quarter 2,2024.

100%

26

127/QB-HBQT

29/05/2024

Issuing the Financial Regulations of Tin
Nghia Corporation.

100%

27

129/QD-HDQT

04/06/2024

Deciding on the transfer of land use rights
for the Ong Keo Industrial Park
infrastructure.

100%

| 28

133/NQ-HPQT

10/06/2024

Approval of the policy for adding collateral
assets for Tin Nghia Corporation's loan at
BIDV - Dong Dong Nai Branch.

100%

29

134/NQ-HPQT

10/06/2024

Selecting the auditing firm for the 2024
financial statements.

100%

30

139/NQ-HPQT

17/06/2024

Implementing the dividend payment for
2023.

100%

31

145/NQ-HPQT

10/07/2024

Approval of the actual wage fund for 2023
and the planned wage fund for 2024 of Tin
Nghia Corporation.

100%

32

150/NQ-IIPQT

12/07/2024

Approval of the policy to extend the loan
repayment period granted to Tin Nghia — A
Chau Investment Joint Stock Company.g

100%

33

153/Qb-HbQT

16/07/2024

Dismissing the position and terminating the
labor contract of the Deputy General
Director of Tin Nghia Corporation.

100%

34

155/NQ-HDQT

18/07/2024

Approval of the report on the business
performance for the first half of 2024 and
the operation plan for the second half of
2024 of Tin Nghia Corporation.

100%

85

170/NQ-HDQT

09/09/2024

Approval of the policy for short-term loan
for coffee business at Agribank - Dong Nai
Branch.

100%

36

172/NQ-HDPQT

11/09/2024

Approval of the policy for some matters
related to The Tan Van Islet Residential,
Service, and Tourism Project (Centria
Island) of Tin Nghia — A Chau Investment
Joint Stock Company.

100%

£

174/NQ-HPQT

01/10/2024

Approval of the policy for short-term loan
for coffee business of Tin Nghia
Corporation at CCB Bank - Ho Chi Minh
City Branch.

100%

38

175/NQ-HDQT

01/10/2024

Approval of the policy for extending the
loan guarantee term for Tin Nghia - Phuong
Dong Industrial Park Joint Stock Company
at PG Bank - Dong Nai Branch.

100%




No.

Resolution/
Decision No.

Date

Content

Approv
al rate

39

179/NQ-HBQT

08/10/2024

Approval of the policy for paying costs to
ICD Bien Hoa - Tin Nghia Logistics Joint -
Stock Company for the land area of 7,1
hectares at Nhon Trach 3 Industrial Park -
Phase 2.

100%

40

182/QP-HDQT

15/10/2024

Leasing out 2,9 hectares of land at An
Phuoc Industrial Park to Binh Minh Do
Real Estate Company Limited.

100%

41

185/NQ-HPQT

18/10/2024

Approval of the report on the business
performance for the first 9 months and the
plan for the last 3 months of 2024 of Tin
Nghia Corporation.

100%

42

186/NQ-HPQT

18/10/2024

Approval of the short-term credit limit for
bank loans for the Corporation’s coffee
business operations in 2025.

100%

43

187/NQ-HPQT

18/10/2024

Recovering the capital used to purchase 23
land plots for the Dong Sai Gon University
project of Nhon Trach Investment Joint -
Stock Company.

100%

44

203/NQ-HPQT

07/11/2024

Approval of the infrastructure usage fee for
the Nhon Trach 3&4 Power Plant project by
PetroVietnam Power Corporation (PV
Power) at Ong Keo Industrial Park.

100%

45

207/NQ-HDQT

12/11/2024

Approval of the one-time payment umit
price for infrastructure usage fees for the
29.157 m? land leased for Hung Ta
Company Limited at Nhon Trach 3
Industrial Park - Phase 1.

100%

46

209/QD-HDPQT

14/11/2024

Adjustment of the Investment Registration
Certificate for  the  Infrastructure
Development and Business Project of Ong
Keo Industrial Park.

100%

47

213, 226, 227/NQ-
HDQT

14/11/2024
18/11/2024

Approval of the written authorization by a
Board of Directors member of Tin Nghia
Corporation.

100%

48

222/QD-HDQT

18/11/2024

Dismissing the position and terminating the
labor contract of the Deputy General
Director of Tin Nghia Corporation.

100%

49

228/NQ-HPQT

19/11/2024

Obtaining financing from from BIDV -
Dong Dong Nai Branch.

100%

50

231/NQ-HPQT

21/11/2024

Approval of the policy for extending the
loan repayment period for Tin Nghia — A
Chau Investment Joint - Stock Company

100%

Sl

233/NQ-HDQT

21/11/2024

Approval of the organizational
restructuring plan for the departments and
functional divisions of the parent company
- Tin Nghia Corporation.

100%

4




No.

Resolution/
Decision No.

Date

Content

Approv
al rate

32

234/NQ-HPQT

21/11/2024

Approval of the additional policy to resolve
difficulties in the real estate project at Tin
Nghia — A Chau Investment Joint Stock
Company.

100%

58

235/NQ-HPQT

21/11/2024

Approval of the policy for ICD Bien Hoa-
Tin Nghia Logistics Joint Stock Company
to transfer assets on land and lease the land
with the associated assets at Nhon Trach 3
Industrial Park, as well as to invest in
building a modern warehouse system at
Phuoc An Port.

100%

54

252/0D-HDQT

09/12/2024

Adjusting the timeline for the Phuoc Binh
fuel station project in Phuoc Binh
Commune, Long Thanh District, Dong Nai
Province.

100%

253/NQ-HDQT

11/12/2024

Approval of the restructuring plan for Tin
Nghia Corporation.

100%

56

259/NQ-HDBQT

18/12/2024

Approval of the selling price for the D7
property at Quang Vinh Residential Area.

100%

St

262/NQ-HDQT

19/12/2024

Approval of the starting price for the
transfer of Tin Nghia Corporation's stake in
Tin Nghia — A Chau Investment Joint Stock
Company.

80%

58

264/QB-HPQT

23/12/2024

Issuing the organizational and operational
regulations for Tin Nghia Corporation.

100%

59

272/NQ-HDQT

30/12/2024

Approval of the starting price for the
transfer of Tin Nghia Corporation's stake in
Tin Nghia Joint Stock Company (Laos).

80%

60

274/NQ-HDQT

30/12/2024

Approval of the decision to halt the
implementation of the Long Khanh
Shopping Mall project

100%




TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: ¥Y/TTr - HDQT
Bien Hoa, May 93, 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the approval of the Audited Financial Statements for 2024

To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26,
2019;

Pursuant to the Charter of Tin Nghia Corporation,

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the Audited Financial Statements for 2024 as follows:

The financial statements of Tin Nghia Corporation (hereinafter referred to as
“Tin Nghia Corporation” or “the Corporation”) for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2024 (including the consolidated financial statements and separate financial
statements) have been audited and certified by AASC Limited, and inspected by the
Corporation's Board of Supervisors. The audited financial statements for 2024 include

the following:
(1) Report of the General Director Board.
(2) Report of the Independent Auditor.
(3) Balance sheet as of December 31, 2024.
(4) Report on Business Performance Results for 2024.
(5) Report on Cash Flow for 2024.
(6) Explanation of the Financial Statements for 2024.

AASC Limited has confirmed the consolidated financial statements and
separate financial statements as follows: “In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements (and separate financial statements) have fairly and reasonably reflected, in
all material respects, the consolidated financial situation of the Group (and of the
Corporation) as of December 31, 2024, as well as the consolidated business
performance results (and separate business performance results) and the consolidated
cash flow situation (and separate cash flow situation) for the fiscal year ended on the
same date, in accordance with the Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise
Accounting System and the legal regulations related to the preparation and
presentation of financial statements™.

1




The detailed report is attached and published on the website of Tin Nghia
Corporation.
Respectfully submit to the Congress for consideration and approval./.

g ON BEHALF OF
AEpie THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above;
- Archive: Meeting Documents, BOD’s 5 C_HAIRMAN
Document. ONG ¢

Dang Thi Thanh Ha
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Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward, Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Tin Nghia Corporation (“the Corporation™) presents its report and the Corperation’s

Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024.

THE CORPORATION

Tin Nghia Corporation which was established
stock company No. 3600283394 issued by Don
November 2004, 25th re-registered on 21 November 2024.

and operating activities under Enterprise Registration Certificate joint
g Nai Department of Investment and Planning for the first time on 03

The Corporation’s head office is located at: 96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward, Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai
province,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF SUPERVISION

The members of the Board of Directors during the year and to the reporting date are:

Mrs. Dang Thi Thanh Ha Chairwoman
Mr. Tran Hoaj Nam Member
Mr, Tran Trung Tuan Member
Mr Nguyen Thanh Dat Member
Mr. Tran Ngoc Tho Member

The members of the Board of Management during the year and to the reporting date are:

Mr. Tran Trung Tuan General Director

Mr. Nguyen Cac Nhon Deputy General Director

Mr. Hoang Sy Quyet Deputy General Director Resigned on 18/11/2024
Mr. Nguyen Hieu Loc Deputy General Director Resigned on 20/07/2024
Mr, Le Van Danh Deputy General Director Resigned on 01/01/2024

The members of the Board of Supervision are:

Mr. Tran Tan Nhat Head of the Board of Supervision

Mr. Tang Tran Tan Khai Member

Mr. Nguyen Quoc Ky Member Appointed on 22/05/2024

Mrs. Le Ngoc Dung Member Resigned on 22/05/2024

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE ‘
l

The legal representatives of the Corporation during the year and until the preparation of these Consolidated Financial |
Statements are Mrs. Dang Thi Thanh Ha - Chairwoman of the Board of Directors and Mr, Tran Trung Tuan — General |

Director.

AUDITORS
The auditors of the AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited have taken the audit of the Consolidated Financial

Statements for the Corporation,
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Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward, Bi=z Hoa city, Dong Nai province
STA‘I‘EMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

le for the Consolidated Financial Statements which give a true and fair view of
year. In preparing those

The Board of Management is responsib
the financial position of the Corporation, its operating results and its cash flows for the

Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Management is required to:

Establish and maintain an internal control system which is determined necessary by the Board of Management
and Board of Directors to ensure the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements do

not contain any material misstatement caused by errors or frauds;

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the Consolidated Financial Statements; .

Prepare and present the Consolidated Financial Statements on the basis of compliance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements;

- Prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Corporation will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that accounting records are kept to reflect the financial position
of the Corporation, with reasonable accuracy at any time and to ensure that the Consolidated Financial Statements
comply with the current State’s regulations. It is responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

!
The Board of Management confirms that the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position as at 31/12/2024, its operating results and cash flows for the fiscal year then ended of the
Corporation in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other commitments

The Board of Management pledges that the Corporation complies with the Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31
December 2020 on detailing and guiding the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securjties and the
Corporation does not violate the obligations of information disclosure in accordance with the regulations of the
Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance guiding the disclosure of
information on Securities Market and the Circular No. 68/2024/TT-BTC dated 18 September 2024 issued by the
Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some articles of the Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC.

General Director
Bien Hoa City, 28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

&

To: Shareholders, the Board of Directors and the Board of Management

Tin Nghia Corporation

rporation prepared on 28 March 2025, as
n as at 31 December 2024,
al year then ended and Notes

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of Tin Nghia Co
set out on pages 06 to 72, including: Consolidated Statement of Financial Positio
Consolidated Statement of Income, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the fisc

to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Board of Management’s responsibility

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Corporate Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements and for such internal control as the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation and presentation of the Consolodated Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with standards and ethical requirements; plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Consolidated Financial Statements are free from material misstatermnent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Auditors’ opinion

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the

' ghia Corporation as at 31 December 2024, its operating results and its cash flows for the

financial position of Tin N
fiscal year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting

System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.

T: (84) 24 3824 1990 | F: (B4)24 3825 3973 | 1 14 Phung Hieu, Hanoi, Vielnam A member of jg)81 International

| HANG KIEM TOAN AASE




Emphalsis of matter

We draw readers’ attention to Note No. 41 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which discloses
that Nhon Trach Investment Joint Stock Company (“NIC”), a subsidiary of the Corporation, and its key managers
are currently under prosecution in connection with a case that occurred at NIC and as at the date of preparation of
these Consolidated Financial Statements, no legally effective court judgment has been issued. The Board of
Managément of the Corporation will continue to update the information upon receipt of a legally effective court
judgment from the competent authorities and will fully reflect any related impacts in the Consolidated Financial

Statemelnts of subsequent periods.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

AASC %uditing Firm Company Limited

W Phafn Van Sang
Deputineneral Director Auditor

Certificate of registration to audit practice Certificate of registration to audit practice
No. 24?4-2023-002-1 No. 3864-2025-002-1
Ho Ch:l Minh City, 28 March 2025




Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,
Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

Consclidated Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024 |

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024

Code ASSETS

100 A. CURRENT ASSETS

110
111
112

120
121
122
123

130
131
132
135
136
137
139

140

141
149

150
151
152
153

200

210
216

L
L
2

1L,
L.

2, Provision for diminution in value of trading securities

3

IIL

I

N g

i e

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash
Cash equivalents

Short-term financial investments

Trading securities

Held-to-maturity investments

Short-term receivables

Short-term trade receivables
Short-term prepayments to suppliers
Short-term lending receivables

Other short-term receivables

Provision for short-term doubtful debts
Shortage of assets awaiting resolution

. Inventories

Inventories
Provision for devajuation of inventories

Other short-term assets

Short-term prepaid expenses

Deductible VAT

Taxes and other receivables from State budget

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term receivables
Long-term other receivables

Note

OO ~] O a

10

15

20

8

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
5,067,166,778242  3,681,160,122,681 |
536,544,589,313  602,122,958,828
279.633,871.956  487,281,710,055 |
256,910,717,357 114,341,248,773
|
563306,076,601  218,553,248,963 |
6,616,661,800 6,616,661,800 |
; (573,714,800)
556,689.414,801  212,510,301,963 |
|
3,589,887,007,733  2,442,966,264,572 |
2.550,934,547,283  1,145,897,353,271 |
762,790,423,176 19,579,057,920 |
312,054,805,041  310,030,009,270 |
242.950,575,652  1,264,206,967,464 |
(279,770,606,911)  (296,825,842,081)
27,263,492 78,718,728 |
311,613,753,270  335,813,611,687 |
319,931,601,076  336,087,796,414 |
(8,317,847,797) (274,184,727)
65,815,351,316 81,704,038,631
6,327,880,854 9,938,553,412 |
40,276,040,832 59,969,686,334
19.211,429,630 11,795,798,885
13,014,274,131,028  11,896,150,469,356
il
1,043,019,280,498 $1,945,222,466

1,043,019,280,498

51,945,222,466 |
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Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,
Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

_— s - S T T S I S O

Code ASSETS

220
221
222
223
227
228
229

230
231
232

240
24]
242

250
252
253
254

260
261
269

270

%

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024

{continued)

I. Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets 12
- | Historical cost

- : Accumulated depreciation

2. Intangible fixed assets 13
- | Historical cost

- | Aecumulated amortization

. Investment properties 14
| Historical cost
Accumulated depreciation

. Long-term assets in progress 11
Long-term work in progress
Construction in progress

Long-term financial investments 4
Investments in joint ventures and associates
Equity investments in other entities

Provision for devaluation of long-term investments

A RNl £3"2~

VL Other long-term assets

1. Long-term prepaid expenses 15
2. Goodwill 16
TOTAL ASSETS

Note

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VYND VND
504,315,380,339 535,538,408,979
425,724,758,849 455,920,455,237
1,109,760,307,726 1,118,222,369,037
(684,035,548,877) (662,301,913,800)

78,590,621,490
91,301,689,163
(12,711,067,673)

2,058,204,368,003
3,245,986,712,398
(1,187,782,344,395)

8,333,386,636,363
5,492,966,979,185
2,840,419,657,178

266,625,757,612
134,205,184,150
137,315,605,065
(4,895,031,643)

808,722,708,213
808,236,403,231
486,304,982

79,617,953,742
92,658,122,743
(13,040,169,001)

1,924,438,064,814
2,993,170,692,950 |
(1,068,732,628,136)

8,276,792,343,742
5,401,007,915,910
2,875,784,427,832

277,722,268,611
147,744,202,808
137,315,605,065
(7,337,539,262)

829,714,160,744
828,255,245,794
1,458,914,950

18,081,440,909,270

15,577,310,592,037
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Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,
Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

300

310
311
312
313
314
315
318
319
320
322

330
332
853
336
337
338
341
342

As at 31 December 2024
{continued)
Code CAPITAL Note

C, -LIABILITIES
I. Shori-term liabilities
1. Short-term trade payables 18
2. Short-term prepayments from customers 19
3, Taxes and other payables to State budget 20
4, Payables to employees
5. Short-term accrued expenses 21
6! Short-term unearned revenue 22
7. Other short-term payables 23
8, Short-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 17
9, Bonus and welfare funds
II. Non-current liabilities
1. Long-term prepayments from customers 18
2. Long-term accrued expenses 21
3. Long-term unearned revenue 22
4. Other long-term payables 23
5. Long-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 17
6. Deferred income tax liabilities 37

Provisions for long-term payables 24

s

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND
13,864,569,721,098  11,481,359,062,143
5,149,560,624,621 2,988,219,646,565
182,266,594,928 115,710,567,998
371,512,871,331 312,374,721,855

68,748,438,599
14,867,421,484
229,912,250,973
140,675,792,245
494,053,240,392
3,614,891,829,277
32,632,185,392

8,715,009,096,477
252,487,200,195
590,744,908,414
4,958,776,147,099
262,949,393,685
2,601,232,870,614
43,610,926,490
5,207,649,980

68,624,598,621
18,589,617,246
222,319,458,868
164,726,135,965
282,694,248,035
1,765,900,066,906
37,280,231,071

8,493,139,415,578
172,404,244,101
560,744,908,414
4,753,351,087,746
116,690,246,022
2,771,808,754,750
82,012,555,785
6,127,618,760

|
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Tin Nghii Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,

Bien Hoa [city, Dong Nai province

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Code

400

410
411
{lla
412
414
416
417
418
420
421
42]a
421b
429

430
431

440

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024
(continued)

CAPITAL
D. OWNER’S EQUITY

I.. Owner’s equity
1. Contributed capital
- | Ordinary shares with voting rights
Share premium
I Other capital

Differences upon asset revaluation
Exchange rate differences
Development and investment fund
7{ Other reserves
8, Retained earnings
- | Retained earnings accumulated to previous year
-| Retained earnings of the current year
9. Non — Controlling interest

II. Non-business funds and other funds
1. Non-business fund

TOTAL CAPITAL

Note

25

31/12/2024

01/01/2024

VND
4,216,871,188,172

4,216,791,879,035
2,000,000,000,000
2,000,000,000,000
5,634,952,321
83,029,718,628
(216,747,758,176)
(11,217,792,404)
174,005,490,476
1,058,573,962
288,645,871,647
(21,843,556,233)
310,489,427,880
1,892,382,822,581

79,309,137
79,309,137

VIND
4,095,951,529,894

4,095,872,220,757
2,000,000,000,000
2,000,000,000,000
5,634,952,321
83,029,718,628
(216,747,758,176)
(11,875,303,367)
153,057,398,020
1,177,626,926
229,663,596,160
(9,695,671,677)
239,359,267,837
1,851,931,990,245

79,309,137
79,309,137

18,081,440,909,270

15,577,310,592.037

Duong Thi Minh Hong Nguyen Thi
Preparer tef Accountant

Tran Trung Tuan
General Director
Bien Hoa Ciry, 28 March 2025



Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,
Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

Consolidated Financial Statements |

for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Code ITEMS

01

02
10

11
20

21
22
23
24
25
26

30

3l
32

40
50

51
52

60
61

62
70

1.

Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of
services

Revenue deductions

Net revenue from sales of goods and rendering of
services

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit from sales of goods and rendering of
services

. Financial income

7./ Financial expenses

16.
T

175
130

14.
15.

16.
17

18.
19.

20.
21.

L

/
V4
/ '/

Inwhich: Interest expense
Share of joint ventures and associates’ profit or loss

Selling expenses
General administrative expenses

Net profits from operating activities

Other income
Other expenses

Other profit
Total net profit before tax

Current corporate income tax expense
Deferred corporate income tax expense

Profit after corporate income tax

Profit after tax attributable to owners of the
Parent Company

Note

27

28

29

30
31

32
33

34
35

36
37

Profit after tax attributable to non-controlling interest

Basic earnings per share

/A

3,372,680,233

11,733,682,377,474

10,945,508,563,195

788,173,814,279

272,219,449,565
172,115,475,935
143,673,919,758

2,336,920,882
136,926,510,342
231,148,312,318

522,539,886,131

118,712,114,574
122,896,886,598

(4,184,772,024)
518,355,114,107

132,201,785,520

Year 2024 Year 2023 |
VND VND |
11,737,055,057,707  8,596,981,526,958

1,988,974,398‘

8,594,992,552,560

7,892,492,657,112

702,499,895,448

221,708,345,696
151,084,403,854
119,712,317,108

(1,162,156,503)
129,690,991,785
241,213,852,126

401,056,836,876

29,206,793,647
14,703,903,609

14,502,890,038
415,559,726,91*

105,531,110,553

(38,401,629,295) 50,370,994,913
424,554,957,882 259,657,621,448
310,489,427,880 239,359,267,837
114,065,530,002 20,298,353,611

1,552

1,157

Duong Thi Minh Hong —— Nguyen Thi Thuy Van

Preparer

Chief Accountant

10

Tran Trung Tuan
General Director

Bien Hoa City, 28 March 2025




Tin Nghia‘ Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,
Bien Hoa bity, Dong Nai province

Consolidated Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

{Indirect method)
Code IT‘EMS Note
L CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
01 1. Profitbefore tax
2.| Adjustments for
02 1.| Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and
| investment properties
03 2. ,r Provisions
04 3. Exchange gains / losses from retranslation of monetary
| items denominated in foreign currency
05 4. Gains/losses from investment activities
06 5.1 Interest expense
08 3.| Operating profit before changes in working capital
09 1.! Increase, decrease in receivables
10 2. Increase, decrease in inventories
11 3. Increase, decrease in payables (excluding interest payable,
| corporate income tax payables)
12 4, Increase, decrease in prepaid expenses
13 5.’ Increase, decrease in trading securities
14 6, Interest paid
15 7.“ Corporate income tax paid
17 8! Other payments on operating activities
20 hi{et cash flow from operating activities
II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 l}, Purchase or construction of fixed assets and
' other long-term assets
22 2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and
. other long-term assets
23 3. Lendings and purchase of debt instruments from
other entities
24 4. Collection of lendings and resale of debt
instrument of other entities
26 5. Proceeds from equity investment in other entities
27 t‘. Interest and dividend received
30 I.Llet cash flow from investing activities

11

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
518,355,114,107 415,559,726,914

166,060,907,521

(12,947,763,299)
2,164,740,085

(196,349,800,675)
143,673,919,758
620,957,117,497
(1,910,561,731,946)
(75,802,867,937)
579,492,849,765

23,629,515,121

(97,643,249,434)
(123,310,015,772)
(43,338,798,382)
(1,026,577,181,088)

(302,333,753,058)
8,038,823,075

(571,878,908,609)

224,775,000,000

162,182,298,292
(479,216,510,300)

166,080,174,479

(22,423,071,307)
(6,107,457,324)

(45,511,686,940)

119,712,317,108
627,310,002,930
(643,368,109,712)
(135,950,017,665)
125,778,916,676

21,129,409,661
6,000,000,000
(41,106,501,253)
(76,464,239,753)
(24,355,526,892)
(141,026,066,008)

(272,440,702,703)
7,729,855,986
(22,949,672,987)

8,790,000,000

30,000,000,000
57,352,541,094
(191,517,578,610)



[

raszy

-
ot

omceu; $GLEGSP $ UBGNS 000 GENESY WO

Tin Nghi:i Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,

f

Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

Consolidated Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Code ITEMS Note

33
34
36
40

50

60

61

70

/
/

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024
(Indirect method)

Year 2024

Year 2023

VYND

II. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from borrowings
2. Repayment of principal

9,444,329,632,166
(7,765,913,753,931)

VND

7,856,530,476,775 |
(7,231,553,327,750) |

3. Dividends or profits paid to owners (236,252,799,427) (169,972,071,650) ,
Net cash flow from financing activiries 1,442,163,078,808 455,005,077,335
Net cash flows in the year (63,630,642,580) 122,461,432,717

{
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 602,122,958,828 474,219,810,273 '
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (1,947,726,935) 5,441,715,838 I
Cash and cash equivalents at thé end of the year 3 536,544,589,313

602,122,958,828 '

Duong Thi Minh Hong Nguyen ily Van Trn Trung Tuan
Preparer ief Accountant General Director

Bien Hoa City, 28 March 2025
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Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward, Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Tin Nghia Corporation (“the Corporation™) presents its report and the Corporation’s
Separate Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024.

THE CORPORATION

Tin Nghia Corporation which was established and operating activities under Enterprise Registration Certificate joint
stock company No. 3600283394 issued by Dong Nai Department of Investment and Planning for the first time on 03

Novemb?r 2004, 25th re-registered on 21 November 2024.

The CorPoration’s head office is located at: 96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward, Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai

province;

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF SUPERVISION

The memibers of the Board of Directors during the year and to the reporting date are:

Mrs. Dang Thi Thanh Ha Chairwoman
Mr. Tran Hoai Nam Member
Mr. Tran Trung Tuan Member
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Dat Member
Mr. Tran Ngoc Tho Member

The members of the Board of Management during the year and to the reporting date are:

Mr. Tr;‘m Trung Tuan General Director

Mr. Nguyen Cao Nhon Deputy General Director

Mr. Hoang Sy Quyet Deputy General Director (Resigned on 18/11/2024)
Mr. Nguyen Hieu Loc Deputy General Director (Resigned on 20/07/2024)
Mr. Le Van Danh Deputy General Director (Resigned on 01/01/2024)

The members of the Board of Supervision are:

Mr. Tran Tan Nhat Head of the Board of Supervision

Mr. Tang Tran Tan Khai Member

Mr. Nguyen Quoc Ky Member (Appointed on 22/05/2024)
Mrs. Le Ngoc Dung Member (Resigned on 22/05/2024)
LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representatives of the Corporation during the year and until the preparation of these Separate Financial
Statements are Mrs. Dang Thi Thanh Ha - Chairwoman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Tran Trung Tuan - General |

Director.




Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward, Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

AUDITQRS

The auditors of the AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited have taken the audit of the Separate Financial Staternents

for the Corporation.

STATEI’Y[ENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
SEPAR/lkTE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Board of Management is responsible for the Separate Financial Statements which give a true and fair view of the
financial |position of the Corporation, its operating results and its cash flows for the year. In preparing those Separate
Financial Statements, the Board of Management is required to:

- Establish and maintain an internal control system which is determined necessary by the Board of Management
and Board of Directors to ensure the preparation and presentation of the Separate Financial Statements do not

cotitain any material misstatement caused by errors or frauds;
- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- Mike judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- Sta:te whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the Separate Financial Statements;

- PreTpaIe and present the Separate Financial Statements on the basis of compliance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements;

Prepare the Separate Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

| . . . . a
the Corporation will continue in business.
J
The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that accounting records are kept to reflect the financial position

of the Corporation, with reasonable accuracy at any time and to ensure that the Separate Financial Statements comply

with the| current State’s regulations. It is responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for
5 | - . . o

taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board of Management confirms that the Separate Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position as at 31/ 12/2024, its operation results and cash flows for the fiscal year then ended of the Corporation in
accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and the statutory
requiremjents relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.

Other commitments

The Board of Management pledges that the Corporation complies with Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated
31/12/2020 on detailing and guiding the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities and the
Corporation does not violate the obligations of information disclosure in accordance with the regulations of the |

CircularJ No. 96/2020/TT-BTC dated 16/11/2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance guiding the disclosure of
information on Securities Market and the Circular No. 68/2024/TT-BTC dated 18/09/2024 issued by Ministry of

Finance.

tan 1rung Tuan

General Director

Dong Nai, 28 March 2025
1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: Shareholders, the Board of Directors and the Board of Management ‘

Tin Nghia Corporation
We have audited the Separate Financial Statements of Tin Nghia Corporation prepared on 28 March 2025, as set
out on pages 05 to 62, including: Separate Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2024, Separate
Statement of Income, Separate Statement of Cash Flows for the fiscal year then ended and Notes to the Separate

il
Financial Statements.

The Board of Management’s responsibility
The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Separate Financial Statements |

Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements and for such internal control as the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation and presentation of the Separate Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error. }
‘

Auditors’ responsibility ‘
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Separate Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with standards and ethical requirements; plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Separate Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Separate
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Separate Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those |
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and presentation of the
Separate Financial Statements that give & true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

Separate Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opiﬁion.

Auditors’ opinion

In our opinion, the Separate Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
position of Tin Nghia Corporation as at 31 December 2024, its operating results and its cash flows for the fiscal
year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting|
System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements.

AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited

Ngo Vi /Pbdﬁ Van Sang
ptty General Director Auditor ‘
ertificate of registration to audit practice Certificate of registration to audit practice
No!2434-2023-002-1 No. 3864-2025-002-1 |

Ho Chi Minh City, 28 March 2025
T: (B4} 24 3824 1990 | F: (84)24 3825 3973 | 1 Le Phung Hieu, Hanoi, Vietnam A member of $18}] International

| HANG KIEM TOAN AASC 4 ‘
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Tin Nghi

a Corporation

96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,

Separate Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

Code A

100

110
111

120
121
122
123

130
131
132
135
136
137

140
141

150
151
152
153

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Short-term financial investments

Trading securities

Provision for diminution in value of trading securities

Held-to-maturity investments

. Short-term receivables
| Short-term trade receivables

| Short-term prepayments to suppliers

Short-term lending receivables

Other short-term receivables

| Provision for short-term doubtful debts

V. Inventories

Inventories

i, Other short-term assets

Short-term prepaid expenses
Deductible VAT

Taxes and other receivables from State budget

As at 31 December 2024
sSETS Note
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash 03
04

05
06
07
08
09

10

15

18

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND
4,441,976,550,506 2,333,989,051,123
134,146,425,483 391,864,647,067

134,146,425,483

433,583,366,242
6,616,661,800

426,966,704,442

3,745,659,829,553
2,233,551,146,132
740,080,908,239
606,939,894,599
431,134,010,53%
{266,046,129,956)

118,649,924.559
118,649,924,559

9,937,004,669
1,782,585,4738

446,651,903
7,707,767,2838

391,864,647,067
125,235,863\274
6,616,66 ﬂsoo
(573,714,800)
119,192,920,274

1,686,051,707,768
980,099,798,426 |
17,599,931,180
§73,613,504,034
401,282,079,521
(286,543,605,393)

128,773,982,668
128,773,982,668

2,062,846,346
1,127,109,419
927,946,875
7,790,052
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Tin Nghia Corporation

96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,

Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

Separate Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

As at 31 December 2024
(continued)

Code ASSETS (continued) Note
200 B, NON-CURRENT ASSETS
210 1. Long-term receivables
216 1. Other long-term receivables 08
219 2. Provision for long-term doubtful debts 09
220 1L Fixed assets
221 |. Tangible fixed assets 12
222 -| Historical cost
223 - Accumulated depreciation
227 2, Intangible fixed assets 13
228 - | Historical cost
229 - Accumulated amortization
230 1. Investment properties 14
231 - Historical cost
232 - Accumulated depreciation
240 Ill. Long-term assets in progress 11
242 1, Construction in progress
250 V. Long-term investments 04
251 1. Investments in subsidiaries
252 2. Investments in joint ventures and associates
354 3. Provision for devaluation of long-term investments
260 VI Other long-term assets
261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses 15
270 TOTAL ASSETS

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31/12/2024

01/01/2024

VND

5,829,994,858,047

27,010,467,576
75,579,360,967
(48,568,893,391)

312,210,810,927
263,690,517,204
469,683,343,297
(205,992,826,093)
48,520,293,723
52,473,077,066
(3,952,783,343)

1,040,026,267,445
1,808,177,035,633
(768,150,768,188)

1,235,272,266,808
1,235,272,266,308

2,814,665,423,094
3,066,293,895,702

35,529,209,727
(287,157,682,335)

400,809,622,197
400,809,622,197

VND

5,818,798,152,479

27,015,101,576
75,583,994,967
(48,568,893,391)

321,201,261,957 |
271,964,996,147
461,531,060,791
(189,566,064,644)
49,236,265,810
53,987,246,904 |
(4,750,981,094)

$80,265,618,217
1,579,112,354,300
(698,846,736,083)

1,356,573,042,256
1,356,573,042,256

2,822,188,367,021
3,066,293,895,702

35,529,209,727
(279,634,738,408)

411,554,761,452
411,554,761,452

10,271,971,408,533

8.152.787,203,602




Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Hwy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,

Bien Hoa

Separate Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Code

300

310
311
312
313
3l4
315
318
319
320
322

330
332

336
337
338
341
342

400

410
411
41la
412
418
421
421a
421b

440

N\/

31/12/2024 01/01/2024 |
VND VND
7,340,093,072,546 5,260,611,343,731
3,404,861,787,374 1,423,442,910,230

33,698,142,401
44,479,461,509
29,075,208,405
3,324,589,100
74,530,894,287
118,818,899,445
108,148,121,893
2,985,706,872,852
7,079,597,482

3,935,231,285,172
80,000,000,000
3,635,730,912,191
41,433,826,374
134,099,436,365
38,759,460,262

18,034,505,332
91,228,095,702
26,432,625,934
7,000,000,000
59,284,503,455
113,730,168,929
42,435,308,760
1,053,452,538,536
11,845,163,582

3,837,168,433,501

3,568,667,067,391

41,573,330,161 |

179,622,272,729
41,178,144,460
6,127,618,760

city, Dong Nai province
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2024
(continued)

CAPITAL Note
C| LIABILITIES
I.| Current liabilities
1. Short-term trade payables 16
2| Short-term prepayments from customers 17
3.| Taxes and other payables to State budget 18
4, Payables to employees
5. Short-term accrued expenses 19
6. Short-term unearned revenue 21
7., Other short-term payments 20
8. Short-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 22
9, Bonus and welfare funds
"i' Non-current liabilities
1. Long-term prepayments from customers 17
2., Long-term unearned revenue 21

Other long-term payables 20
4, Long-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 22

Deferred income tax liabilities 34a
6, Long-term provisions for payables

D‘. OWNER'’S EQUITY

I. Owner’s equity 23
1. Contributed capital
Ordinary shares with voting righis
2. Share premium
3J Development and investment fund
4| Retained earnings
Retained earnings accumulated to the previous year

Retained earnings of the current year

TOTAL CAPITAL

L

5,207,649,980
2,931,878,336,007

2,931,878,336,007
2,000,000,000,000
2,000,000,000,000
5,634,952,321
128,018,554,241
798,224,829,445
551,322,353,309
246,902,476,136

2,892,175,859,871

2,892,175,859,871
2,000,000,000,000
2,000,000,000,600
5,634,952,321
116,894,247,579
769,646,659,971
547,160,526,730
222,486,133,241

10,271,971,408,553

8,152,787,203,602

|
Nguyen‘Nhu Huynh V/Ngﬁl Thi Thuy Van
Preparer Chief Accountant
| 7

Tran Trung Tuan
General Director
Dong Nai, 28 March 2025



Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,
Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

Separate Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Code ITEMS

1 S
02 2
;34
A g
20 5.
21 6.
052" 4]
B4
#8558
26 9.
30 10.
8Ly A
30k 0
40 13
50 14
iy, {08
ol
g0~ 1;

fh_~
il

Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of

services

Revenue deductions

Net revenue from sales of goods and rendering

of services

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit from sales of goods and rendering

of services

Financial income
Financial expenses

" Inwhich: Interest expense

Selling expenses
General administrative expenses

Net profit from operating activities

Other income
Other expenses

Other profit

. Total profit before tax

Current corporate income tax expense

Deferred corporate incoime tax expense

Profit after corporate income tax

Note

25

26

27
28

29
30

31
32

|

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VYND
7,398,336,565,224 3,977,865,753,216
7,398,336,565,224 3,977,865,753,216
7,090,709,321,065 3,719,946,130,321
307,627,244,159 257,919,622,895
263,455,209,065 241,661,692,099
103,237,224,531 135,877,273,454 |
75410323560 52,209,282,155 |
33,512,698,435 30,239,535,139
79,048,122,389 91,051,199,929
355,284,407,869 242,413,306,472

13,577,077,715
72,926,001,784

(59,348,924,069)
295,935,483,800

51,451,691,862
(2,418,684,198)

4,024,867,350 ’
3,210,484,412

814,382,938 |
243,227,689,410

34,663,099.651
(13,921,543,482)i

246,902,476,136

222,486,133,241

Ngu?efglhu Huaynh

Preparer

/N7guyen Thi Thuy Van
Chief Accountant

Tran Trung Tuan
General Director
Dong Nai, 28 March 2025




Tin Nghia Corporation
96 Ha de Giap street, Trung Dung ward,

Separate Financial Statements

for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province
|

Code IT

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

(Under indirect method)

EMS Note

o1

S ST

02

04 -

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and
investment properties

Provisions

05 -
06 -
08 5.
0g -
e -
1 -

17,
W
{5 .|
16 -
17 -

Exchange gains / losses from retranslation of monetary
items denominated in foreign currency

Gains / losses from investment activities

Interest expense

Operating profit before changes in working capital
Increase, decrease in receivables

Increase, decrease in inventories

Increase, decrease in payables (excluding interest payable,
corporate income tax payables)

Increase, decrease in prepaid expenses

Interest paid

Corporate income tax paid

Other receipts from operating activities

Other payments on operating activities

20  Net cash flow from operating activities

1
o)k

1
2 2.
9473)

5
24 4
26 5.
27 6

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase or construction of fixed assets and other
long-term assets

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and other
long-term assets

Lendings and purchase of debt instruments from
other entities

Collection of lendings and resale of debt
instrument of other entities

Proceeds from equity investment in other entities

Interest and dividend received

30 Npt cash flow from investing activities

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
295,935,483,800 243,227,689,410

88,435,420,928

(14,468,215,090)
(378,414,532)

(186,144,615,435)
75,410,323,560
258,789,983,231
(1,819,596,982,428)
10,124,058,109
180,961,342,836

10,089,663,196
(73,934,700,891)
(52,178,532,285)
8,117,409,079
(20,081,092,201)
(1,497,708,851,354)

(252,176,883,013)

29,862,913
(518,465,592,462)

249,324,237,393

74,460,550,068
(446,827,825,101)

86,067,777,801

66,068,341,095
884,050,808

(212,137,852,337)
52,209,282,155
236,319,288,932
(755,492,848,329)
(99,000,266,271)
200,758,942,484

1,329,115,259
(51,025,888,854) |
(7,714,358,594)
76,865,000
(10,582,842,876)
(485,331,993,249)

(81,709,681,353)

48,636,364
(259,983,890,061)
297,674,277,023

30,000,000,000
243 983,545,715
230,012,887,688
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Tin Nghia Corporation

96 Ha Huy Giap street, Trung Dung ward,
Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province

Separate Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

| SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024
{Under indirect method)

Code ITEMS it Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

111. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES i

33 1. Proceeds from borrowings 6,906,039,791,412 3,681,451,025,155 |
34 2. Repayment of principal (5,019,308,293,460) (3,172,753,074,703)
36 3. Dividends or profits paid to owners (199,941,397,000) (99,950,878,500)
40  Net cash flow from financing activities 1,686,790,100,952 408,747,071,952

30 Net cash flows in the year (257,746,575,503) 153,427,966,391 |
60 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginaing of the year 391,864,647,067 238,429,714,217

61  Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 28,353,919 6,966,459 |

70  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 03 134,146,425.483 391,864,647,067 I

ﬂ-‘\// LM

/

lj‘gﬁyeﬁ‘lhu Huynh ‘/(Nyﬂl’mThuy Van Tran Trung Tuan
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

Dong Nai, 28 March 2025
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TIN NGHIA CORPORATION

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 40 /TTr - HBQT

Bien Hoa, May 92, 2025

REPORT

On the profit distribution plan for the year 2024

To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019;
Pursuant to the Charter of Tin Nghia Corporation,

As stipulated in point d, clause 1, article 74 of Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated December 22, 2014, of the Ministry of Finance guiding the Enterprise
Accounting Regime, which stipulates " The parent company is allowed to distribute
profits to owners (shareholders) not exceeding the undistributed after-tax profit
on the Consolidated Financial Statements".

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders the profit distribution plan for 2024 as follows:

Unit: VND
No. Explanation Amount of money
1 After-tax pl.‘oﬁt on the consolidated financial 424,554,957,882
statements in 2024
5 f&fter-tax profit on the separate financial statements 246,902,476,136
in 2024
3 | Profit distribution in 2024 238,345,123,807
Appropriation for the investment and development fund
S (5% of after-tax profit) b Bl e 01
39 Approp1r1at10n for the reward and welfare fund (2 6.,000,000,000
months' salary)
3.3 | Dividend payment in 2024 (11% of charter capital) 220,000,000,000
4 | Remaining after-tax profit in 2024 (4=2-3) 8,557,352,329




Respectfully submit to the General Meeting for consideration and approval the
profit distribution plan as above, including the level of appropriation for the funds and

the dividend rate for 2024 is 11%.

ON BEHALF OF
Recipiahis) 2 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above;

- Archive: Meeting Documents, BOD’s Document.

ang Thi Thanh Ha



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

TIN NGHIA CORPORATION

No: 84 /TTr - HDQT
Bien Hoa, May 2. 2025

PROPOSAL

Regarding the 2025 business production and operation plan targets
and expected dividend payout ratio for 2023

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH]14 dated November 26, 2019;
Pursuant to the Charter of Tin Nghia Corporation,

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders for approval the targets of the 2025 business production and operation
plan and the expected dividend payout ratio for 2025 as follows:

Unit of calculation: Billion VND

et | T
Total consolidated revenue 12,125 11,700

1 Of which: Parent Company 7,675 7,600
Consolidated profit after tax 425 672

. Of which: Parent Company 247 622
3 ?ni]‘;:l(:z:]:llgayout ratio/charter capital 1% 12%

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting for consideration and approval of
the targets for the 2025 business production and operation plan and the expected
dividend payout ratio for 2025./.

ON BEHALF OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipiwﬁ:\z
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TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 92 /TTr - HBQT
Bien Hoa, May 34, 2025

PROPOSAL

On the finalization of remuneration, salary, and bonuses for 2024 and the
estimate of remuneration, salary, and bonuses for 2025 of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020,
Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019;

Pursuant to the Charter of Tin Nghia Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Tin
Nghia Corporation” or “the Corporation”);

Pursuant to the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Tin
Nghia Corporation passed on May 22, 2024, regarding remuneration, salary, and
bonus expenses of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2024,

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval of the following contents:

1. Remuneration, salary, and bonus expenses of the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors in 2024

Unit of calculation: VND

Resolution of the Amount -
No. Content AGM 2024 — Disbursed
; |Remuneration of BOD 5200.000.000 | 5.200,000,000 | 4,466,666,673
and BOS
5% of profit after
2 | Bonus of BOD and BOS | tax exceeding the | 1,345,123,807 -
plan
Total 6,545,123,807 | 4,466,666,673

Note: Salaries of full-time members of the Board of Directors and full-time
Board of Supervisors are paid from the Corporation’s salary fund.




The Board of Directors respectfully requests the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders to approve the finalization of remuneration of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors paid in 2024, which is 4,466,666,673 VND and the
bonus of 5% of profit after tax exceeding the plan is 1,345,123,807 VND.

2. Plan for remuneration, salary, and bonus expenses of the Board of
Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2025

Based on the production and business tasks for 2025 of Tin Nghia Corporation
and to implement the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, with
the aim of ensuring efficiency and savings, the Board of Directors respectfully submits
to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the estimated level of
remuneration, salary, and bonus expenses for the Board of Directors and the Board of

Supervisors in 2025 as follows:

a) Remuneration for members of the Board of Directors and members of
the Board of Supervisors.

The total remuneration for members of the Board of Directors and members of
the Board of Supervisors in 2025 is 864,000,000 VND (The total remuneration of the
BOD and the BOS is after personal income tax).

b) Salaries of full-time members of the Board of Directors and full-time
members of the Board of Supervisors: Paid from the Corporation's Salary Fund.

¢) Bonuses for members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Board of Supervisors:

The bonus amount for members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Board of Supervisors in 2025 is capped at 5% calculated on the after-tax profit
exceeding the plan for 2025.

d) Authorize the Board of Directors to decide the specific levels of
remuneration, salary, and bonuses for each member of the Board of Directors and
member of the Board of Supervisors and be responsible for public disclosure and
transparency in accordance with regulations.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting for consideration and approval as
a basis for implementation.

ON BEHALF OF
Recipiefis™.— THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above;
- Archive: Meeting Documents, BOD’s
Document.




TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: ¢4 /TTr- BKS
Bien Hoa, May-id, 2025

PROPOSAL

Regarding the selection of an auditing firm for the 2025 Financial Statements

To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 178 220
Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019;

Pursuant to the Charter of Tin Nghia Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Tin
Nghia Corporation” or “the Corporation”),

In order to comply with regulations and ensure transparency in the business
operations of Tin Nghia Corporation as required by the State Securities Commission,
the Board of Supervisors respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the list of independent auditing firms to audit the 2025
Financial Statements of Tin Nghia Corporation as follows:

No. Name of Auditing Firm

1 | PwC (Vietnam) Limited

2 | Emst & Young Vietnam Co., Ltd. (E&Y)

3 | AASC Auditing Firm Co., Ltd. (AASC)

4 | A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

The above auditing firms operate legally in Vietnam and are on the list approved
by the State Securities Commission as fully qualified to audit public companies and
listed companies.

We respectfully request the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to
authorize the Board of Directors to select one of the 04 (four) auditing firms from the
above list to audit the 2025 Financial Statements of Tin Nghia Corporation.

In the event that an agreement cannot be reached with the above 04 (four)
auditing firms, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the
Board of Directors of Tin Nghia Corporation to select 01 (one) other auditing firm
from the list approved by the State Securities Commission as fully qualified to audit




public companies and listed companies to audit the 2025 Financial Statements of Tin
Nghia Corporation.

We respectfully submit this for the Assembly's consideration and approval as a
basis for implementation./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF
_ As above; THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
- Archive: Meeting Documents, BOD’s HEAD OF THE BOARD
Document.
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TIN NGHIA CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Bien Hoa, May33, 2025

REGULATIONS
ON NOMINATION, CANDIDACY AND SUPPLEMENTARY ELECTION OF
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR OF TIN NGHIA CORPORATION,
TERM II (2021 — 2026)

Chapter I
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1. Purpose, Scope and Subjects of Application

1. This regulation is used for the nomination, candidacy, and supplementary
election of membets of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisor
of Tin Nghia Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Tin Nghia Corporation” or “the
Corporation”), term II (2021 - 2026) at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in
2025, ensuring compliance with the Enterprise Law and current legal regulations.

2. Subjects of application: Shareholders owning voting shares and authorized
representatives of shareholders owning voting shares (according to the Company's
shareholder list closed on 12/5/2025), members of the Voting and Election Ballot
Counting Board and units related to the organization of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2025.

Article 2. Voting and Election<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>